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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EF M BHEE

Total assets

s 14,654,676 12,909,389 13,721,239 14,535,135 14,513,521
L%taﬁ':ﬁb”mes 3,617,900 1,065,058 2,798,303 2,696,260 2,116,453
e =8

g;ggﬁ; 11,036,776 10,944,331 10,922,936 11,838,875 12,397,068
Nﬁegﬁagggh’{; perishiare W HKS29.15 T BM HKS28.91 ;T 5B HKS28.85 ;¢ B HK$31.27 T &M HK$32.75
Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company 2,356,935 410,366 457,907 744,888 1,014,267
AERAARD AR R A E SR

S BEHKS2I T BWHKSI0BT  BMHKSI2IT BN HKSIOTT M HKS2.68 %
gﬁg‘g’e”ha’e M HKS040 T BMEHKS0425E  BMHKSOAT T BMEHKS060 T M HK$0.70 5t
Dividend payout ratio

(from continuing operations only) 38% 39% 39% 30% 26%

KB R (R RAFELE)

NOTE 1: Dividend per share in 2014 did not include special cash dividend of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial Offer (the meaning ascribed thereto in the Company's circular to
shareholders dated 4 December 2013) for disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited shares and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie to the shareholders of the Company in the
proportion of 1 share in the issued share capital of Chong Hing Bank Limited for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the Company.

NOTE 2: Dividend payout ratio in 2014, if including the special cash dividend and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie, the ratio should be adjusted to 81%.

NOTE 3: Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,356.9 million recorded in 2014, including the profit from discontinued operations of HK$1,963.3 million.

Wi—: —2-NEESRRETEERZREEARETERAARMDBIEN (HARA-S-ZF+ - AMARRRBEANEZ - MERNEHBLREEREL 280 7T RO
BENARYALZARAERTRAZ ORI B RABRTERDASBITRAMKE 2 KBRS

HE=  mEEBARERERUBNARZERIRE  —2-NEZRELZEEZE1Y% -
WE=  ZE2-MEPBNADARR2AEERREE 23569000007 - AERECLK IS HEFIBEE1,963,300,000 7T ©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EFE#®ESE

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group's business performance as well as

some observations from the overall economic environment for the year 2018 and

expectations for the year ahead.

RARRAE BETEBRAKEE-—Z—-\FZ2HELRE  URAAHBELERREZHE
FiiS - BRFHR YL -
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group's
business performance as well as some observations from the
overall economic environment for the year 2018 and

expectations for the year ahead.

2018 REVIEW
2018 started off well, following the strong growth in the
global economy of 2017.

With large scale tax cuts and pro-business policies of the

Trump Administration, the US economy grew fast.

As a result of the strength of both the employment figures
and the economy, the Federal Reserve began to increase
interest rate in March 2018. The increase together with
uncertainties of the Sino-US trade dispute led to a serious
correction in the US and worldwide stock markets in the last
quarter of 2018. Nonetheless in 2018, the US annual growth
rate stayed at 3% and the unemployment stood at 3.7%, one

of the lowest level in the past decades.

The US dollar remained strong in 2018. This is due to a
number of factors: a threat of inflation; the rise of both the US
interest rate and oil price, an end of quantitative easing by
European Central Bank as well as certain emerging market

balance of payment crises notably in Argentina and Turkey.

The Eurozone economy was expanding at a lower pace and
towards the end of 2018 seemed to be losing its momentum
partly because of political events in the major countries such

as France and Germany.

Britain continued to be affected by an uncertain Brexit
outcome. The uncertainty heighted in December when the UK
Government had delayed a vote in Parliament on the
ratification of its Brexit agreement with the EU. The matter is

still ongoing. The UK economy suffered as a result.
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The potential tension in the north east Asia relaxed after firstly
a reconciliation between North and South Korea, followed by
a summit of President Trump and Chairman Kim Jong-un in
2018. The Japanese economy has shown a modest growth in
lines with estimates. While Japan’'s export dropped, it was
encounter-balanced by an increase in domestic investment

and business investment.

Mainland China faced a few challenges in 2018: to lower the
high debt levels, to handle the Sino-US Trade Dispute at the
same time to maintain a steady growth, and a stable currency.
RMB having fluctuated during the year, ended with a only mild
year to year decrease of 4% vis-a-vis the US dollar. In the
meantime, the property segment has stayed robust
throughout 2018. With a combination of liquidity easing, a
multiple of stimulus measures of lowering financing costs for
small and medium enterprises, increased fiscal spending, the
Mainland economy has achieved a respectable GDP growth of

6.6% meeting market expectations.
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Chong Hing Bank Centre BIE 4817

In 2018, Hong Kong’s economy had been expanding at a
steady rate around 3% until the third quarter. With the rise of
the US interest rate, the lending rate of Hong Kong was
increased in September, the first time in 12 years. In the 2018
Policy Address in October, the Chief Executive unveiled the
Lantau Tomorrow Vision, a phrased reclamation and
construction of artificial islands with a total area of some 1,700
hectares, the first phase of reclamation is aimed to begin in
2025.

By the fourth quarter, market sentiment was noticeably cooler.
Both the stock and the residential property markets suffered a
correction after a robust growth of 12 months. The labour
market was tight in the whole of 2018, unemployment rate of
2.8% the lowest level in more than 20 years. However,
throughout 2018, the retail market has been sluggish with
minimal growth compared to 2017; resulting in a weak rental

market for retail properties.

—E-N\F > BELEA=ZEHEE
BREN3% HEEZEME 8 +-F
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BUSINESS RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
profit of HK$1,048 million, it represents an increase of 35%
when comparing with the year of 2017.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 16 May
2019, the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.48 per
share. Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.22 per
share paid on 14 September 2018, the total cash dividend
amounted to HK$0.70 per share for the year 2018.
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A detailed business review and analyses are to be found in the

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual

Report. In summary:

As to the property development in Foshan, The Grand
Riviera, a total of 90%, 100% and 100% of residential
units of Phase 1, 2 and 3 respectively had been sold. 80%
of the total Phase 4 units have been sold in the year of
2018. As of 31 December 2018, the total sale proceeds
of the whole development project amounts to HK$5.2
billion. A further HK$1.8 billion will be generated as and
when all the remaining residential units, car parks and

shops are sold off in the future.

The conversion process of ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel and
Serviced Residences is near to completion. The hotel
operation is to be managed directly by the Group and it

is scheduled to commence business soon.

The rental income and revenue of the rest of the Group's

investments has remained stable in 2018.

In November of 2017, the Group has invested through a
50% equity participation in a joint-venture company with
Value Partners Group (Stock code 806) in two warehouse
properties in Japan. In 2018, again, the Group co-
invested with Value Partners Group in another Japanese
warehouse property and a factory building in Australia.
The total annual rental of all the co-investment projects

are satisfactory.
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OUTLOOK OF 2019

2019 appears to be a year of some uncertainties.

The US economy remains healthy but the general forecast is
that, in terms of GDP growth and employment, they may not
equal the 2018 figures. The domestic political conflicts,
especially that surrounding the building of the “Trump Wall”,
remains unresolved and may add to the head wind of
economic growth. In the meantime, the trade disputes with
China and with other major economies add uncertainties to

US economy.

The Eurozone economy has been slowing down since the
latter half of 2018. The general market view is that growth will
be “subdued” for a number of reasons: trade tension with the
US, the ending of Quantitative Easing by ECB, political
uncertainties in some major countries such as Italy and France.
Furthermore, an undesirable outcome of Brexit would affect
Europe as much as it would affect the UK. In this respect, the

outlook of both Europe and the UK remains cautious.

The world is focusing on the Sino-US Trade negotiation. This
is the main uncertainty in 2019. Were there to be a trade war
between the two largest economies of the world, the effect
on the global economy is certainly profound as well as
incalculable. The delay of President Trump to increases tariff
on $200 billion of Chinese goods set for 1 March has raised
hope for a reconciliation. As mentioned previously, the
Chinese Government has been taking a multiple of fiscal and
multiple policies to stabilize the economy. Being a closed
economic system with sufficient currency reserve and flexible
policy measures, the Mainland economy has ample means to

weather out any storms.

Hong Kong is a small open economy and will thus be
subjected to global economic fluctuations. Hong Kong,
however, has a solid foundation of government surplus,
currency reserves as well as an almost full employment
economy. The outline Development Plan of Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area ascertains the importance of
Hong Kong. Both the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge and
the High Speed Rail will contribute to tourism and may help to
lift our retail-sale market. The Hong Kong economy is

expected to be stable.
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BUSINESS PREVIEW

With challenges mentioned above, there may also come
opportunities. In all these years, the Group has been prudently
managing its business and its finance. With steady growth in
profits in the past years, the Group has accumulated a
substantial net cash balance and is in a strong financial
position to capture any such business opportunities. Already
in recent years, we have co-invested with Value Partners
Group in property-projects in Japan and Australia, the two
economies of very stable economic and investment
environment. We will continue to pursue worth-while projects,
alone or with partners, both at home and abroad adopting our

usual due diligence.

In 2019, the Group will continue a series of projects to
renovate its existing properties, with the aim to enhance rental
yields and long term investment values. The first renovation
project is Chong Yip Centre located near the exits of the MTR
station of HKU, the retail value of which has been transformed

and increased by the MTR connection.

The One-Eight-One Hotel is expected to receive the
occupation permit soon. As mentioned earlier, we expect
tourism will pick up in 2019 with the opening of the High
Speed Rail and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge. Whilst
there are challenges ahead, we expect the hotel to bring in a

respectable income.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to stakeholders and shareholders for their continued trust and
support, to all my fellow directors for their wise stewardship,
and to our senior management and our staff for their

commitment and dedication.

Liu Lit Chi
Chairman

7 March 2019
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(the “Board"”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
its annual report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group") are property investment, property development and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 39 and 17

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of the business and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2018, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group's business, can be found in the
“Five-Year Financial Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Summary of Financial Highlights”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of the Annual Report. The above sections form part of this

report.
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RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs
at that date are set out on pages 134 to 256 of this annual

report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.22 per share was paid to
shareholders on 14 September 2018. The Board recommends
a final cash dividend of HK$0.48 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.70 per share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
movements in reserves of the Company during the year are

set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 comprised the
accumulated profits of HK$7,655,833,000 (2017:
HK$7,186,558,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set

out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year

are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development/properties
under development for sale/properties held for sale during
the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Japan Logistics Centers B &4if 5
AV Kakegawa City, Shizuoka Prefecture §¥[E§%i#)1|
P (Top) Hadano City, Kanagawa Prefecture (£ ) #%)I [\ R
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012,
which replaced the previous share option scheme, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, and will expire on 8 May 2022. Under the
Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to outside eligible third parties at the discretion
of the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior

approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing price

of the shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned

scheme since the Scheme was adopted.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to

the consolidated financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable are set

out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's interest capitalised during the year amounted to
HK$15,524,000 (2017: HK$19,033,000).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report are shown on page 95 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in
office, shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association.

In accordance with Article 105 and 113 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Au Kam
Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John shall retire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the
Company. The Company intends to comply with code
provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which provides, among
other things, that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr.
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 100 to 110.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all Independent

Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules throughout the review
period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE EEAF AT REHEBZERHBZR
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS AIEZ

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors and RZ=-ZE—NF+=-_BA=+—H EEN
the Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares {THAHNRAQA TR EBE LB (EER
and debentures of the Company and its associated EA5REEHRMEXVI) ZKR#%D - 1HEE
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities BR#REFTHHNEZCREBERESNTE
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”")) which have been notified to {&HIEXVEE 7R ESHIPE HE RN
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited BIREBHAXZHAER AT (ER
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of  fr|) ' SiERIEFEF R HERHIZE 3521F
the SFO, or have been recorded in the register maintained by F#AEXATAEFEENZLM > HER
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have ELEHEITAESEITEESRIG 2EE
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange <SFRIHIEARDAT KRBT  ZEREEN
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by T :

Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES EXATIREBE EE KB XEEHA
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OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED R 63 b B4 HE &5
CORPORATIONS
THE COMPANY b /N
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited BRIEAXFRAA
NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD ¥ 7 & 1 it f 3 £ B
Family Corporate Total interests as
interests interests approximate %
Personal (interests of (interests of of the relevant
interests spouse or controlled issued share
(held as child under 18) corporation) capital
Long/short beneficial owner) RigE = NEIER A
Name of director position BAES (R fB=18 5% (ZE5IR Total interests HEBITRA
EERE 8/ %A (B&ERfF) MUTFxziE#R) ZHH) el BHENE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 - 200,377,000 200,401,000 52.93%
BABEE o) (notes 1and 2)
(M= 1R2)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston Long 2,756,867 - - 2,756,867 0.73%
BEBEE #R
Dr. Liu Lit Chung Long - - 132,326,710 132,326,710 34.95%
BRIREL BE (note 1)
(H=E1)
notes: FisE
1. 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu's Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi 1. BIEE4RBIAEBLABREBAERAAZKRE  ZAFE
and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst its shareholders. The above numbers of shares are duplicated under the REZFEERDBARM132326,7108 - RERE  GRESET
corporate interests for each of these directors. ZAREREERNEHR - .
2. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders, beneficially holds ). PBIAELREREMZBATASSEEERAAZRE  ZATE "
68,050,290 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the corporate interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi. BEBADRRD 680502008  EHBAEBHUELEAT AR 2
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Company,
the following persons (other than the directors or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of

FERFREEMGALTHER

RZZF-NF+ZA=1t—-R8 BE2Q
BIFFA THAL(RARBESHITHA
HERIN RAD B Z R0 RABRE R 1 7
BERBESRMEMRPEXVIBE2RE

3R R ERBA R BIKE 2 BRI K
B NEEYHEESIEEABRT
RASEEENEMREQRTARRAE L
REZAEAEBRANEE 5% A L2

pYA

= -

the Group:
Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
TERRER WA/ RE 54 L@k pee HEBTRAEA L
Liu's Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
BREEERAR #R BREAA (note 1)
(HE1)
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 68,050,290 17.97%
EESEERLAT ¥& BREEA (note 2)
(HE2)
notes: Bt
1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, amongst others, Mr. 1. BREBERAADREBEMRALZAART  FEABE

Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors' interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his
associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors" interests in
Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
by any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives
Officer of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or
more as at 31 December 2018 which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

BABSKERBAREE - ZEAARBFCREFIZRE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly, a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In March 2016, the Company entered into a lease agreement
with Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a Non-executive Director. The
Company leased the property for a monthly rent of HK$75,000
for a term of two years commencing from 1 March 2016 and
the lease was renewed with the same term, effective from 1
March 2018, for another two years ending on 29 February
2020. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate
rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$900,000.

In March 2011, the Company entered into a service agreement
with K.A. Kho & Associates for architectural and consultancy
services provided to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher, a Non-executive Director, is the sole director and
the sole shareholder of K.A. Kho & Associates. In addition, a
supplemental agreement with aggregate service fee of
HK$12,900,000 was signed in February 2016. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, no service fee was paid by the
Company and the aggregate service fee paid and payable by
the Company amounted to HK$12,173,000 as at 31 December
2018.
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The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions, details of which are also disclosed by the Group
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of business

of the Group on normal commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and the Group's turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers were both
less than 30%. None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Board owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any

interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and
its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the shares in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION BIREE Z

w

TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS FREREMN10KE Z

w

According to the register of members of the Company as at REARQAFTRREZMHWER  R=FT B

. m

31 December 2018, the top 10 largest shareholders are as —NF+ZA=+—-HEREHZSHN10 B

follows: UBRERAT - f

z

Number of shares held % o

Name of shareholder xR aHE #ERNEE B 8

A

o

1. HKSCC Nominees Limited BRPREE (REA)BRAT 168,255,783 4180 o

>

3

2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited AlE (RE)BRAR 139,554,088 36.86 ;

o)

3. AlbaHoldings Limited FEEMERAF 35,000,222 925 E

z

4. MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64 :2:

m

B Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 4,644,000 1.23 e

v

6. Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 3,848,000 102 %

b

7. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 0.83 >

)

8. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82 nﬁuiB(
9. On Luk Tong Limited On LukTong Limited 1,090,000 0.29
10.  Kwok Wai Tong Kwok Wai Tong 650,000 0.17
Total ax 350,302,093 9491

LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS BRES

According to the register of members of the Company as at

31 December 2018, the location of shareholders are as

BREARTRRECHANELR  R=2F

—NF+ZA=+—-BRRIMAT :

follows:

Number of shares held %
Location of shareholders BREN HERMEE R
Hong Kong B 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia FERREE 36,060 0.0095
Europe BN 800 0.0002
US and Canada XERMNEXR 16,860 0.0045
Others Hit 8,580 0.0023
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Total A5 378,583,440 100 -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at the end of the financial year and of their
respective profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing
the financial statements, the directors are required to select
suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent
basis, making judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure
from accounting standards; prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to
presume that the Company and the Group will continue in

business for the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of
the Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other irregularities.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the
duly approved terms of reference by the Board, the
committee is authorised to discuss, formulate policies and
make decisions on all matters relating to the daily
management and operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss significant daily
operational issues, review business performance and take
prompt corrective actions as appropriate. The Board believes
that the function of committee could help to relieve the Board
of detailed review of information and to increase the

operational efficiency among different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company'’s

website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 36 to 37. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
internal controls and the financial reporting requirements of
the Group. The Audit Committee meeting will normally hold
twice in each financial year immediately before the Board
meeting for approving the interim and final results. The
committee is satisfied with the Company’s internal control

procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on pages 38 to 39.
The report showed the main duty and the work performed by
the committee during the year of 2018.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 40. The
report showed the main duty and work performed by the
committee during the year of 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018 with those paragraphs of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the

Listing Rules, with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the

Company are set out on pages 53 to 77.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report
prepared by the directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EEE8®H&E

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year

and up to the date of this report are as follows:
Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine

Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly,
a resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2019
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B ZEEHREE

The Audit Committee ("AC") is made up of four members, all
of them are Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The AC oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of group financial statements
including the selection of suitable accounting policies. External
auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to the
Group’s financial statements and will report to the
management of the Company from time to time on any
weakness in controls which come to their attention. The AC
oversees the respective work of management and external
auditors to ensure the management has discharged its duty to

have an effective internal control procedures.
The AC had performed the works as follows:

1. To review the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018;

2. To review the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2018;

3. To review and monitor the external auditors’

independence;
4. To review the system of internal control of the Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from

external auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of

external auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of
account and finance team of the Group in order to carry

out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was
found and all the recommendations previously suggested by
auditors were agreed and implemented by the management
in 2018.

Based on these reviews and discussions, together with the
report of the external auditors, the AC recommended to the
Boards approval of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 with the Auditor’'s Report

thereon.
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The Committee recommended to the Board that the
shareholders be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for 2019.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 5 March 2019
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT REZEESHREE

The Nomination Committee (“NC") consists of six members.

The main duties of the Committee are (i) to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board in
order to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy; (i) to
identify suitably qualified individuals to become directors of
the Company and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the directors and succession plan for directors,
in particular the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the
terms of reference which set out their roles, responsibilities
and duties. The terms of reference were duly authorised by
the Board.

In year 2018, the NC had reviewed and discussed the

following issues at its meetings:

1. To review the composition, size and structure of the

Board of the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of director of the
Company.

3. To review the brief details of each director (including
years of service).

4. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

5.  To review the Directors’ appointment control schedule —

Rotation of Directors.

6. To review and confirm the independence of all the

Independent Non-executive Directors.

7. To discuss and recommend the Board to appoint Mr.
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric as the Company’s Independent

Non-executive Director.

8. To review and amend as required from time to time the

Board diversity policies.
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The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the

meeting are circulated to the Board for information.

The NC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 5 March 2019
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT B ZE 2R EE

The Remuneration Committee (“RC") consists of four
members, a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company.

The main duties of the Committee are to formulate the
Company’s remuneration policy as well as to determine and/
or make recommendation to the Board with regard to the
structure of remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman

and Managing Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the
terms of reference which set out their roles, responsibilities
and duties. The terms of reference were duly authorised by
the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had

reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

1. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior

management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the
Board regarding the Directors’ fees and other allowances
for the year 2019; and.

3. To review and approve the annual performance bonus

and its policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the

meeting are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 5 March 2019
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bt ## =
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
audited consolidated profit of approximately HK$1,047.9
million, comparing to that of 2017 amounted to approximately

HK$773.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
35%.

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from
property investment, property development, property
management, treasury investment, trading & manufacturing

and hotel operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other

than the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain on changes
in fair value of investment properties and net exchange gains

(losses).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$355.7 million,
decreased by approximately HK$9.9 million from
approximately of HK$365.6 million in 2017, representing a

decrease of 2.7%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group’'s overall occupancy from major investment

properties continued to maintain at 87.7% as at 31 December
2018.

HK PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Square

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is
a 20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers
over 182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, Chong Hing Square
generated rental revenue of approximately HK$113.9 million,
decreased by HK$8.3 million from approximately HK$122.2
million in 2017 with occupancy of 96%. As at date of board
meeting, the building was 100% occupied.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Chong Hing Bank Centre

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, is a 26-storey Grade A office building. Having
retained several floors for group’s use, the office building was
leased to Chong Hing Bank Limited for 5 years fixed tenancy
with option to renew for another 5 years. For the year ended
31 December 2018, a total of approximately HK$67.9 million

rental revenue was derived from this building.

Chong Yip Centre

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road
West. It provides over 54,000 square feet of retail and
commercial space. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
this retail and commercial shopping center generated rental
revenue of approximately HK$20.4 million, slightly decreased
by 2.4% when comparing to that of 2017. The occupancy was
68% as at 31 December 2018. The management had approved
to revamp the property in order to get higher rental return.
Planning of renovation work is under preparation and the

construction will commence in second quarter of 2019.

Fairview Court

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The Group
owns 5 units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 31
December 2018, Fairview Court received rental revenue of
approximately HK$7.1 million (it recorded HK$3.8 million after

rental elimination) with 100% occupancy.

PRC PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288
Nanjing Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a
36-storey Grade A commercial building which commands a
strategic location and enviable view over The People’s Square
just across the street. With a total floor area of over 516,000
square feet of office and commercial spaces and 198 carparks,
this property was approximately 80% let in terms of office
space and 100% let in terms of retail space as at year end. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, this office building
generated rental revenue of approximately HK$141.2 million,

representing a slightly decrease of 2%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE 2z & 2

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HONG KONG

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western
Harbour Center), located at 181- 183 Connaught Road West,
was under construction to convert into a 183-room hotel and
serviced residences. Construction work came to the final stage
and the occupation permit was scheduled to be obtained in
the 2nd quarter of 2019. Total renovation costs including
professional fee amounted to approximately of HK$532

million and all expenditures are funded by internal resources.

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at 1 Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently
located within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial
district and within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan West

Station.

Development Status

This Foshan residential project is a comprehensive
development and is developed by phases. The whole project,
including Phase 1 to Phase 4, was completed and handover

for occupation in September 2018.

FINANCIAL AND SALE RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
sale revenue of approximately HK$1,297.3 million. The sale
was mainly referred to the sale of Phase 4 of which 933
residential units were sold and recognized under consolidated

statement of profit or loss in the year of 2018.

As at date of Board meeting, a total of 4,982 residential units
out of total 5,264 units (representing 95%) and a total of 1,184
carpark units out of total 4,669 units (representing 25%) were
successfully sold out fetching accumulated sale proceeds of

approximately HK$5.2 billion.

The management forecast that further sale proceeds of
approximately HK$1.8 billion would be received if all unsold
properties including residential units, carparks and retail shops

were sold under current market conditions.
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BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel
business in Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou. All of these
budget hotels are managed by and under the brand name of
Hanting. For the year ended 31 December 2018, hotel
revenue increased by 7.1% from approximately of HK$11.3
million in 2017 to approximately HK$12.1 million in 2018. Due
to the restructuring of the business strategy, the Group had
sold the budgeted hotels at Shanghai and Beijing in 2016,

only the hotel in Guangzhou remains in operation.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

During the year of 2018, the group teamed up with the same
joint venture partner, in addition to the investment in 2017, to
acquire one more warehouse (now in total 3 warehouses) in
Japan and one manufacturing plant in Australia. The
management regarded the investment would bring the
group’s a stable rental return together with a long term
appreciation of properties. The share of results of joint
ventures of approximately HK$61.8 million, under equity
accounting, represented the 50% share of net asset value of
the investment which included the annual rental revenue and

asset revaluation gain.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased from approximately
HK$11,799.7 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$12,332.8 million as at 31 December 2018, representing a
net increase of approximately HK$533.1 million. The increase
in shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit attributable
to the owners of the Group of approximately HK$1,014.3
million; (b) net decrease of investment revaluation and
exchange reserves totaling approximately HK$238.9 million
and (c) 2017 final dividend & 2018 interim dividend total paid
approximately HK$242.3 million.

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET CASH BALANCE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net cash balance (being
cash and deposits less borrowings) stood at approximately
HK$1,618.4 million, increased by approximately HK$336.3
million from approximately HK$1,282.1 million in 2017,

representing an increase of 26.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE 2z & 2

The increase of net cash balance mainly related to the sale of
The Grand Riviera, Foshan residential project. For the year of
2018, the group has received cash sale proceeds of

approximately HK$1,177.2 million from this project.

In the years ahead, the Group's major capital expenditures will
be incurred for the Foshan residential project, hotel
redevelopment project, and the renovation of Chong Yip
Centre. The management will ensure all these capital
expenditures within the budget and do not undermine the

company'’s working capital.

The management expected that the Group's cash balances
could be increased further by the sale of The Grand Riviera,
Foshan residential project, and the stable rental revenue

generated from different rental properties.

BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2018 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio,
the Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still coming
from the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral
banking facilities with various banks, most of which have
established long relationship with the Group. The
management will consider to widen the funding source from
capital market if both the market conditions and terms are

favorable to the Company.

The management will closely monitor the company’s funding
position, internal funding and cheaper external funding will be

used for coming development project.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain positive cash
balance and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will
not only help the Group to fulfill all short term payment

obligations but also to improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of various
investment properties, cash sale proceeds from various
completed and uncompleted development projects and
committed banking facilities. Liquidity risk of the Group is low
and it has been further reduced by early refinancing and

improvement of cash flow.
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LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

All the bank loans in the group will be expired in the coming
year, and there is a consensus with the bank that the banking
facilities will be renewed. Liquidity risk could also be reduced
by extending the loan tenors. It was the fact that the Group’s
liquidity and cash flow position in PRC was improved
substantially following the successful sale of Grand Riviera,
Foshan. Therefore, the construction loan was no need to

renew or extend upon maturity.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures,
the Group may use certain derivative instruments such as
interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward rate
agreements and foreign exchange contracts. It is the Group’s
policy to allow using derivatives as hedging purposes only.
With respect to the counterparty risk of the derivatives, the
Group transacts only with financial institutions with strong

investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate
may result in a potential negative impact to the Group's
financial position. Given that, the management will actively
involve and review the movement of interest rate so as to

minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group's policy to minimize mismatch in currency and
not to speculate in currency movement. As at year ended 31
December 2018, other foreign exchange exposures related to
some major investments in Shanghai, Foshan and Japan
projects which altogether amounted to the equivalent of
about HK5,824.4 million or 40.1% of the Group's total assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE 2z & 2

DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has entered derivative transactions with bank in
order to hedge the investment in Japan. The foreign exchange
risk exposure has been reduced by entering Cross Currency
Swap transaction for the purpose of matching the Japanese
assets with Yen borrowings. Besides, in order to minimize the
exchange rate risk effects of cash inflow, the Japanese yen
dividend receivable have been hedged by a Single Rate
Forward. The management keep closely monitoring these
foreign exchange exposures by implementing different

appropriate measures on a timely and effective manner.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a workforce of
473 (31 December 2017: 464). Staff cost for the year include
salaries, bonuses and allowances, were approximately
HK$106.5 million (31 December 2017: HK$90.8 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that
the pay levels of its employee are reasonable and competitive
in the market and their total rewards including basic salary and
bonus system are linked with their performance. The members
and work done of Remuneration Committee are shown on

page 40.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has substantially complied with the Provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code” or the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing

Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long-term
value for shareholders. The corporate governance chart
adopted by the Company could be referred to Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on

page 35.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

e The Board is accountable to the shareholders for
leadership and supervision of the senior management for
the purpose of creating long-term shareholder value and

producing a sustainable growth and successful business.

*  The principal tasks of the Board are to set objectives,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and

financial performance.

e  The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal

control systems.

e The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management should
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness

of these systems.

e  Duties of the Board include approving interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases of interim
and final results, setting the dividend policy, and
approving the issue, allotment, disposal or grant of
options in respect of unissued new shares of the

Company.
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()

(1)

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has clear and distinct division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board. The Managing Director is responsible for
the Company’s business, daily management and

operations generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for the
Group's operation and performance by delegating duties
to different Executive Directors and senior management
to achieve targeted objectives. The Board gives clear
directions to management of their powers and
circumstances in which the management should submit a

report.

Throughout the year, the role of Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company has not been
segregated as required by the code provision A.2.1 of
the Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the
best interest of the Company that by nature of the
Group's business which requires considerable market
expertise and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound
experiences in the property and banking industry, shall
continue in his dual capacity as the Chairman and
Managing Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND
INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors,
two Non-executive Directors and five Independent Non-
executive Directors. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least one-third of
the Board should be Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive
Directors strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-

executive Directors.
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)

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-
executive Directors are free from any businesses or other
relationships which might interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgment and each Independent Non-
executive Directors brings their own relevant expertise to
the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and

independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
In short, these committees have Independent Non-

executive Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising
three Executive Directors and two Independent Non-
executive Directors to perform the corporate governance

duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 100 to
110. These demonstrate diversity of experience and

calibre of the Board in making management decisions.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and

succession planning for directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at
each annual general meeting will retire from office and

be subjected to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to
submit themselves to shareholders for re-election to the
Board at the first annual general meeting following their

appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company and were appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the

Company'’s Articles of Association.
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(V)

Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Under the Article 105, 106 and 113 of the
Company'’s Articles of Association, all directors including
the Managing Director are subject to retirement by

rotation.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are

as follows:

(i) to perform such functions and exercise such powers
as are appropriate to the position as an
Independent Non-executive Directors or Non-

executive Directors of the Company;

(i) to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to be a director of the Company,
including but not limit to the Listing Rules; and

(iii) to notify the Board immediately upon the
occurrence of, or the directors becoming aware of,

any matter which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee are available to review on the

Company's website.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES
AND SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their roles and duties as
directors with supportive commitment of creating a

healthy corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an
introduction to the Group’s major business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other

regulatory requirements.

Throughout the year, all directors complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules regarding Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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(v1)

(vin)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Code provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of
attending continuous professional training for the year
ending 31 December 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the company secretary also an
Executive Director of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company'’s affairs. The company secretary reports to
the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman of the Board or Executive
Management Committee on governance matters and
also facilitates induction and professional development
of the directors. All directors have access to the advices
and services of the company secretary to ensure that the
Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed. During the year, the company
secretary has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. The biography of Mr. Lee is set out in the
section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” in the annual report.
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(€
(n

BOARD PROCESS

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate
governance and in compliance with the requirement as
mentioned under Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance
Code, the Board has performed to hold full Board
meeting at least quarterly during the year 2018.

The Executive Management Committee was established
on 30 October 2014. The current members of the
committee comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston, Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee
Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved terms of

reference by the Board, the committee is authorised:

(1) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on
all matters relating to the daily management and

operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;
(2) to discuss significant daily operational issues;

(3) to review key business performance and take

prompt corrective actions as appropriate;

(4) to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and present of final and interim results of the
Company to the Board, as well as make
recommendation of interim and/or final dividends or

other distributions to the Board;

(5) to discuss business opportunities arising from
changing conditions so as to formulate policies to

sustain the growth of the Company; and

(6) The Executive Management Committee is currently
receiving monthly management report which shows
the Group’s financial and operating results with

detailed analysis of different business activities.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve
the Board of detailed review of information and to
increase the operational efficiency among different
departments. For the avoidance of doubt, all matters that
require public announcement pursuant to the Listing
Rules or rules of any other relevant regulatory body must

be approved by the Board.
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material
bank facilities arrangements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, material transactions with connected
parties, significant investments including large capital
projects, delegation of authority, treasury and risk
management policies and any matters involving a conflict

of interest for a substantial shareholder or director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advises the Board on corporate

governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and the Board committee meetings, which
are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final signed

version is sent to all directors for their records and open

for directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent e

professional advice at Company’s expense.

The Company has purchased the Directors and officers e

liability insurance.

Details of 2018 Board meetings attendance record are ®

set out below:
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Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHRY HEx
Executive Directors HITER
Liu Lit Chi B2E
(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) (LfF  EBREEFRITHER) 414 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston B4
(Deputy Managing Director) (FIEEEEHE) 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TBBZIEELZERES) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 44 100%
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Liu Lit Chung BRR 3/4 75%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FER 4/ 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRITES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 214 50%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BEHR 44 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John iR 3/4 75%
Cheng Yuk Wo i 44 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric (appointed on 7 March 2018) BERR=F-F=FtHEZMHF) 313 100%
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SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND
TIMELINESS

The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the

dissemination of information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate

supply of information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent
in full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give
relevant documents at least five clear days replacing
current practice of at least three clear days in advance of
meeting). Where appropriate, communications are sent

electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial
and operating results with detailed analysis of those
major rental properties, property under development

and other investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the
Company'’s business and operating results with reference

to the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal
management meetings twice a week with all Executive
Directors and different department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review

performance for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held
twice a week to discuss the daily operation and to review
the Company matters by reference to monthly

management reports.
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(1) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board's responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company's
strategic objective through an established, appropriate and

effective risk management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to
the Company's existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been

formulated after having identified the main area of risks.

®  During the year of 2018, the management had completed
enterprise risk management and the internal control
assessment and various follow up actions had been done
based on the findings and recommendations by Deloitte.
The management highly regards the internal controls and
considered that such review based on the identified audit
areas, will be performed annually so as to manage the

risk and control the effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and

senior management’s remuneration policy:

e  The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005. Its terms of reference are to review and
determine the remuneration packages for all directors

and senior management.

e  The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
(Chairman), Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo and a Non-executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,

Christopher.

e  The committee meets at least once per annum.
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e The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy;

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment and any compensation payable for loss or

termination of their office or appointment;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

(iv) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the

Board'’s corporate goals and objectives.

e Details of 2018 Remuneration Committee meeting

ZEECTEMEVETIIRIA

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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attendance record are set out below: ROERESINT
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHRE HER

Members of Remuneration Committee HMEEEZER
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BRE(F/F)
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FERR

Ma Hung Ming, John B

Cheng Yuk Wo BEA

Cavior Liu (Secretary) BHE (#E)

10 100%
10 100%
1N 100%
n 100%
n 100%

e  The committee is authorised by the Board to oversee and
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and

Senior Management.

e  No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
On matters other than those concerning him, the
Chairman or Managing Director may be invited to

committee meetings to give advices.
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(E)
U]

(i

Committee members are allowed under certain
procedures to take independent professional advice at
Company’s expense for making and determining the

remuneration package proposal.

The committee will present a report to the Board after

each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees
for all Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual

general meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in

the Remuneration Committee Report on page 40.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY'’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group'’s position and prospects in all shareholder

communications.

The Board fully understands its responsibilities regarding

the preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF
REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members,
all of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr. Tong Tsun

Sum, Eric.

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or

major organisations.
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e  The committee meets not less than twice per annum. The

Chairman, the Managing Director and the Executive

Director who is in charge of finance matters may be

invited to the meetings. The committee also meets not

less than twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.

e The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an

external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial

reporting judgements contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company's risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties to have
effective systems. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings;
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(vii) B AEBE 2B ERETHE
RER

(ix) to review the external auditor’s management letter, (ix) MEMEZBETBREEE 2K

# - ZEERE T B

REFEEFERNEERER Y

WEMEAREEREREFL

ZEfE R

BREESRIFEERINERX
YA TERERB 2ERBRH
B FHRENSEE -

—E- N\FEFREEEERHE

(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting

policies and practices;

any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and management'’s

response; and

(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely ()
response to the issues raised in the external

auditor's management letter.

Details of 2018 Audit Committee meetings attendance e
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record are set out below: FOEREHIANT -

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHRE HEE

Members of Audit Committee ENZBEZE
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman) BHN (L) 202 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 22 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BEiR 202 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric (appointed on 7 March 2018) BER (R=E-NF=ZFtHZA) 10 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TR (BE) 22 100%

Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group's

system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee
members to take independent professional advice at

Company's expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the
Board after each meeting for addressing their work done

and findings.

Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit

Committee Report on pages 36 to 37.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s

website.
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(1) AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the auditor had

received from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately
HK$3.13 million for audit and audit related services (2017:
HK$2.97 million) as well as HK$0.4 million for non-audit
services (2017: HK$0.3 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE

(F)

SYSTEM TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS
AND COMPANY ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group's strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial

position and to protect its assets.

The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be

exposed to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistance of external auditors during the course of audit
and separate assignment to ensure their effectiveness
and compliance with Code on Corporate Governance

Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Directors will
discuss with external auditor in the Audit Committee
meeting at least twice a year on key issues in relation to

internal controls, audit findings and risk management.

As concluded in 2018 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found

by the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on
7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board. The committee shall comprise members
not less than three and a majority of the committee is

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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e  The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr.
Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

° Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma
Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun
Sum, Eric (Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr.

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director).
*  The committee meets at least once per annum.
®  The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience
required) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate

strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Company; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

e Details of 2018 Nomination Committee meeting

attendance record are set out belows:

REZESIFRAESEIRE
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HEE

—E- \FERZZESLELE
EEEIMT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEX

Members of Nomination Committee REZEEZE
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BAE (£E) 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FRR 1" 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo A 1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BEifR 1N 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John Bt 11 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric (appointed on 7 March 2018) ERR-FE-N\E=ZFLAZMH) N/A 38 N/A R iE A
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TR (3 i) mn 100%

e  Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.
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(G)

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the

Nomination Committee Report on pages 38 to 39.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston,
and Mr. Lee Wai Hung, both of them are Executive
Directors of the Company and two Independent Non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John.

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company.
The duties performed by the Corporate Governance

Committee include the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the
Company and the senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company's policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of

the Company;

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under

the Listing Rules; and

(G)
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(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads
from time to time requesting them to review their
corporate governance within the department and
require them to submit proposal or remedy action

to redress the matters.

Details of 2018 Corporate Governance Committee

THREREHMEEEHET
23 ERWERFATHIMR
ZEEER WRZEZFNE
BITBAMEEHESE -

(vi)

—E-\FELXERES

meeting attendance record are set out below: HEEENMT -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHRE HEE

Members of Corporate Governance Committee EXERREEZE
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher (Chairman) }ﬁlﬁiﬁz(fﬁ)

Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B#RR

Ma Hung Ming, John PR

Liu Kam Fai, Winston B&iE

Lee Wai Hung TRl

N 100%
1N 100%
10 100%
0 100%
0 100%

(H)
U]

Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company'’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different
departmental heads) fully appreciate their respective
roles with supportive commitments of creating a healthy

corporate governance culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes
that management (include different departmental heads)

has in place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board has delegated management functions to
Executive Management Committee and different
department heads for the Company’s operations and

daily business affairs.
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BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF

REFERENCE AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee, each
of the Committee have specific written terms of

reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
and all members are Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi, Moses and has a majority of Independent Non-

executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
the Chairman of the Board and has a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher and comprises two
Executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises four

Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present their respective reports
to the Board after each meeting, for addressing their

work done and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practice in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and

prospective investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of
open and timely disclosure of relevant information on its
activities to shareholders, subject to applicable legal

requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular
communications to its shareholders and the market is
important to ensure they have the available information
reasonably required to make informed assessments of
the Company’s strategy, operations and financial

performance.
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Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which
have been enhanced to present a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the

Group position and prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual
and other general meetings, which have been
enhanced to provide shareholders with additional

information in an understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant

regulatory bodies.

Company'’s website at http://www.|chi.com.hk from
which shareholders can access information on the
Group. The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and
operations, press releases, annual reports, and

corporate information of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

The Board regards the annual general meeting as the

principal opportunity to meet with shareholders and

welcome any constructive opinions.
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o Details of director’s attendance record of the annual e

BE-Z-/\F+ZA=t—-HL

general meeting of the Company held for year ended 31 FEZRARABRRASESHER

December 2018 are set out below: SEEHWMT :
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHAH HEX
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BAE (LE) 0 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director) BEIE (FEFHELE) 11 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (FEBFIEBLEZERES) 1N 100%
Lee Wai Hung £ i 100%
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Liu Lit Chung B2ER 1N 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TERR 10 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses RS 1N 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EHR 1N 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John B 1N 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo A n 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEH 1N 100%

RERREAREEZE A0 F
ZHRBRREAFAEMEDL21H@
RERFHFR  VHBRREBX
o MBAMBEHMERRAEMS

e The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for
shareholders so as to allow at least 21 days for

consideration prior to the annual general meeting. And

all other general meetings to be sent at least 14 days. BIAEASRITAZD14BBXE

A e
e The Board encourages and supports shareholder ¢ EZEZEFRARIEFRFTBERRR
participation in general meetings. Shareholders are 2 EXEFREEIHERRERS

~
N
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encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to

attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will
be reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to

encourage the highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the
Board committees and the external auditor of the
Company will attend the annual general meetings to

answer questions from the shareholders.

ZBRREZRRRAKAEHFERSLERN

ét X?R

ETSEHMAETFRRBERR

RE2HE - BRESERBRERA
ERS e

%%Eﬁf EXZEE2HEEZ
RARTZNBZBEE S ER

% FREURZRRZRM -



() SHAREHOLDERS' ENQUIRIES

° Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the
public are responded by the Executive Directors, Director
of Finance, Company Secretary or the appropriate
members of senior management.

e The Company will respond in a timely manner to
shareholders’ queries and concerns.

(IV) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING

e All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting
rights. Annual general meeting proceedings are
continually reviewed in the light of Code on Corporate

Governance Practices.

e  Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on
each substantially separate issue, including the election
of individual directors.

®  Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting

circular containing:

° re-election of directors;

e  general mandate to buy-back shares;

° general mandate to issue shares;

o amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
e  voting at annual general meeting; and

e comprehensive information on each resolution to be
proposed.

The Company's Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a
poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in
relation to shareholders’ meetings and will be explained
during the proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll
voting is conducted, the poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the
business day following the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.|chi.com.hk where the Company'’s
announcements, business development and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 31.
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(V)

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING (“GM")

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote may

request to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (a) must state the general nature of
the GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
GM; (c) must be signed by the shareholders making such
request, and (d) may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more of those shareholders.
A request by joint holders of shares must be signed by all

such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office
of the Company for the attention of the Company

Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company Secretary will convene a GM on
behalf of the Board by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements or applicable

rules or regulations to all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders

concerned will be informed and no GM will be convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may themselves convene a GM, but any GM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be
proposed as a special resolution, the directors shall be
deemed not to have duly convened the GM if they do
not give such notice as is required by section 578 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).
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(Vl) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT

FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice
of a resolution if it has received requests from the

following number of shareholders:

() Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders having the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting

to which the request relates; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting

to which the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the
shareholders concerned; (b) may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form at the registered office of the
Company; (c) must identify the resolution of which notice
is to be given; (d) must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it; and (e) must be received by the
Company not later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company will give notice of the resolution or

circulate the statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

() the proposed statement is received in time to
enable the Company to send a copy of the
statement when the notice of annual general

meeting is despatched; or

(i) otherwise, the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in regard thereto not
later than 7 days before the annual general

meeting.

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later
than 7 days before the GM.
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e If the request is verified to be not in order or the
shareholders concerned have failed in the above manner
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company'’s
expenses for the said purposes, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no action will

be taken by the Company in that regard.

e  Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expenses to each
shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the annual general meeting in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the

meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation
and regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong). For further details on the
shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and timeline,
shareholders are kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to
567, 571, 578, 580 to 582, 610 and 615 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

(VI) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules
and the articles of association of the Company as amended
from time to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company
intends to propose a person other than a director of the
Company for election as a director of the Company at any

GM, the following procedures shall apply:

®  a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged with the Board at the

registered office of the Company;
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Q)

the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the GM appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such GM; and

in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the
nomination of a director must state the full name of the
person nominated for election as a director and include
the person’s biographical details as required by the
Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company's Articles of Association

in the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015 and 15

May 2018, the shareholders of the Company had approved

the amendments to the Articles of Association of the

Company. The changes were carried out in compliance with

the latest Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which
came into effect on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles of

Association is available in the Company’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE -#HEalkRE/HRES

ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
acknowledge the significance of effective environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") initiatives at an operational
level. The Group is committed to the principles of good
corporate governance, and strives to integrate corporate
social responsibility (“CSR") into its corporate ethos. In 2018,
the Group succeeded in both develop its business and at the
same time promoting initiatives for benefiting the
environment, its staff and the community, continuing to

contribute to the building of a harmonious society.

The principal activities of the Group are property investment,
investment holding and hotel management. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, our primary properties are located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
ranging from offices, commercial buildings, residential

buildings and industrial buildings.
REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide") as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("SEHK"). In the preparation of this ESG report, we adhere to
the four core principles of the ESG Guide, namely Materiality,
Quantitative, Balance and Consistency. In addition, we have
adhered to the ESG Guide in terms of the presentation and

measurement of data for this ESG report.

The reporting period of this ESG report is from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2018 (“Reporting Period”). During the
Reporting Period, the Group was principally engaged in
property investment, development and management, and
hence this ESG report relates mainly to those business

activities.
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

With the impact of global warming and environmental
pollution, the Group continues to seek opportunities to
protect the environment. We have integrated environmental
considerations into our business operations, including but not
limited to improving our environmental practices through
minimising pollution, utilising energy efficiently and reducing

waste in our daily operations.

ENERGY SAVING CHARTER

During the Reporting Period, the Group signed the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department’s Energy Saving Charter
2018 for the Chong Hing Bank Centre. This Charter promotes
energy efficiency and energy saving, one of the most critical
means for Hong Kong to continuously reduce its carbon
emissions. The Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
has set four targets in the Charter, namely (i) maintaining
indoor room temperatures between 24°C and 26°C during
summer, (ii) switching off appliances and systems when not in
use, (iii) procuring energy efficient appliances and systems
(e.g. appliances with Grade 1 energy labels/Voluntary Energy
Efficiency Labelling Schemes) and (iv) engaging staff to adopt

energy saving practices.

GREEN DESIGNS

The design philosophy of The Grand Riviera is to offer a
comfortable living environment to its residents which also
complies with all applicable environmental regulations. The
project therefore has 4 major ecological garden designs and a
garden avenue of up to one kilometre, with over 47% of its

land space being landscaped areas.

In addition, a water vapour spraying device is incorporated
into our supply system which runs by diesel-engine generator.
Emissions are minimised to comply with “the Standard for
Emission of Air Pollutants” of Guangdong Province. Sound
absorption control has been incorporated into the air inlets,
walls and ceilings in order to comply with the “Industrial
Enterprises Noise Standard Boundary” and “Acoustic
Environmental Quality Standards”. The elevator system is
controlled by a microcomputer to increase energy efficiency
and lower noise pollution; elevator fans and lights will be
turned off automatically once the elevator has not been

occupied for a period of time.
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EMISSIONS

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions have been reported to
have a major effect on climate change and global warming. In
response to environmental protection initiatives around the
world, and to minimise GHG emissions and non-hazardous
waste, we have implemented industry-standard measures and
initiatives in a number of aspects, including having energy-
efficient systems, implementing waste recycling and pollution

prevention.

During the year, we have participated in the Environmental
Protection Department’s Indoor Air Quality Scheme and have
been awarded “Indoor Air Quality Certification — Good
Class” for Chong Hing Square and Chong Hing Bank Centre.

In our policies and measures on environmental protection, we
encourage our employees to comply with our environmental
policies and meet the requirements of the relevant laws and
regulations. To comply with applicable environmental
protection laws and regulations, the operations of Chong Hing
Bank Centre, Chong Hing Square and Fairview Court are
governed by the requirements under ISO 14001:2015, which
is certified by the British Standard Institution.

B

BHE REREHFRERERELCRE
BRECEEASE HERURZHH
RRERE TRERVBREREHHRK
BERY BMEZESEERT T
FEERNTE BERKHRERS
B iR W K5 REEE o

FR-EMZ2EREREZENZENER
BRI AEESRAIERITHOE
BBEERNEZREZREFE(REFR)] -

ERARBEXEERALIE  KMZBEES
BFARNRRBER  UHEHEBER
RBFMNER - BAETFERARREREE
ERRM AIEETHO - BAIEESR
EERNEFRABERELSSRENISO
14001 : 2015 EEITERE ©



Air emissions during the Reporting Period are as follows: MEEABNES BT g
Unit 2018 07 [
B —F-)0\f “E—tE -
m
Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and vehicles =
KM RH A RSB H IR =
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) tonne 1,509.17 1,496.02 ’Z’
RALHNOK) ] o
Sulphur Oxide (SO,) tonne 7.51 7.44 8
FREALA(S0) W 3
A
>
GHG emissions during the Reporting Period: REHABNEE R EHER - 5
Unit 2018 2017 E
B —F-0\f 25 £
z
Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1) o
ERRERBHRRAR(EE1) e
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 104.03 114.65 &
RERNREF AR EREHER —&{kh(C0) M g
Methane (CH,) kg 234.20 258.11 w
FR5E(CHy) N 5
Nitrous oxide (N;0) tonne 15.10 16.64 n?'g
SALZAN0) i} 3
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)
BEREREHN(EE2)
Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 384.37 331.56
RELDRBENED =2 1LH(C0,) ]
Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 4.69 4.65
REBRERRATBENER —S{kH(C0,) W
Other Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 3)
HitEHRE RiE g (#E3)
Electricity used for processing fresh water and Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg 1,885.40 70647
sewage by government departments*
BRHMEERRKRSKEMEENE D Z21LH(C0,) Af
Business air travel by employees Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 15.86 16.36
EERLRBELIMAR = (0O ]
o The water consumption for our offices in Fung Yat Building and Fung Yip Building is based on latest ~ * BMELRAEREEABENRAZHARNERRHT TS
available data, which covers the periods 1 January 2018 to 25 October 2018 and 1 January 2018 to 26 B RESEABNA-E-NE-RA-RZE-Z2-\E+A
October 2018 respectively. ZtERRZE-NF-F-HBEZE-NF+A=txRH-

EvHEXTHEE R

& =

B E LV -
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

Our business operation did not generate any significant
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless,
we recognise the importance of waste reduction and thus
waste management measures have been introduced to
minimise both the amount of waste generated and the impact
on the environment. For example, to reduce paper
consumption, the Group installed automatic hand dryers
instead of providing paper towels in Chong Hing Square’s

washrooms.

In response to our encouragement of recycling, we are
pleased that the recycling rates of plastic and aluminium cans

are substantially increased during the Reporting Period.

FE 4 &1

RIMEHE - RANEBEEREEE
MEXEEREY BEWL - HMAZH
RO BEMNEEN - HILEREEEY
EEfE BERLELENBENEUR
BEHRENZLE - Hl - BRDHEER
HiE AEEERAERSNAFHZE
BEF2 - R ALRE

EREEEY  EMRSERSHEN
BRI tateE R K IE L -

Recycled materials during the Reporting Period: REEENBEE MR

Materials recycled Unit 2018 2017
BEMH B —F-0\f “E—tF
Plastic kg 2,107 82
-2 R

Paper kg 21,983 23,189
i Af

Aluminium Cans kg 8,112 101
iR A

Electronic Waste kg 50 50
TFEN o

USE OF RESOURCES ERER

We endeavour to capitalise on opportunities to reduce waste,
conserve water, and save energy in our facilities by making

innovations in terms of sustainability.

RMEBY A HEERERN - TEY
RIEEITIREE - BIKRETRERIEE o



ENERGY SAVING

Global warming and climate change are among the major
environmental problems in every part of the world. The Group
has established a series of measures to enhance awareness of
energy saving. We will continue to improve our energy saving
performance in the future. The Group’s attempts for
improving the energy efficiency of its operations during the

Reporting Period are highlighted below:

Bii e
ERECRRGELCRERASHHNEERE
REBAEZ— - AKECHE-RIE
AR SHESHE - RIS ERRESR
MERETREAR N - RIEHE - AEER
ReHEEMNERIRMEFHNERR
T

Head Office . Setand maintain average room temperatures between 24°Cand 26°C;
a3 BIHENBEREREFEREUEWEZR

° Switch off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors) that is not in use, and
BiETEANRARE (MITOH  SERRETR) R

. Switch off some passenger ifts after office hours.

ERDEHRERDIAEES

Investment Properties J Use light-emitting diode ("LED") lighting on buildings” exterior billboards;
REY= ERFHNENESREREL-BE(TLED)RA ;

° Switch off lighting in areas that are not occupied, and

BEFEABENER &

. Having dedicated staff conduct regular inspections and monitor energy consumption.

HEATHRER ERMLRERE o

Office Building for future Hotel .
ARBEEENETE

. Switch off some passenger ifts at mid-night.

EFREERBOHBEER -

Use double Low-E coating on external windows, to minimise the transmission of ultraviolet and infrared light, and

ENE LEREREBEGER  FERDRMRRANMRNES S R

Unit 2018 2017

B —F-0\fE “E—tF
Electricity Consumption kiwh 519,983.17 449,973.00
REE THE

kWh/employee 1,160.68 1,584.41

ThE/8I

The Group will continue to monitor and improve performance
on consumption levels of resources and further initiatives shall

be implemented if necessary.

AEBREERERRNEERBEKF
MR - TR M B R EEGE — 18 o
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PAPER USAGE

With regards to reducing paper consumption from our daily
operations, employees are reminded to reduce paper
consumption as a matter of good practice. During the
Reporting Period, the Group implemented initiatives to

achieve waste reduction and recycling.

WATER MANAGEMENT

With regards to our property management operations, the
main sources of water consumption for the Group are through
toilet flushing, cleaning, water taps and drinking water. In
accordance with the suggestions from the Water Supplies
Department, Chong Hing Bank Centre complies with the
standards of the Water Supplies Department’s Quality Water

455 £
SRR AR RN - RIR
RESRBRFEBRED AL REE
1A AEEE N EYRREE K
R -

KEREE

RYEECEERMS  AEENEEA
KRR ~ JER ~ KEERERAK o
HEKBEEWERZE  AIEERITHOER
KIEEBWAEEEHKZ T EIMZE -
RTRESORAK RMEXFRAME
RAEHERER TEKEBEERER

Supply Scheme for Buildings. To promote water conservation, FE28 » LUEHIFKE
signs and notices are posted near washbasins, and sensors are
installed at the water taps to control water consumption.
Unit 2018 2017
B —E-)\g —E-tF
Water Consumption* m° 2,130.39 819.00
FkE* ;PN
m°/employee 4.76 2.88
YEK/BI
* The water consumption for our offices in Fung Yat Building and Fung Yip Building is based on latest ~ * RMELRAERLEABNHAZEKBIENEH IS

available data, which covers the periods 1 January 2018 to 25 October 2018 and 1 January 2018 to 26
October 2018 respectively.

The Group will continue to monitor and improve our
performance on consumption level and further initiatives shall

be implemented if necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to any

pollution ordinances or regulations.

B REBESNA=E-\E-A-HE-2-\£1A
ZTERRZE-NF-A-BEZE-NF+AZTRB-

REBBEBEEER KB BEEKFHR
M WAER B EEEREGE — I

BE-Z-N\E+-A=1t—HLEE "
2 5= 18 30 R W B A A58 R AE AR 05 AR
FRGINTERBH



RECRUITMENT AND EMPLOYMENT

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets and
our success is to a significant extent underpinned by our
employees. We uphold this by implementing an all-
encompassing approach over recruitment, employment,
promotion and retention, coupled with reasonable
remuneration and benefits for our employees. In relation to
employment and labour practices, we strictly comply with the
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. We advocate
a community spirit that thrives on mutual respect and equal
opportunities, and we firmly comply with the relevant laws and

regulations.

The Group ensures that a fair and equal recruitment process is
used. Candidates are considered regardless of their gender,
age, race, family status, religion and disability. The Group
provides equal opportunities to all employees for promotion

and career development.

For the protection of candidates in the recruitment process,
we confirm that all candidate information will only be used for
recruitment purposes and can only be accessed by authorised
staff. Information on unsuccessful candidates will normally be

erased after twenty-four months of their applications.

A comprehensive framework incorporating detailed human
resources management policies is embedded in our Operation
Manual and Staff Handbook. The Operation Manual and Staff
Handbook provide information and guidelines to our staff in
both Hong Kong and the PRC in the areas of working
conditions, benefits and remuneration, training and
development as well as health and safety. Employees are also
encouraged to discuss their goals in job advancement and
career development with the senior management who oversee
their daily activities, and a performance appraisal is conducted

annually.

BB RER
AEBRNEEREEEE  TERM
PR ERE - HAIRALIER - H
EUSEHFHRENBE  ERFE - A
B REENGERE - HEREET
BEXSE EMBRETEEBRPEDN
FEERBRA - BAREZVUENEEE
RPERE/TNEREE BEET
MEEERRRH -

REBRREADFRFSHBERRF
RBETRBEMR - F& - Bk RE
MR RBEMRERER - I TFUE
B AEEAMERERHEBARBE
BROFERE -

REREBREPRERBE  HMAER
FIERBEERSERARBERE I
BERREREASEHN - REEARE
ENEREFSERBFRULE= 1 TE
BE&EMIBR

EMEHERSRE  BEFANALD
BREERX  UHTRNBEEFMRE
ITFM-REFMREIFMORMAE
FERERPENE TRETFERE  BF
FH - BIRREREREEZE2ESTEN
EARkiEs - HATSRESHEEZHR
BEZHNSREBASTRIESZH
FE*xuRREE YSETFERRT
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EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The Group strictly follows labour laws and regulations and
provides a comprehensive package to employees, which
covers sick leave, casual leave (i.e. a leave of absence at short
notice for personal matters or family emergencies), marriage
leave, compassionate leave, annual leave, injury leave and
statutory holidays. This system aims to take care of all
employees, expand the variety of corporate culture activities,

and increase the sense of belonging among employees.

During the Reporting Period, additional allowances were
introduced in the Group. Employees who are required to
report for duty under tropical cyclone warning signal No. 8 or
above or black rainstorm warning signal are eligible to apply
for over-time payment and allowances, such as meal allowance

and transportation allowance.

In addition to the basic social insurance program, the Group

provides a number of benefits, including:

e Group medical coverage (which extends to an

employee’s spouse)
e Training allowance for work-related training

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places heavy emphasis on ensuring the health and
safety of all employees. For example, all property
management staff are required to wear safety boots, which
provide a significant protection to employees. We ensure well-
stocked first-aid kits are placed in all floors in our offices. To
ensure that employees are aware of occupational health and
safety issues, the Group arranges safety training for all
employees. The Group has continued to optimise its work
practices and daily management for the sake of its staff’s
health and safety with the aim to create a safe, healthy and

comfortable working environment.

EE&EF

REEBKERS TEERRAN > OE
ERHEENKBRAIR  BERBR =
BRNEEASBRHRERER TR
RERFER) - &R BiMER- £/ T
EBREEERY - WENRKE L RE
2EES - MR BLEBNS T
LR EENEBR

R|BEHE > NEES|IABEMNER - A
ABENRIULBFRREESRERN
RERMESERENZE LHENES -
HMEERBBEMMERZE  flOER
RN B, o

BREXATSRETEIN  REETREME
ZIREN - B

- EFEREEERRR(BEREEM)

o TREEEEIIRIEINRRE

REZ2
AEEFEERBEAEREENRER
ZE BlU FRAEMEREEAEBHLE
FR2H - EHESHARRNREES -
EMBERESPHLENTERERESR
EHNERE  BEFREE THHEER
HZ2EH AEEAMBREEZHZR
2RI - ARERHREREETRE
HZENITFEBERAEER  UEY
22 RERTFENTHERE -



The Group emphasises on safety when using equipment in
workplaces by communicating safety precautions tips through
training, briefings and notices. Equipment operating
guidelines and procedures training sessions are provided
regularly to continuously promote and enhance employees’
safety awareness and practices. We are targeting zero
accidents and fatalities in 2019.

In addition, our property management business had obtained
OHSAS 18001 as certified by the British Standards Institution
in recognition of our compliance with occupational health and

safety requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
notice of non-compliance in relation to health and safety laws

and regulations.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We understand that human capital is a crucial part of our
business. Thus, we have established a series of training
programmes to ensure that all employees receive a significant
level of training. During the Reporting Period, we have

launched a series of training programmes for our employees.

To enhance the competitiveness of the Group and of the
relevant individuals, we have provided different training
sessions to senior management, and have also encouraged
employees from each level to participate in training sessions

offered by the Group.
LABOUR STANDARDS

During the recruitment process, the Group implements
appropriate procedures to ensure that employees adhere to
the minimum age provisions under the applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Reporting

Period, we did not engage in any forced and child labour.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to

employment and labour laws and regulations.

AEEEREI BHRERBENEERZS
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group aims to deliver top-quality services to the
customer, while expecting first-rate quality from selected
suppliers. When selecting suppliers, the Group studies the
background of potential suppliers, in order to choose
suppliers who can serve our best interests. We also require
our suppliers to strictly follow all relevant rules and

regulations.

The Group considers the environmental impact from our
suppliers’ products and to the extent practicable, favours
those who follow environmentally-sound practices such as
offering products with greater durability and greater energy
efficiency. Before procuring any materials or products, our
procurement staff examines the necessity of the product or
service to avoid any unnecessary consumption. During the
selection process, we take into account factors such as
product quality and safety. On the other hand, emissions and
pollutants generated such as noise and waste materials at all
stages are also one of our considerations for supplier
selection. For the sake of sustainability, we consider
alternatives when purchasing replacement products in favour

of those with greater durability and greater energy efficiency.

For the forthcoming hotel service in 2019, wherever
practicable, we have selected biodegradable products to
reduce impact on the environment. Priority will be given to
local suppliers in the hope of promoting local economic
development and reducing carbon footprint by shortening the

distance of transportation.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

To improve information security, a new document
management system was installed during the Reporting
Period. Folders and documents are protected and monitored
by multiple access permissions. By having different security
levels, access to information is restricted to relevant authorised

users only.

HresgEE
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Em) WHRER - ERBEAYHNER
ZH RBAESERERIRBRES
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The Group emphasises on the security of customers’ personal
data and supports a general policy of openness about how we
collect, use and disclose customers’ personal information. We
strongly recommend customers to take their time to carefully
read our Privacy Policy and Personal Information Collection
Statement when submitting their personal data and

information.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to data

privacy laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To prevent corruption, a tendering procedure is adopted for
all projects; all tender documents are kept confidential and
are restricted to concerned parties. The Group strictly follows

the relevant regulations and laws.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance brought against the
Group or an employee in relation to corruption-related laws

and regulations.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

We are committed to supporting the community by
incorporating social participation and contribution in our
strategic development. We believe that this will nurture a

great corporate culture and good practices in the Group.

AEBERREEFEAERNZE I
RUMAKE - EHARKEEFEAAESR
FHEZENIABR - EFREXEAE
HREMA  BAFARBERMNLE
BREBEABEHBERH -

BE—Z-N\F+-A=t+—-HLEFE -
AEETRWIEFMSREBERLE
EERBRAINTERBA

R&ES

RBILE)S - IAEBYRBERRER
FERBEXHETURE - EREBES
HERH - AREBREETHEBESRRE
o
BE—Z-/\F+-A=1T—HLEFE "
AEELARABIHHAIEEREENE
SR REFHEEERBINAIER
B o

[E1 65 # 2
HMEHS2EREMBARBER -
BOIZEHE - HMEEESREEH
BREMNEER THEER -

In June 2018, the Group's volunteers visited the Fu Hong Society
Rehabilitation Centre. Fu Hong Society operates over 40 service
units, providing services every year to about 3,600 persons with
disabilities. Our volunteers spent time with their members with

disabilities and played games with them.

ZE-N\FARR  AEENRIRGHKESREEDL - KESHEE
BAOERRTSEE(L - BF RBIEEI3,600BRHK A TRERH - FHPIAY
STERARALTIUER - I —BEBEERT -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE HEREABEE

In September 2018, we also visited the Hong Kong Women
Foundation Ho Kwok Pui-chun Social Centre. The centre
provides social services to the elderly who live in Central District.
Our volunteers celebrated the Mid-Autumn Festival with them

by making mooncakes and playing games.

“E-N\FLA  BATKSIERRLESESNBMLEREDO
ZHORBREETENRERHESRY - RMNBZIANMBM—E
BUEABRITEE - B E

In December 2018, our volunteers gathered to celebrate
Christmas with children from The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association
of Hong Kong. We made cookies and played group games with

b3
(=3
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them.

RE-BEME

During the Reporting Period, we took part in many community
activities. We strive to inspire our staff to play an active part in

social welfare initiatives.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Reporting Period, we have donated some office
equipment and furnitures to Caritas-Hong Kong, which is a
NGO in Hong Kong. Our donated furnitures were distributed
to The Jockey Club Online Youth Emotional Support and
Caritas Mother Teresa School, two of the new service units of

Caritas-Hong Kong.

EMPLOYMENT ENGAGEMENT

We believed that sharing happiness and care with those in
need and contributing to voluntary services promote stronger
community bond. We firmly believe that our staff can
contribute to the community by participating in voluntary
services whilst at the same time develop their personal
capabilities such as leadership, management and
communication skills. In 2018, our community engagement
services mainly focused on contributing to children and youth

development, and elderly care.

—E-N\F+Z A RfNRIBEHE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,

Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27

to the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides

and overview on the general disclosures and key performance

indicators (“KPls") of various aspects under each subject area,

which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of

the Review or supplementing the Review with additional

RIE HENESRTRSI

AEERBEBBHERZERAIAE
FETRAMSE-TENRE  HER
ERMERESI | MmE o TREULESIZE
BERTEABEMN -—REERBEREN
EE UHIGERABEESRZER
IR FRIN A o

information.
Description Reference Remark
30 2% et
ENVIRONMENTAL
Rz
Aspect AT: EMISSIONS
EEA: HH
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Protecting the Environment
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
—RIKE BEERRBZERBEN  MARIBNES FEREEEENNELE RERE
EH @BE RO)BFHRTABEAYENEDERRAFINES
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BREWEEN  HHEERABEREE 34
KPIAT.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. ~ Emissions
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREyESN BERRAYRE CMHE)R (WER)ZE (MUSESEN  BER #K
a8 o
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity N/A We do not generate hazardous waste
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). in our operations.
BRENESN] FMELEEEENAS UMHE) R (WER)ZE (MUBESEENL -8 TER BMNEBLESREE RN
R E) o EEREE o
KPIAT.A Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. ~ Waste Management
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BRENESNL FELEEEENAS UMHE)N (WER)ZE(MUSESEN - &8 BYER
HRIEE)
KPIA1.S Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Waste Management
BREWEENS  HAREHRENRERRAEAR - BEERE
KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction Waste Management
initiatives and results achieved.
BRENESN HIREREREZEZRVNDE  REELENERRMERR - BENEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiE -#HEalkRE/HRES

Description Reference Remark
Hhid 8% et

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Bz ()

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EEA | ERHIER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Use of Resources
materials.

—REE BRERER (BERR - KR EMER) K o ERER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)in total ~ Use of Resources
(kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). - Energy Saving

BRENEEN] RENISHEER/FBELRUE f)LHEUTETRN SREM-DHE
AR RBE (MLABEEEN  BEREE)

KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Use of Resources
facility). - Water Management
BRENERN HBREKEREE(WNASEEEN  §EREHHE) - ERER-KEREE
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Use of Resources
- Energy Saving
BRENERN  HRERERANETARAERER - BRER- s
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that s fit for purpose, water  Use of Resources - Water We encounter no issue in sourcing
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Management water that is it for our purpose
BRENERNL WERRERAKNRLAEEAEE  ARBARANSFAARAERR - EREA-KEFEE HAEERERKRLEILE
EAREE
KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with ~ N/A We do not generate significant
reference to per unit produced. packaging material waste in our
operations.
BREWERNS HRRAASRMENEE AR R (NER) BEEENGE - TEA BMMXBLESREEMA
M -

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
EEA  RERAAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and natural  Protecting the Environment

resourees.
—RIKE HERTAERERAAEREREAT BHHCE - RERE
KPIA3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Protecting the Environment

resources and the actions taken to manage them.
BRENESMS HIERTDHRERANEFNEAZENCRNEERHEZENTE - RERS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

0
N

EREREIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

EED : B

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Recruitment and Employment
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hour, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti- discrimination, other benefits and welfare.

—REE ERYMRSRE BERES  TERE - RE - TEHE 2ot R BERER
BERURHEMGBRENN  @BX  ROBTHRTABEAYEN
HEERRAHINER -

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender employment type, age group and geographical region. N/A

BRENEEs. kiR EREL  FRAFNRGEBIHINESEE - T~EH

KPIB1.2 Employee turnoverrate by gender, age group and geographical region. N/A

BRENESR  RUR - FRABNRGBEININESRALE - TR
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Description Reference Remark
Hhid 2% st
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

EEREIER(8)

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

EHB: REHZE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations ~ Health and Safety
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employee from occupational hazards.

—REE BRRUZ2THRERREEERCBEMREN (@HR . ROE REREZ2
FHETATEAMENHEEEERADNER -

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. N/A

BRENEEs. RIGBRMETHABREE.- T~EH

KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. N/A

BRENESR. RIGBAIFAH- T~ER

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are Health and Safety
implemented and monitored.

BREWEEE3  HARKANBERERZ2EE  UAREBITRERLE BEREZZ

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

EEB3 : RRREH

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.  Development and Training
Description for training activities.
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—RiKE ARERAEESRTIERENABRBENIE - HIEINED o BRI
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. N/A
BEENERZR RUEMREESER(WSEEEE  PHEEES HINTIEESEAL . TEA
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee genderand employee category. ~ N/A
BRENEEs. RUBRESERNES  SRESTARIINTIREY TER

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
EEB : £THE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Labour Standards
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
—REE BARARLEETHRHE TN @BK ROBTHRTABEAZEN FTER
HEERERAHINER -
KPIB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced N/A The child and forced labour issues are
labour. not material to our operations.
BREWESe  HiRHRRENNERLBRETRBFET - TER BEMNEXBLESRERET
MRHE THERRE -
KPIB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. N/A The child and forced labour ssues are
not material to our operations.
BREESs) HIEERERERREREBERMRRNTR - TER BINEBUBSRERET

MEBHE THERER -

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
EEBS - (HEHEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain Management 93
—RIKE EEMEENRER S RBREE - ftEEEE .
KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. N/A :
BREWEES HHEEINHREFHE - T~EA "
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the  Supply Chain Management =

practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. >

BRENESR HAAHRAMRBENES aEHTEREMNNHERHE - URAR HEEEE
BN TRERSE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiE -#HEalkRE/HRES

Description
i

Reference
8%

Remark

ot

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

RS TER ()

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

EHB6: EmMERE
General Disclosure

—RIE
KPIB6.1
B EIERB0.1

KPI B6.2

St AMIEE 862
KPI B6.3
B A ISR B63
KPIB6.4
B AN 1R 804
KP1B6.5

BB IS 15865

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BHFRUMERNBRENREEERZS - BY  SBERABSEUARERA
ER @EEK ROETHRETABEAYENEEERRAFINES
Percentage to total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health

reasons.
EENCEFERAYTAR 2 REREEAMARKNE AL «

Number of products and service related complaints received how they are dealt with.

EEBNERREBORFHE ARESTE

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
HlEREERRENBEEEENER o

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HiEEREARREREWRER o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.

WEEEERRERALRICE - UREBITRERERE

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility

EmEL

There were no recalls concering the
provision.
BEEEHERENIERE
L o
There were no validated complaints
received during the reporting review
period.
EECHERAREEIN
e
Intellectual property rights are not
material to our operations.
EMNEBEHNREABER
TEEAEE -
Recall procedures are not relevant to
our operations.
BERFEEMNERLRE
Rz -

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

BEB : RET
General Disclosure

—RIEE
KPIB7.1
BAGREIEZ 8.1
KPIB7.2

B A IR IR8T2

Information on (a) the policies: and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that they have a significantimpact on the issuer.

BEBLER BF  RFERAREN  @BF ROBTHETARE
BERAVENHBEERADNES o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period and the outcome of the cases.
REZBAHRTASEEEREYEFLANE ARV E Kk
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

W EERRERER  ARERMTRERE

Anti-Corruption
R&5
Anti-Corruption
RES

Anti-Corruption

REE

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

BB #HERE
General Disclosure

—RIEE
KPIBS.1
B SR ENIEIZ 8.1

KP1B8.2
BIRENIERB82

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
AEUHEZERT RE BN HEEEARREERIHEZEHE
FIEHBUR °

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

BT EREE (NHE RESHE $IER #E UL -8B
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIERMBAER (WEEARME) -

Giving Back to the Community

EtEE

Giving Back to the Community

EERHE

Giving Back to the Community

EtEE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Chung, MBBS (Lon), MRCP(UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKloD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, php, BBs, J.P.
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, CA(Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EEXE
PITEE
BRIERE
(EfE - EBEEIERITHAEHR)
BEELE
(B|EBHAEIE)
B3I o
(BRBIEELEZERESE)
FRIERE
EBITEE

B ZU B BE A MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P.(Lon)
FFERREHE
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
BIAFEHITES
ERRE 8 T GBMm, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
EERLEE
BB $818 L php, 8BS, J.P.
ZRER M 55 A4 Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
B & R JCHE CcAAust), CPA (Practising), CFE

ATHE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Asat7 March 2019 R=Z—hE=A+tH
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Cavior Liu (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

~EEHR

BEREEE
BRERA ST (£/E)

HREEL
B iRR L
EERLE
FEBERE (HEF)

REBEEET
BB L (£E)

RPERREE
EREA ST
BiRRLE
FRMEL
BERLE
FERELE (HF)

FIMEEE
BREEL (£EF)

BRMEL
ERERA ST A
B#HZELt (#E)

ERXEREET

B S (/%)
ERFLE
BRMEL
BEEEE
FREELE

PITEEZEE
BRIBERE (£E)

BEELE
BRI R
FREELE



SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Head of Property Development

Head of Finance Management

and Information Technology

Head of Human Resources

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine Head of China Budget Hotel

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

Mr. Tong Tse Hon

Ms. Hung Shuk Yee

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung, Peter
Ms. Tsia Fung Yee, Tina
Ms. Wong Yuk Man

Ms. Cheng Suet Kiu

Mr. Wong Ming Kwong
Mr. Ho Chi Chung

Mr. Pui Yuk, Ray

Head of Project Development

Head of China Property

Development
Head of Leasing

Head of Property and Facilities

Management

Senior Project Manager
Accounting Manager
Accounting Manager

Manager of Finance Management

and Information Technology
Maintenance Manager
Project Manager

Property Manager
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CORPORATE INFORMATION =2 & & %}

Asat7 March 2019 R=Z—-AFE=F+tH
SOLICITORS

Deacons

Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.

P.C. Woo & Co.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank, Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

CMB Wing Lung Bank

{E:0

R A IT
RN BT
[k xE S

% S5 Bl
mE « BERS ST

B FEE AT

R1T
BFTRTEBBRAF
SR1T (BIFR) BRRAE)
RIBRITARDF

HETFEERTROBRAAERDT

ERIRIT (HB)BRQF
EHRIT(BEB)BRAA
BEBTERAT

KA EH=ZUFJIRITERAF
FFEERITAERATA
HEFKFRITERDA
BITIRIT (FB) BRAA

BB LLBELRITHERAA
RERITERQA

B KERITHERA



0
o
B
o

REGISTERED OFFICE o M 3% == B2 2
3

23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre B8 >
z

24 Des Voeux Road Central EmEEAR YR Zm
>

Hong Kong AIESRITR O =T =8 E
o}

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7725 B 1 (852) 29837777 fBE : (852) 2983 7725 E
A

Email: info@Ichi.com.hk E . info@lchi.com.hk ;
)
E

GUANGZHOU OFFICE EUEE N 3

18A Office Tower A REIEM™ 2
!

339 Huan Shi Dong Road BEE g‘

o — B

Yue Xiu District RMREB==N15% ]
s

Guangzhou, PRC A 18AE ®

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071 E55 1 (8620) 83758993 fEE : (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn EH : guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE LSRR

Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center HRE e

288 Nanjing Road West MRAR AN

Shanghai, PRC RIEEFA L3105 F

Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299 B 1 (8621) 63591000 EE : (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@Ichi.com.cn ZH : shanghai@Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN OFFICE LR R

First Phase, The Grand Riviera hEERE

1 Guilong Road HFBILTEEE

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town MmLUEEN TS EERARER

Nanhai District, Foshan BEXK - 99
L4

Guangdong Province, PRC 2PN TEE —HB 2
22

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218 E5 © (86757) 63860888 EH. : (86757) 6386 2218 :
i

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn EH : foshan@Ichi.com.cn .
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGHIT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 79, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 9
August 2017. Mr. Liu has been serving as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26
February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liu also serves as
the Chairman of Executive Management Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a
number of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship
in any other public listed companies in the previous three
years. Mr. Liu is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Chung, an uncle of
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 52, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu
holds a Master degree in Economics from the University of
London, specialising in Finance and Macro Economic Policy.
Mr. Liu oversees the Company’s strategic development,
project implementation and business operations. Mr. Liu also
served as a member of Corporate Governance Committee
and Executive Management Committee as well as a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. His other
directorship in public listed companies in the last three years
includes Freeman Financial Corporation Limited, which is a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship
in any other listed public companies in the last three years. Mr.
Liu is a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a
cousin of Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.

BITES
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tt+hm B-ZE—tFENAhBEH
ERLABRNEEERER A BEALEH
—E-mOFE-_A-t+AABEBHEEALXA
RESARERTHREAR B—NtT
FARQABHILBEHARARHITES ©
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E&EkE

BA., MSc.

E+Zm B-AhtFBEZREAS
RAHITES R=ZEZNF/NAEB
BEZERALARESHEE - BEE
FERAKRBEBEELT BN TEY
BREABEERER BXEBRAEAR
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 43, is an Executive Director of the Company, a position
which he has held since August 2008 following a re-
designation from his previous role since 2000 as Non-
executive Director of the Company and alternate director to
Dr. Liu Lit Chung (who is a Non-executive Director of the
Company). Mr. Liu also serves as the Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Executive Management Committee as well as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is a holder of
a Master of Arts degree in Jurisprudence from the University
of Oxford. He is also a qualified solicitor in both Hong Kong
and England & Wales. Prior to joining the Company on a full-
time basis, he was a partner of Deacons in Hong Kong, with a
primary focus in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and private equity matters. Mr. Liu is a member of the Foshan
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) as well as a director of both
Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (COFA). Mr. Liu is
also a director of the Federation of Hong Kong Foshan
Association Limited, Hong Kong GuangFoZhao Fraternity
Association Limited, the Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Community Organization, Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce, an Executive Director of Guangdong Chamber of
Foreign Investors, a Vice-chairman of Foshan Investment
Chamber of Private Enterprises, a member of Hong Kong-
Shanghai Economic Development Association Limited and a
director of Shanghai Huang Pu District Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment. With a passion for the
betterment of society and education, he is also a member of
the Institutional Review Board of Hong Kong University/
Hospital Authority Hong Kong West Cluster and the Joint
Chinese University of Hong Kong — New Territories East
Cluster Clinical Research Ethics Committee as well as a school
manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed
public companies in the previous three years. He is the son of
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a cousin of Mr.

Liu Kam Fai, Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGHIT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG
LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 56, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law
degree, a Master of Business Administration degree and
Postgraduate Diploma in Construction and Real Estate. He is
also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining
the Company, Mr. Lee had worked in an international
accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee has over twenty
eight years of experience in corporate finance and accounting.
Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was appointed as
director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible for the

Company'’s finance and secretarial matters.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. LIU LIT CHUNG

MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)

aged 69, became a director in 1979 and also the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company for over ten years. He
holds a Medical degree from King’s College Hospital, London
University and is a Member of the Royal College of Physicians
of the United Kingdom. He was awarded the Fellowship of
Royal College of Physician of London for his work in Motor
Neuron Disease. In 2005, he was further awarded the
Honorary Fellowship by the Hong Kong College of Physicians.
Dr. Liu is the brother of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, an uncle of Mr. Liu Kam
Fai, Winston and the father of Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect,
A.P. (Architect), MHKloD

aged 56, served as Non-executive Director of the Company
since May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
degree on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of
Architecture degree. He is an Authorized Person under the
Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect under the
Architects Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects, a corporate member of Royal
Institute of British Architects, an associate member of Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, a member of Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada and an associate member of
American Institute of Architects. Mr. Kho was an Executive
Committee of the University of Waterloo Alumni Association
and a Committee Member of the University of Manitoba
Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the year from
1997 to 2003, he was a Director and Council Member of the
Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students Association Limited. Mr.
Kho is also a Committee Member of the Professional
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed as
an Executive Committee Member of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce and Director of Fukien Chamber of

Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGHIT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 69, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 1999 and he is now serving
as a Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is a
practising solicitor and the Consultant of Messrs. P.C. Woo &
Co. He is also serving as Chairman of The Insurance Authority.
Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong
Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of International
Alliance of Practising Lawyers. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in China
Mobile Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited (Formerly known as China Resources Enterprise,
Limited), China Gas Company Limited, K. Wah International
Holdings Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian An
China Investments Company Limited, Towngas China
Company Limited and Kader Holdings Company Limited, all
being public listed companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng's
other directorship in public listed companies in the last three
years includes ARA Asset Management Limited, which was
formerly listed in Singapore. Save as disclosed above, Dr.
Cheng did not hold any directorship, whether in Hong Kong
or overseas, in any other public listed companies in the

previous 3 years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 79, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also
serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and London
respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975
and in Hong Kong in 1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur
Au & Co., a firm of solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is
a Notary Public and was a member of the Notary Public
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He is also a School Management
Committee Member of the Clementi Secondary School. He
now serves as legal adviser to the Association of Hong Kong
Nursing Staff (previously named as the Association of
Government Nursing Staff) and The New Territories North
District Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District Governor of Rotary
International District 3450 (Hong Kong/Macao/Mongolia) in
1990-1991.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGHIT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN

PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he is
serving as a member of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma currently is the Executive
Director of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited, this
is a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He has extensive experience in the catering
industry, as well as property management and development.
He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison
University in 2004. As for the community service, Dr. Ma was
the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year
2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Advisory Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the President of Youth Council. He also serves
as the Vice Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, Vice President of Hong Kong Chiu
Chow Chamber of Commerce and the Vice President of
Kowloon Federation of Associations. On 1 July 2015, Dr. Ma
was appointed to Justices of the Peace by The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Save as
disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in any

other public listed companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA (Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

aged 58, was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 7 March 2014 and he is now
serving as a Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from London
School of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr.
Cheng has over 20 years' of expertise in accounting, finance
and corporate advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, C.P. Lotus
Corporation, CSI Properties Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited,
Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited,
Top Spring International Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, Somerley Capital Holdings Limited and
Kidsland International Holdings Limited, the abovementioned
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any
directorship in any other public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or

overseas in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGHIT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. TONG TSUN SUM, ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit and the nomination
committee of the Company in March 2018. He obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from University of Sydney, Australia, a
Master of Commerce in Professional Accounting from
Macquarie University, Australia. He is a member of CPA
Australia, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand. He is also a member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, the Governance Institute of

Australia and the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MS. EVA LIV
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 55, Head of Property Development. Ms. Liu is a
Chartered Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in
Architecture from the University of Cambridge, and Property
Valuation And Law from The City University in London. She
was in architectural practice in England before joining the
Company in 1999. She is the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai,

Winston.

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 51, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant, holding
Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over
twenty eight years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Luk joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of
Finance Management Department and Information

Technology Department.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. CAVIOR LIU

aged 54, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Liu holds a Bachelor
degree in Psychology from University of British Columbia. She
joined the Company in 2000, in charge of Human Resources &
Administration Department. Ms. Liu is a school manager of Liu
Po Shan Memorial College. She is the sister of Mr. Liu Kam

Fai, Winston.

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 44, Head of China Budget Hotel. Ms. Yan joined the
Company in 2007. Ms. Yan was educated in Vancouver,
Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had worked
with various mainland companies at senior management post
for leading and handling numerous successful real estate
projects including the Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top
residential villa projects in Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has
extensive experience in business club operations both in
Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is currently in charge of the
Company'’s budget hotel business.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA
aged 55, Head of Project Department. Mr. Pan is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and has over twenty years
of experience as a practicing architect in both UK and Hong

Kong. Mr. Pan joined the Company in 2006.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 50, Head of China Property Development. Mr. Jan
joined the Company in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional
engineer with over twenty years of construction and project
management experience representing Clients, Consultants
and Contractors on both private sector and government

funded projects in China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGHIT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MR. TONG TSE HON

BBA (First Class Honor), CFP

aged 50, Head of Leasing, holding a Bachelor (First Class
Honor) Degree in Business Administration and a Certified
Financial Planner conferred by the Institute of Financial
Planners of Hong Kong. Mr. Tong joined the Company in
2004.

MS. HUNG SHUK YEE

aged 54, Head of Property and Facilities Management. Ms.
Hung holds a Master Degree in Business Administration of the
University of Hull. She has over twenty years of experience in
general administration, procurement and facilities
management in the banking sector. Ms. Hung joined the
company in 2016 and is in charge of the Property and Facilities

Management Department.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BREREAFXKEBSE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting
of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for
the year 2019 (“2019 AGM") will be held at 27th Floor, Chong
Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on
Thursday, 16 May 2019 at 11:00 a.m. for the following

purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated Financial
Statements together with Reports of the Directors and of
the Auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.48 per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2018 Final Dividend").

3. Tore-elect (a) Mr. Liu Lit Chi, (b) Dr. Liu Lit Chung, (c) Mr
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and (d) Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John as
directors of the Company, and to fix the directors’

remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2019.

4. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board of

Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or

without modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. "THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to Buy-back shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange
on which the shares of the Company may be listed
and which is recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other
stock exchange (as amended from time to time), be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRREAFKEBSE

6.

(b)

the aggregate number of shares of the Company
which the Company is authorised to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of
passing of this resolution, and the said approval

shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the

earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be
held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

“"THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares in the capital of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and any
securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company) which
would or might require the exercise of such power
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

6.
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(b)

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including bonds,
warrants, debentures, notes and any securities
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such power after the end of

the Relevant Period;

the aggregate number of shares allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and
issued by the directors of the Company pursuant to
the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);
(ii) the exercise of any rights of subscription or
conversion under any warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and any securities of the Company which carry
rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares
of the Company; (iii) an issue of shares of the
Company upon the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to any options granted under any
share option scheme adopted by the Company; (iv)
an issue of shares as scrip dividends or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of
the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company from time to time; or (v)
specific authority granted by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, shall not exceed 20%
of the aggregate number of issued shares of the
Company at the date of passing of this resolution,
and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;

and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the

earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company; or

(b)
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(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be
held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares or any class of shares of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares as
at that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements
of any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory applicable to the

Company).”

“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5 and
6 set out in the notice convening this meeting being
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company to exercise the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to
Ordinary Resolution No. 6 set out in the notice convening
this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition
thereto of an amount representing the aggregate
number of shares of the Company bought back by the
Company under the authority granted pursuant to
Ordinary Resolution No. 5 set out in the notice convening
this meeting, provided that such extended amount of
shares so bought back shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate number of issued shares of the Company at

the date of passing of this resolution.”

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRREAFKEBSE

(i) BREEBEMFE622EL
ARBINA A B 2~ FA
BERAURE AT
TERREAFAEATHE
THIRRE®MZ B ;=

(i) XABRRARERE L
BRALTRAREREE F
FRIEFT A RBERFTES
ZEREZA R

[BEEHRIEARARRZESER
EEHIERREERZ A A
IARLDBRREMZAQT R
DEREMERRBZFEA
BRRERZH 2 FRELHIRE
BREROD(ERRFZESEH
REREROIVEEREBRARNE
RAEZEF B EEBEEG 2
EfRIPR B SR EAE AR A B
ERBREARERZ 2B
R FHREABLFRNE
EZBURRENTHHAZFZ
B e |

[BREARARESBESHEESR6E
BERBRERBRER  BAARRQF
EZRRTARSEERARESE
CEERRBRAUTEARQAED
LB - #ITYRERD 2 —RE
B EEELSMEERAQXFRE
AREBERHESHEEERER
RY2&BEAEBARR 2RO H
B EZMEZEBEROEME TE
BBERAARRNAZREBAME
TR BEZ10% - |



8.

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2019

Notes:

1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM is entitled to appoint another
person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A member who is the holder of two or more shares
may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it
is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the Company's Share Registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
any adjournment thereof.

Record dates of entitlements of the Members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM to be held on Thursday, 16 May 2019, whose name should be recorded in the Company's
shareholders book on Thursday, 16 May 2019. The Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 10 May 2019 to Thursday, 16 May 2019, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2019 AGM, all share certificates with completed transfer
forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged with the Company's Share Registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
9 May 2019.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2018 Final Dividend, whose
name should be recorded in the Company's shareholders book on Friday, 24 May 2019. The
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2019 to Friday, 24
May 2019, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged for registration with the
Company's Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 21 May 2019.

The registration for attending the above meeting will start at 10:30 am on 16 May 2019.

The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of any inconsistency, the English
version shall prevail.

If a Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted or a Black Rainstorm Warning Signal is in force at or at any
time after 8:00 am on the date of the meeting, the meeting will be postponed or adjourned. The
Company will post an announcement on the Company website (www.lchi.com.hk) and HKEXnews website
(www.hkexnews.hk) to notify shareholders of the date, time and place of the rescheduled meeting.

The meeting will be held as scheduled when an Amber or a Red Rainstorm Warning Signal is in force.
Shareholders should decide on their own whether they would attend the meeting under bad weather
condition bearing in mind their own situations.

A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i) re-election of Directors and (ii)
general mandates for the buy back and issue of shares will be sent to shareholders today along with the
Company's 2018 Annual Report.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive Directors: Mr. Liu Lit Chi
(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing
Director), Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher (also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) and Mr. Lee Wai
Hung; Non-executive Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Chung and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and Independent
Non-executive Directors: Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John,
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
mEEZ K mEE X

Closing Price per Share SR H{E

NOTE:  Closing price (HKS) are extracted from the web site of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. (Stock code: 00194)
W : BRBTENREEEBSRZAERARME - (RBAR : 00194) 0

LasftTra;‘iin D?‘t CIOSI?‘ggﬁjghar Market (';:_aE{Ealization .
sadifont SR e —®—tE=E-F-NFT=A
SRRERZH (HKS 7B#) (HKS in million ¥ B & T ) HK$ 5
14
21112017 10.76 4,074
28122017 11.18 4233 ”
311312017 11.10 4,202
10
28142017 12.28 4,649
31/5/2017 12.08 4573 ]
30/6/2017 12.02 4,551
311712017 12.92 4,891 6
311812017 12.78 4,838
4
291912017 13.08 4,952
3 B B B SHSEEE
3111012017 13.40 5073 2 iy M N N N PN PN BN
301112017 13,52 5118 . HHBEEBE HHEHHE
2911212017 13.50 5111
311112018 13.40 5073
280202018 1288 487 Market Capitalization &
March 2017 to December 2018
“ZE—tF=RAE-F—-)/\F+=A
29/3/2018 12.68 4,800 HK$ in Million B EE T
6,000
30412018 12.66 4,793
31/5/2018 12.60 4770
5,000
29/6/2018 12.40 4,694
311712018 12.40 4,694 A
31182018 11.88 4,498
116 281912018 11.90 4,505 3,000
% 31/10/2018 11.32 4,286
: 30112018 1174 445 2000
% 3112/2018 12.16 4,604
; 1,000

30/06/2017 4,551
29/09/2017 4,952
2911212017 5111
29/03/2018 4,800
29/06/2018 4,694
28/09/2018 4,505
3111212018 4,604
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LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
2 Al & B 1L 2218 B

Asat31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\E+ZA=1+—-HILEE

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED LIU'S HOLDINGS LIMITED OTHER INVESTORS

EESERRAT EREERRAT HiprEE

17.97% 34.95% 47.08%

*LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED
*ERIEERFRAS

Property Property Property Trading & Hotel
Investment Development Management Manufacturing Business
MERE MEER MEEE EARHE EEEY

Chong Hing *+ONE-EIGHT-ONE Liu Chong Hing Maanshan Gaoke

Bank Centre Holel § Serviced Residences &Agency Limited Company Limited Yue Xiu Pan Fu

BIBRTHD **ONE-EIGHT-ONE ERRMEEER E Il E RS BRI SR

LRI R REARAT ARAE
100% 100% 100% 51.54% 100%

" Guangzhou Wealth Good
Chong Yip Centre e GFrzg'?a}:wera Property Management
CIET ] BHENE Company Limited
B A
(#l) HEERARLT

100% 90% 100%

Fairview Court

EEE

100%

Chong Hing Square
RIE RS

100%

Chong Hing Finance Centre

Shanghai
LiBRIESRP

100%

* Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
* EREABBHARZMARAR LS
** Formerly known as Western Harbour Centre

~ BREB S

Property Management Magnetic Material Hanting Express-Guangzhou
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

KEBETEYER

As at 31 December 2018 R=E—\F+=A=+-H

Description

i

Interest in
the property
attributable
to the Group

FEBERLZ

LIES -

Approximate

site area

(sq.ft)

Bmae B
(¥AR)

Total gross

floorarea

(sq.ft)

HEEeERE
(FER)

Existing use

Bkediikas

Investment properties
REWEF

Hong Kong:

B8

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central
RIEERATA O
EEER

2. Chong Yip Centre
402-404 Des Vloeux Road West
s
BEEETIL02-404 57

3. Fairview Court
94 Repulse Bay Road
EE2H

RKEIBIAS

4. The Westwood
8 Belcher's Street
AaEY
BB

100%

100%

100%

10%

7,100

32,400

30,000

110,000

54,000

26,000

221,900

411,900

Kowloon and New Territories:
NEERHR

5. Chong Hing Square
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
AIEES
B A RRIE6015

o~

Bonsun Industrial Building
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BRI%AE

ZE IR B 364-3665%

~

Chatham Place

388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom
AEs

AR RE L3885

100%

100%

10%

12,300

18,000

182,000

8,200

61,000

251,200




Description

{3

Interest in
the property
attributable
to the Group

FEBERLZ

LEL

Approximate

site area

(sq. ft)

Bmane B
(¥AR)

Total gross

floorarea

(sq. ft)

HEEeEEE
(FAER)

Existing use

BR AR

Investment properties
REWF

Peaple’s Republic of China:
FEARHFE

8. Chong Hing Finance Center
No. 288 Nanjing Road West
Huang Pu District
Shanghai
AIBEEF AL
i<
FIR PR 2865

9. The Grand Riviera
West of Luocun
Luocun Social Management Office
Shishan Town
Nanhai District
Foshan
ZhENER
il
MsE
MUEENHEEER
HREER

100%

90%

55,000

103,000
413,000
180,000

110,000
73,000

879,000
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

KEBETEYER

As at 31 December 2018 R=E—\F+=A=+-H

Interestin
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq.ft) (sq.ft) Existing use
FEBERLZ B BmE HEEeERE
iz LIES - (FER) (FER) HERR
Investment properties
REWF
Japan:
BE:
10. Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre 50% 102,800 193,600 w
296-1,294-1,301-2, 301-1, 300-1, 299-1, 302-1, 295-1,
Oaza Shingo, Higashi Matsuyama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
R AR
15 R BRI Oaza Shingo,
2961~ 294-1 > 301-2 ~ 301-1 ~ 300-1 ~ 299-1 » 302-1 » 295-1
11. Kakegawa Logistics Centre 50% 509,000 457,000 w
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka Prefecture
IR AU
EF S| T Shobugaike 10257
12. Hadano Logistics Centre 0% 53,700 104,000 W
548-1, Aza Haihata, Soya, Hadano-Shi, Kanagawa Prefecture
RHMRAO
1653 )| 8422 B Soya, Aza Haihata, 548-1
754,600
Australia
-0
13. 589-599 Torrens Road, St Clair, South Australia 0% 319,800 161,600
2,458,300
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Interest in >
the property Approximate Total gross :
attributable site area floor area z
Description to the Group (sq.t.) (sq.ft.) Existinguse  Status 3
AEEEGZ  BOBBEE  LEEREER S
1k ES (EAR) (ERR) REAE IRER E
Properties under development o
BRAYE o
Hong Kong: a
BE Z
o
14, ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & 100% 10,800 162,000 H  Construction in progress E
Serviced Residences mIETH =
181-183 Connaught Road West ©
ONE-EIGHT-ONBE & R R\ 1E = N
THiB7181-183%% Il
X
15, Various Lotsin D.D. 29 100% 262,000 nfa nfa  Planning i
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po TER TER  EE e
KT A% ¥
29351 87
162,000
C=Commercial B3 H=Hotel & /& I=Industrial T P=Car Park By R=Residential ¥ 0=0ffice EF#
S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities € Fi7 & BE 4% e W=Warehouse & &
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION B 3R & #}

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 7 March 2019

BMEAsSR=-2—h&E=AtH
RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
EEA
Interim Results
for six-month ended 30 June 2018
BE-Z—N\HFAXA=THL
NEB 2 HEIEE

Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2018
BEz—Z-\HF+=ZA=+—HBL1
FEZEFRE

Announced on 8 August 2018

ER=ZZE-N\FENANB LM

Announced on 7 March 2019

ERZEBE-NEF=AtHLAMH

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
BREXE

Annual General Meeting

RERBFRE

Latest time to lodge transfer forms
BB F X RERR

Closure of Register of Members

(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements

to attend and vote at the 2019 Annual
General Meeting)
EERERNBFERTFE
(REERRLEE_Z—hL&F
BRAFAEREE)

To be held on 16 May 2019
BRZE-NFRATRBET

4:30 pm on 9 May 2019
—P-NEEAARTFOE=15H

From 10 May 2019 to 16 May 2019
(both days inclusive)

- NEEA+AE-E—NERA+AA
(ERMAGIEER)




CASH DIVIDENDS
HElkB

Interim cash dividend

HHRERE

Paid on
B

Proposed final cash dividend
BRRBRERE

Payable on
XITEH

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
RERERER

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

ERBF X R EHR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining
entitlements to receive
the final dividend)

HENERDBFELRTFE
(fEEARWERERE)

HK$0.22 per share
BRER0.227T

14 September 2018
—E-NFAATHIA

HK$0.48 per Share

BB 0.487T

4 June 2019

—ZE-hFARANA

20 May 2018

—E-N\FHAZ+H

4:30 pm on 21 May 2019
—E-NAFHEAS+-HTFOB=17%

From 22 May 2019 to 24 May 2019
(both days inclusive)

—E-NERA-t+-HRE=ZE-NAEHEA=1+MAH

(BEEMABEERN)
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION B 3R & #}

Share Registrars and transfer office

RIDECRERE

Share listing

Stock Code
B2 X85

Board lot
=§=1--ti

No. of issued ordinary share

ERITEBRRROEE

Company'’s e-mail address

NE)BE U

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE KRR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services

Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BERAPRELSZLEBRLATA
BERBEFERRER—N\=5
EMHBROTERB—t—Z=F—t— M

The Company’s shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
KARRENBBHERSIBERAE
HEEE

00194
00194

2,000 shares
2,000 %

378,583,440 shares
378,583,440 fix

info@Ichi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Hilda Chan
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group") set out on
pages 134 to 256, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter as they represented 60% of the Group's total
assets, combined with the judgements associated with
determining the fair value. As disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment properties
are located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The carrying amounts of investment properties
amounted to HK$8,701,400,000 as at 31 December 2018 and
a gain on changes in fair value of HK$436,055,000 was
recorded in the profit for the year then ended.
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As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group's investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the valuations performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (“Valuer”). Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. The
valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method and income capitalisation method, which are
dependent on certain key inputs and assumptions in respect
of prevailing market conditions such as unit sale rate, reversion

yield and monthly market rent.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity

of the Valuer;

e  Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions to assess if the adopted approach

is appropriate for the respective properties;

e  Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methods
used based on our knowledge of the property markets in
Hong Kong and the PRC; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs, including
unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific information
and market data based on our knowledge of the property

markets.

VALUATION OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

We identified the valuation of properties held for sale as a key
audit matter due to the judgements associated with
determining the net realisable value of the properties held for
sale. The carrying amount of properties held for sale situated
in the PRC is HK$848,993,000 as at 31 December 2018 and an
impairment loss of HK$74,703,000 was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the future selling prices are estimated by reference to the
recent selling prices of similar properties in the same project
or relevant locations. The management also estimated the
future selling expenses by reference to the actual selling
expenses of the Group’s completed projects, adjusted by

certain current market data.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the properties

held for sale included:

e  Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future
selling prices of the properties held for sale, on a sample
basis, by comparing them to recent transaction prices of
similar properties in the same project or relevant
locations, based on our knowledge of the property
markets in the PRC; and

e Comparing the estimated future selling price of
properties held for sale, on a sample basis, to the actual
selling price of properties sold subsequent to the end of
the reporting period to evaluate the reasonableness of

the management's estimation.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
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e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
7 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

PN

AN

BEm R

2018 2017
—F-0\f “E-tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 BT T BT T
Revenue g 5
Goods and services EmRRH% 1,394,016 1,793,003
Rental income A ON 355,739 365,611
Interest and dividend income MERKERA 86,470 56,737
1,836,225 2,215,351
Direct costs HERA (878,151) (1,290,323)
958,074 925,028
Otherincome Hetg A 21,411 8,506
Administrative and operating expenses THREERS (203,725) (217,886)
Other gains and losses HitlaR R EE 7 407,618 278,911
Finance costs g 0% 8 (19,122) (26,658)
Share of results of joint ventures frifaehEEE 61,752 1,645
Profit before tax BRBLADER 1,226,008 969,546
Income tax expense FiEHi 9 (178,086) (195,730)
Profit for the year REEGF 10 1,047,922 773,816
Profit for the year attributable to: REERFIDER :
Owners of the Company ARARR 1,014,267 744,888
Non-controlling interests FERRRES 33,655 28,928
1,047,922 773,816
Basic earnings per share BREXRF 13 HK$%#2.68 HK$8#1.97




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #F&#E@m Kk H 2 H WK &=k

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE =
2
2018 2017 >
“5-0\% —E-tfF =
HK$'000 HK$'000 3
BETT Lar T ©
Profit for the year FERERT 1,047,922 773,816 g
8
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hitr2E () k& =
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEEN T EZEnkZER #*
Fair value losses on investments in equity instruments R APEEFAZMBEZERE 2
atfair value through other comprehensive income BETANTEESSE
("FVTOCI") (59,362) -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: B# As¢EH 7 EZ B4 k2EE -
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBNEBEEZERZR
foreign operations (187,453) 246,044
Share of other comprehensive expense of jointventures ~ FifE A& EHE M2 E X H (6) -
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments AEHERE 2 AT EERR = 37,939
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to Rt EREREFREH
profit or loss in relation to impairment loss EfpBYEER
on available-for-sale investments REBRHE = 39,860
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year AEEEMEE (XH) BE (BHE)
(net of tax) (246,821) 323,843
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZHAKGEE 801,101 1,097,659
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2EBELBEIRRN :
Owners of the Company NG| 775,377 1,057,499
Non-controlling interests FERRRES 25,724 40,160
801,101 1,097,659
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=AM EBIROR &

As at 31 December 2018 R=E—\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—F-)\§ “Z—tE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HirsE BT T BT T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties REME 14 8,701,400 8,392,900
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE 15 124,079 125,804
Properties under development BRAYE 15 1,244,922 1,207,006
Interests in joint ventures RELERER 17 292,987 192,210
Investments in securities EHRE 18 584,607 690,486
Long-term loan receivables REEKER 20 - 4,763
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 27 31,469 3,850
10,979,464 10,617,019
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development for sale FHERERNE 16 - 659,998
Properties held for sale BHEME 16 860,707 555,975
Inventories FE 19 29,900 26,949
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A EURERT: 20 88,667 115,285
Contract costs WA 21 20,305 -
Investments in securities BERE 18 22,563 16,793
Derivative financial instruments SRTETE 26 - 26
Taxation recoverable B SN 33,458 20,706
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BAZEREEHZ
maturity when raised EHRTER 22 18,347 359,796
Bank balances and cash BOERRES 22 2,460,110 2,162,588
3,534,057 3,918,116
Current liabilities REaR
Trade and other payables B 5 RHMEMIRR 23 244,799 1,001,766
Contract liabilities Y )= 24 539,128 -
Derivative financial instruments SRITETR 26 218 -
Taxation payable PR BR 137,713 100,005
Borrowings — due within one year EH-R—EREIH 25 867,818 383,655
1,789,676 1,485,426
Net current assets REEEFE 1,744,381 2,432,690
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 12,723,845 13,049,709
Non-current liabilities E1 1= 1
Rental deposits from tenants mEFRRZEERE 56,105 98,597
Borrowings — due after one year R - R —F R I 25 - 864,345
Derivative financial instruments SRTETR 26 7,252 790
Deferred tax liabilities EERBERE 27 263,420 247,102
326,777 1,210,834
12,397,068 11,838,875




L
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2018 2017 S

—E-\f —E—tF >

NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000 B

(i3 BETT Lar N ©

Equity it =

Share capital R 28 381,535 381,535 w

Reserves e 11,951,238 11418154 [

Equity attributable to: REDER :

Owners of the Company RAFRE 12,332,773 11,799,689
Non-controlling interests FERRRES 64,295 39,186
Total equity RiEEE 12,397,068 11,838,875

The consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 256 #ENE 1342256 EZREMBHRERE N
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of —Z—AWF=ZA+tHEZESSHERR

Directors on 7 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: T TATIALTRREE:
MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
BEANEkE EEfi s
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FREEEEE

FE EBREERITHABHR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ReEmEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

At 1 January 2017 R=—ZE—tHF—HF—H
Profit for the year NEEEF

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to profit or loss in relation

to impairment loss on available-for-sale investments

MEBINEBIEE 2 ERE5

AtHERE 2 AP EERS

AHHEREREBREEHNEHN 2 EE
BmiR 2 REEhHE

Other comprehensive income for the year REEHMEEIE
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEWNHBEE
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12) EEREDIRZIRE (FEE12)

At 31 December 2017

RZZB—+tH+ZA=+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company
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AR R RFENG
Property Investment Non-
Share Special revaluation revaluation  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
MERERM HREEM IR

A HREE & fE ERFEE REnr st RREE Ha st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BRTT BRTx B¥Tr BRI BRETx BE¥Tx BETT BRI

(note a) (note b)
(ffaEa)  (FfaEb)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 46,134 104,919 7,420,590 10,923,910 (974) 10,922,936

744,888 744,888 28,928 773,816

- - - = 234,812 = 234,812 11,232 246,044
= = = 37,939 = = 37,939 = 37,939
= = = 39,860 = = 39,860 = 39,860
- - - 77,799 234,812 = 312,611 11,232 323,843

- - - 77,799 234,812 744,888 1,057,499 40,160 1,097,659
(181,720)  (181,720) (181,720)

381,535 13,915 2,956,817 123,933 339,731 7,983,758 11,799,689 39,186 11,838,875
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEREBDE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

At 1January 2018
Adjustments (see note 2)

R=ZFB—-—NF—HA—H
R (RE2)

At 1 January 2018 (restated)

R=ZF2-N\F—A—B8 (83

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expense of

joint ventures
Fair value losses on investments in equity

instruments at FVTOCI

Other comprehensive expense for the year

RERRF

BEBINERES 2B 5 E5
Pt e HMEEXH

BRAFEESARMEERE 2
ERTANVEERSSE

REFHMEEH

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified

to accumulated profits upon disposal of

equity instruments at FVTOCI

Transferred from accumulated profits to
statutory surplus reserve

Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

Dividends to non-controlling interests

REEEE (H) WHBHE
R ERAFEETA
Htt2EWE 2 ERm TR
B EH D B2 REEFN
ZREEM R
HERGNEREERRHE

EEREDIRZKRE (FEE12)
TATIEIER IR RERRE

At 31 December 2018

R=-ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRIBRIEN

Property Investment Statutory Non-

Share Special revaluation revaluation  Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

MEEMR REEM EEER FEERR
BRA FRAEE i #E ERHE fE REER MEt RE#ER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT B¥%Trx

(note a) (note b) (note c)
(BfzEa)  (M4RED) (By&EC)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 123,933 339,731 - 7,983,758 11,799,689 39,186 11,838,875
- - - (59,410) - - 59,410 - - -
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 64,523 339,731 - 8,043,168 11,799,689 39,186 11,838,875
- - - - - - 1,014,267 1,014,267 33,655 1,047,922
- - - - (179,522) - - (179,522) (7,931)  (187,453)
- - : - (6) - - (6) - (6)
- - - (59,362) - - - (59,362) - (59,362)
- - - (59,362)  (179,528) - - (238,890) (7,931)  (246,821)
- - - (59,362)  (179,528) - 1,014,267 775,377 25,724 801,101
- - - (20,667) - - 20,667 - - -
- - - - - 29,062 (29,062) - - -
- - - - - - (242,293)  (242,293) - (242,293)
- - - - - - - - (615) (615)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (15,506) 160,203 29,062 8,806,747 12,332,773 64,295 12,397,068
notes

(b)
(c)

Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the additional interest in a

subsidiary acquired during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2012.

Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon transfer to investment properties in previous years.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR") is an appropriation from accumulated profits by subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"). In accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of

that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

HARBEAREREE-_2ENEt A=+ - ALFERAZ "R+ -A=T-ALEEO-HNBAAMARELREZNBLARIME 2 HREEREER

HEZER

NEEERBEERARENER - MENE  BENRBETNEMELNREE

EERSRBERERAQANTERBELANRRENNER - RETEXE  ARANTERBLAARS AN 10 HRNBRRTECRGHE  EERRBEIRF A

AMERN S0 AL - RETELRDERLERAT  AERRHEETESHEER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRTMEX

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

2018 2017
—g-)\% —E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeFEY
Profit before tax BRBt AR R 1,226,008 969,546
Adjustments for: HE
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties  REWEALEELFKE (436,055) (292,070)
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of financial assets BRATEES AR EREE
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ATEEZIEE (k&) 1,867 (4,490)
Loss on changes in fair value of TSI AN FEEZBER
derivative financial instruments 6,679 764
Dividend income from investments RERBKA (28,398) (10,936)
Interest income AEBA (58,072) (45,801)
Share of results of joint ventures FiltaEtEEE (61,752) (1,645)
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment NE - BERREHE 12,752 11,012
Finance costs B R A 19,122 26,658
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEMXE - BERXFER 2,075 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HHENE 2 AERERER
properties held for sale 74,703 48,359
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AHHERE ZREFEER
available-for-sale investments - 39,860
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Hth R 2 RE R B
other receivables = 12,898
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital Kit&EELEH 2 LLHERE 758,929 754,155
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZRFBATERZRD 95,763 43,379
Decrease in trade and other receivables 25 REMEKRR 2R 16,790 31,638
Increase in contract costs BRRARZ (20,305) -
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEMEZHD 566,389 1,149,352
Increase in properties under development for sale SHERERWEZEM (343,253) (714,981)
Increase in inventories FEZEM (4,022) (12,579)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMEMRSZHD (250,646) (411,283)
Increase in contract liabilities SHEEZEM 65,766 -
Cash generated from operations RELKMEHE 885,411 839,681
Income tax paid B FTEH (159,935) (91,765)
Dividend received on investments EBRERE 28,398 10,936
Interest received EHFE 67,790 36,083
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERDRBZREFR 821,664 794,935




2018 2017
—E-)\f& —E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Addition of equity instruments at FVTOCI/ RATEEFARMEE
available-for-sale investments W@z ERIE/
AHEEREZEM (3,461) (892)
Proceed from disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI HERNTEERA
Hitr 2 E iz 2
BETARBHE 42,291 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEKRZ (10,823) (9,736)
Advance to joint ventures BHEEEE (39,031) (190,565)
Dividend received from a joint venture BEMEEREZRE - 1,225
Addition of investment properties REWEZEM (7,142) (28,787)
Addition of properties under development BERMEZEM (33,416) (175,300)
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more than BEA=HA&EHZ
three months to maturity when raised THETER = (42,844)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more than Mt =ER#&EHZ
three months to maturity when raised EHRITER 341,449 705,970
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRERDNGEZHEZH 289,867 259,071
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEED
New borrowings raised HEVSER 51,716 193,406
Repayments of borrowings BERER (413,212) (162,250)
Dividends paid EHRE (242,908) (181,720)
Interest paid on borrowings BEHRFE (46,259) (33,615)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEDMAZR &R (650,663) (184,179)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERFESEEBEMFHR 460,868 869,827
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNZRERFLEEERE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,966,500 1,041,446
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES MERBREEE VR (58,564) 55,221
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, FRZBRERFEEEER B
REPRESENTED BY 2,368,804 1,966,500
Bank balance and cash ROEZRRE 2,460,110 2,162,588
Restricted bank deposits FREIRITER (91,306) (196,088)
2,368,804 1,966,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

1. GENERAL

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual

report.

The principal activities of the Company are property
investment and investment holding. The principal activities of
the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes

39 and 17, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of

the Company.

1. —REIE
BAECEEGRATTAAT]N) B
EEBAMRIZAREBREELT
HBROREBHERZFERA TR o
AATZEAMPE R R FEEEi
BEEARAFRNDRERHEE o

ARRI2FTBEBANERERKRERE
BReTEBEMBATIRGEGECTEE
o B EHIAMEE39 R 17 ©

REMBBRRUARNRAF 2 PWEEREBE
(M8 25 -



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

2. EBRAFHIREEITFTEMBRE

Al

AT RGEITFEEMBRERINSE

F R AN

FEERAFEBRRATIHEES
TR DS MM 2 H R RGBT BB

Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year: AR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EARAUKIREER SHmI A
FEI
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEBTHRELEN RKEEFEHN
Customers and the related FE 155 W=k BEIEE]
Amendments
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions B8 (BREERE MEXFRFAEN
and Advance Consideration =EZ5T) RE
REE W
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of EEAVBHRELED UROAEBRNR
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions 5258 (BT A) TENIER
2
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EBYHERELEL HEBHKERS
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 EXSACCHE RS 95%
Insurance Contracts EMIAE—ff
FERANE B
HEZERIZE 455
wREBEEN
Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements BBETER BB REZEL
HKAS 28 to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle 26285k (BT 2X) —E-NEZE
—E-REEH
2 FELE
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property EBGTER REYEEE
HKAS 40 5B 405% (BRI A)
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Except as described below, the application of the new and BRUA T FR#lioh - AN FEERMNFFT R E
BB EMBRELNHANEBARFER
EENPBRERBBMRRR, R E

REMBHRERMIIKELBEALE -

amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no

=
™~
a

material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS

11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated profits (or other components of equity,
as appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources which arise from contracts with customers:

e development and sales of properties, including interior

decoration services
o provision of property management services
e trading and manufacturing of magnetic products
e  operation of hotels

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15

are disclosed in notes 5 and 3, respectively.

2. ERAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (4)

WA RGEITFTEMBRERINSE
FEEH LN (F)

21 FRUMBHRELENEISREASH
LN
FEECRAFEBRNRAET BB R
HERE55 - BBYKRELER S5
SHREBSERNE18RUA - BB
S BB 1 RBRS ARG TE -

AEBCEYERABBMBRELDSE
1555 @ WA ERAZER 2 R E
ROBERBMAN—Z-N\F—-F—H
R NARERBAMZEMEEER
FHNRRERN (HHEMBRARKE D (fd
EA))ER BYEBILHRER - B
REBRERDRBEEBSTERE 185
REBETENFE 1 REEZREBER -
& THBER TR ERFLE -

AEEBRIRABHUTEHEFRTAR

HEERE :

e YEBEREE BEEREE
PR 75

o  REYMEETERE

s WMMERBEERHEE

o HERE

FEREBMBERELAE 15K 2AEKEH
BREEIREFTBENERER D BIR
PYEES R 3 E o



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the

Group'’s accumulated profits as at 1 January 2018. The

following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January

2. EBRAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (&)

AT RGEITFEEMBRERINSE
FREEHEN(F)

=4

21 BREUBHREENEISHRE
A ()
EREBMBHRELEINEISHER-F
—“NFE-—A—HZERRAALBERY
Z. 08K E-\FE—A—HBEHSE
MERRRERZEEELUTHAE -

2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have WESZSESEL21EE WREIFLER °
not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
%
EHMBREEL
FATES VS #1550
—E—tf —F-0\%£
+ZB=+-H —A—-H
HIAR BEFNE HIERE(E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i34 BT BET T BETT
Current Liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B REMEMER (a) 1,001,766 (475,327) 526,439
Contract liabilities AHER (a) = 475,327 475,327
Note: Bzt -

(a) As at 1 January 2018, deposits received in advance from customers on properties sold of HK$475,327,000
previously included in trade and other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

The application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the current year. The following tables
summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and its consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018 for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the

changes have not been included.

(a) RZE-N\F-A—-R ZAtABZREMERRRNES
MERREFRHBEBERL5327 00t CEHFLIEAAVEE -

EREBMBRELENEISFENAE
ERAFEREESRERIARNER
WEEARLE - TREIERATBUHK
BREZAFISHREAEER-Z-—N\F
TZA=Z+T-HNREHBARARREE
EZE-NFE+ZA=Z+-HHWHKREHR
ERBRAZTZZENIRE - KXE28
SENRBEWEIHA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)
2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

2. ERAFHIREEITFTEMBRE

(&)

WA RGEITFTEMBRERINSE

FEEREN(K)

21 EEVMBRELENFEISHEFASE

N (48)

HGE BRI ZE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
i REER
EEMBHREED
B2k A 15 ER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE BT BT BT
Current Assets REEE
Amounts due from customers EYEFENIRNE
for contract work (a) - 20,305 20,305
Contract costs BHRAR (a) 20,305 (20,305) =
Current Liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B REMEMER (b) 244,799 333,196 577,995
Contract liabilities BNERE (b) &(c) 539,128 (539,128) -
Amounts due to customers ENEFEHIENE
for contract work (c) - 205,932 205,932
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows B HenERkITE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
i R FE A
EEMBHREED
B2 R F1RMEHE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W&k BET T BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES GEEY
Increase in amounts due from EhEFEHTIREZEZEM
customers for contract work (a) - (20,305) (20,305)
Increase in contract costs BHEAZ1EM (a) (20,305) 20,305 -
Decrease in trade and other payables 5 REMEMRNZHD (b) (250,646) (140,166) (390,812)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEZEM (b) &(c) 65,766 (65,766) -
Increase in amounts due to customers ENEFEHIREZEZEM
for contract work (c) - 205,932 205,932
Notes: st
(a) Costs incurred in relation to the interior decoration services on properties held for sale of HK$20,305,000 (2 B HEMENE RS IR AT E 4 KRk A B 1 20,305,000 T B2
were previously included in amounts due from customers for contract work. Upon the application of RZA ARREFENIRHE - RERBEBHBHREES
HKFRS 15, these costs incurred were reclassified to contract costs. FI585% ZECELERACERIBASHRAE
(b) Deposits received in advance from customers on properties sold of HK$333,196,000 were previously ~ (b) CENERNEFHASBE319%,00TERZAFAES
included in trade and other payables. Upon the application of HKFRS 15, these deposits received were REMEARS RERBTERNBRELENERE  2ZF
reclassified to contract liabilities. BEURLEEHIEAGHNERE -
(© Amounts received in advance for the related work performed of HK$205,932,000 were previously  (0) W E 5T R AREE TR TR A 205,932,000 T B R 2 A st AR AT

included as amounts due to customers for contract work. Upon the application of HKFRS 15, these receipts
in advance were reclassified to contract liabilities.

EFANIRRE  RERBANBRELAE KR &

SERRECENIBAGNER



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the

related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9

introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and

measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2)

expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3)

general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative

information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are

disclosed in note 3.

2. EBRAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (&)

AT RGEITFEEMBRERINSE
FREEHEN(F)

22 BEEUBHREENLEIREM T A
RIEEEET
REAEE  XEBCEATEUBERE
HRE R R HEMBE BN K RESEAIERR
MABFEIEE] - BRI KR E2ERIE ISR
MeMEERSRABBEN S ENTE
QemEENTAHEERB(HEBEE
BB RQ) —REAPSTHSIAFRE -

REBCRESBYBREENE IS
HNBERIXERE BN BRELRE9
%A —_T-N\FE-A—-H(BXEH
BE) HARKLEANTEEYEASE
RitBER(BEAMGEEHEENIEAT
HRE)  WEHER=-Z—N\F—HA—
ARLBANTIAEEREEER - =%
—tF+t-A=+T—-HNREERE=-ZF
—NF-A-HNREEZFARNFAR
BafkERNEMARI D BRI
EEILREH -

Eit B THRENRSERBEEES
STEREN AT A BRRTER
RZLLBWEN AT -

FEREBHMBRELERNFE IR 2ETHE
FMiEE 3 EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 at the date of initial

application, 1 January 2018.

2. ERAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (&)

A REETEEMBRERARK
FEBHEN(R)

22 FRUBBREEUNREIOREMIR

R 1aEAEET (48)
BEAEHE B BREEREIRELZ
TREIRDBEEAZBE=-F—\F—
A—BRBEEBMBREZNFIRNE
MEESENE -

Financial
assets
Financial at FUTPL
assets  required hy Equity ~ Investment
Available-  designated HKAS39/ instruments  revaluation  Accumulated
forsale at FVTPL HKFRS 9 at FvToCl reserve profits
REEEEH
#8530/
FAMBRS
BER  ERHE  RATEE
EATEE RATEE HPN:L
AHEHE  GARZE  HAREN  2EREN REEMR
k& EREE SREE EHIE 1] 2R
Notes HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$000
i3 BT BRI BT AR AR BRI
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+=A=1-H
- HKAS 39 ERGH-EAGER
3057 682,849 1731 16,693 - 123933 7983758
Fifect arising from initial application BREREBIRHREER
of HKFRS 9: BIFEEZHE
Reclassification BHIE
From available-or-sale AR ERE (a) (682,849) - - 662,849 (59,410) 59,410
From designated at FVTPL RIECARATERETAEE (b - (1731) 1131 = = -
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R=B-N\F-F-BENLEH - - 24430 682,849 64,523 8,043,168
Notes: R
(a) Available-for-sale investments () AHHERE

From available-for-sale equity investments to FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income (“OCI") for the fair value changes of all its
equity investments previously classified as available-for-sale under HKAS 39. These investments are not
held for trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9, HK$682,849,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale investments to equity instruments at
FVTOCL. The fair value gains of HK$123,933,000 relating to those investments previously carried at fair
value continued to accumulate in investment revaluation reserve. In addition, impairment losses
previously recognised of HK$59,410,000 were transferred from accumulated profits to investment

revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2018.

&

Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no longer applied designation as measured at FVTPL for the
portfolio of financial assets which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, as
these financial assets are required to be measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As a result, the fair value of
these investments of HK$7,737,000 were reclassified from financial assets designated at FVTPL to

financial assets at FVTPL.

TR EREREZRA FEETAR MR E Y

AEEEERAAREDESHEUENEIBATMREE
ZHERERENATFEELBREMZERETIE - 2%
REYFHERS  BRFARABRARTELE - RERE
PEBMBREERFEIR 2 A - B 682,849,000 T B HE A
HERBENNREREARATEEF A L2 A NE 2
#IA  BEANATEEIREZZERERBNAFEREK
B 123,933,000 T EBRBRE B (ERE R R o SO 2
BRI EE KB 4000 TER=E-\E—A—AHRA
2RRFEZREEEMHE -

(b) RAVEFABER/REERARATEEF A ERNEREE

RAOREAZA  ARREFERBREEEIR  UDT
BEEEEEERIGERRNEREEASARATERETA
Bt ®  ARETEARESREEREARDTEETA
Bt R - Bt ZERENAFEEBS 737,000 THEE
REATEEG ABENEREEEN I RERATEENA
BENEREE -



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

(continued)

Remaining investments are equity securities held for trading
and derivatives which are required to be classified as FVTPL
under HKFRS 9. There was no impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the application of
HKFRS 9.

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group's existing financial assets at amortised
cost (including trade and other receivables, fixed bank
deposits more than three months to maturity when raised, and
bank balances) for impairment using reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9.
Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
there has had no material credit loss allowance recognised at
1 January 2018.

2. EBRAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (&)

AT RGEITFEEMBRERINSE
FREEHEN(F)

22 BEEUBHREENLEIREM T A

RIABFIEET (48)
BEAXEREBRIBHREEREIREEZ
TER (1)

HBREDSARBEE BN BREELRE9
FORBEQFEEFTABRENFEFE
BENRABSRITETR - EREEM
BRELNEIOFHREEERINEE

REZZ2-—NF-H—-—H AQFEER
BEBMBRELENBEIRZBAE - £H
EENHBEIRAIELAEZEER
AEEEXFcENUEMRTEAER
BEBERATTENREERERE (BREE
Z R EMEBWERNR - FA=E R EEH
ZEMRITER - URIRITAER) RURE
R RERNQRBDESHNER R=F
—\F-RA-HUEEBRIEXEFEER
BtE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the application of all new
standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies

above, the opening consolidated statement of financial

position had to be restated. The following table show the
adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected.

Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

2. ERAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (4)

WA RGEITFTEMBRERINSE
FEEH LN (F)

23 HERMARERTEEHFNH
HEMBRARHZE

HRAEE LIRS BERNSE 4R

BEIFNNREHBARRRE - TRAED

TEZZENEBNHERER - RZE
HENEBALEFHA -

31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 2018
(Audited) (Restated)
—F—tF EFHEIE “E-N\f§
+ZA=+—-H B —A—H

(BE:t) 1558 (E31)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI T BT T BT T

Current Liabilities REERE

Trade and other payables EFREMEMERR 1,001,766 (475,327) 526,439
Contract liabilities BHEE - 475,327 475,327




2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

5

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned

below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the

application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will

have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.
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“E-+FES
EERE"

! REZ-NF-A-HRZRRRNFESHER
2 REERE 2 R HR 2 RARNFESRER
: REBZ-F-B-HRAZERRNFESHEN

¢ REBRHE-Z-RF-A- A ERRNEETESNE
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; REZ-RF-A-HRAZRRRNFESHER
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the

identification of lease arrangements and accounting

treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes

requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-

term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for own use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by the

Group.

2. ERAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (4)

AT RGEITEEMBRERACEE
B i K A 3% (48)
ERMBRELENB165HEE
ERMBHRELENE16RABAIHEA
REBANEEZHFREFEES A -
BHRERN - EEBYBRELERSE 16
AR IR EBSFERE 175
HER AR -

BERMBHRELENE 16FRRBHEFE
ERCHEFPEHNREIHERRES
o lts BEBUBRELRFE 16558
EEREORZRIBEET BV BIREER
FBISHERERNNEEERTRERE
EARNEEMEE - BB HHREE
A 16 EE AR ARAEERH
BIE °

REMHERKEEEHEEN  E&HE
ENBEHENEZEAAEASHER
RBRR - WHABARRAEHERR
EREEERMEEEENRAENR -

EREEENSEBANGTE  BRUK
A (A T HIIMERERIN) MBFHTER
HEBETE ITREEEENEMNE
HEtEMELHAR HESGEYIRHE
ENROGEERXM) 2REFE - BBiK -
HEEGEM(HPEE)MEREEN
RUREEBTNZEERARE - 5B
EREDEMS - AKEEASAHE
NHEENREIHEERBAE LR D
BAREYFENEAET HEENRER
ERE MEMELHENRAZNSD
KRERETRE REATBUBREE
AZE165%E - FREERENHEEN
BEHAEESIRERAERANEIMD » I
DHUBEREREZY -



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset

and a related finance lease liability for finance lease

arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they

were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to
lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$29,680,000 as disclosed
in note 32. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these

leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$2,908,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$137,848,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received

would be considered as advance lease payments.

2. EBRAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (&)

A RGEEITEEMBRERACEE
B i K A 3% (48)
FEMBRELNE16HE (H)
REBBEERE 175 AEERE
ERAEACEIABEREZHNEE
KRR EHEREHEASE LA EN
HENR - EREBUHHRELERSE16
RAREHREFEEN D RRLEEEE
B BRRAEERDER2IEHE
BEIRE-EBRN2IEREEE (fd
BEHEBEEREE)ME

BRETTAERANRHBEANER BB
IR EENE 16 ABREEBER
ERFEN7HRANEHEANSHER - I
EEZRHEASHEI EAKEHEE
HEERE -

Lo BBV BIRELENFE16RERF
BENHE -

RZZB-NF+ZA=1t—-H  X&H
BETTHBELEHEREBRSR
29,680,000 7T ( R 3£ 32)  #H ¥ &
B ZERENEHEER  RERS
BB EERE 165K NEBER
FEZSHERIERAREERERE
& RFENSEEREHEENER -

o AEBRKERAENTELEAE
#R& 8% 2,908,000 t R EWATREIEE
% &78%5 137,848,000 T 2HEE T WA
MRk&ES  BRAREBGTTERE17E -
REBVBEREENE16FEHENTRN
E&x Lk WHEFAHBEER
MEBHMSR Bt ElESHNIRE
BEAFREZEERE S TREA
ERSHNABRKBERABIMEENRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in

measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply

HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as

leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as

containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4.

Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts

are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date

of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of

HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of

initial application to opening accumulated profits without

restating comparative information.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2. ERAFHIREEITFTEMBRE
A (4)

AT RGEITEEMBRERACEE
B i K A 3% (48)
FEMBRELME 160HE (H)
ERAHAEHIEEH LMTE 2R
RENZEH AEEHREETTEES
% BAAEREBETEREI7HEK
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REECEBITENEERAETBYBRE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique

equals the transaction price.
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ATPEEERAERHBESERS Y
K52 HE 2 B EEERFTWEEL
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
e  has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the

Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=Z—N\F+-A=+—-HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest
in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of

the relevant joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint

venture that are not related to the Group.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (UPON
APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (UPON
APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2) (CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (sale of properties and interior decoration
services), the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price

basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to

the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=Z—N\F+-A=+—-HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (UPON
APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2) (CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance

in transferring control of goods or services.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in

transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the

customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (UPON
APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2) (CONTINUED)

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its interior
decoration contracts. The Group first assesses whether these
costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other
relevant Standards, failing which it recognises an asset for

these costs only if they meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated

contract that the Group can specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future; and
(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets

relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

REVENUE RECOGNITION (PRIOR TO 1 JANUARY 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates, other similar allowances and sales

related tax.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described

below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods

are delivered and titles have passed.
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (PRIOR TO 1 JANUARY 2018)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Service income (including property management fees and
hotel operation income) is recognised when services are

provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the

leased asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a

reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building

element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance

lease.
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial

disposal of the Group's interests in joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends

to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than properties under construction) over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which

they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties held for sale when the relevant completion
certificates are issued by the respective government

authorities.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by

reference to estimated selling price less selling expenses.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS AND CONTRACT
COSTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and contract costs to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods
or services less the costs which relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not been recognised as
expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs are then
included in the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to
which they belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment

of that cash-generating unit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS AND CONTRACT
COSTS (CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group's

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

® the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

® the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business

Combinations applies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

®  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity

investments, and will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly

represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses'

line item.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables, fixed bank deposits
with more than three months to maturity when raised, and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting

date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively using

a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

®* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the

Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks

of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets
at FVTPL, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

e  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

* the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in ‘other gains and losses' line item. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 35C.

(i) AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)

financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Dividends on
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is

reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at

the end of each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including long-term loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, fixed bank deposits with more than three
months to maturity when raised, and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of that security below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

or

®* breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment

revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to

accumulated profits.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment

revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for
trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. T E&:HB¥(E) §
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) &RMTHE(E) ,-;.i.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) cREaBERBEAIR (8) §
Financial liabilities (continued) THEE (E) ;
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: ERETIER cREEKBEERRE z
EEBERE i

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of o WBELRMEBZENTEARTA

repurchasing it in the near term; or HREEE ;5

e  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified o ZERMEBEENITHEIAFAALRE

financial instruments that the Group manages together BEHXEEE2EHIIcm I ERE
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit- HeEz—Ho2 WARAFEEAEH
taking; or BRzERBE %

e itis a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial o ZEBEENFEWIETHBERE T
guarantee contract or a designated and effective TEZHTHETE o

hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for #WHE/EEEREUINEHERE -
trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a EEIAERIBRIEETARATEET
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon A% i :

initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a o ZisTEHHERNBEEZREEREMS
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would NEHB 2 HESRERT—2; 5

otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial o TEESHEEENK—EHEHE

assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed EdtmBEZHIEmE X
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in HREAEEZE 2 REEEERE
accordance with the Group’s documented risk EXBBRAFEEREEFN G mMA
management or investment strategy, and information B2 ERHRZEER R RME
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; =

or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more o HAKBES—EAxZERARNITE

embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 permits TEZEHHD > MEBBRE o
the entire combined contract to be designated as at ERFEW BRGTELEINR
FVTPL. AFREEHEN(EERER) B

ERBEAFEETARE -

EYHEXITNEE

B EHV-— &= |
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would

create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liability and is

included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the

nature of the hedge relationship.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or

deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that are

measured using the fair value model, the directors of the

Company have reviewed the Group's investment property

portfolios in Hong Kong and the PRC and concluded that (a)

the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong are not held

under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, (b) the Group's investment
properties in the PRC are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.

Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on

investment properties in Hong Kong, the directors of the

Company have determined that the presumption that the

carrying amounts of investment properties measured using

the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. The presumption that the carrying amounts of the

Group's investment properties situated in the PRC are

recovered entirely through sale has been rebutted and the

deferred tax on the changes in fair value of those investment

properties is recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2018 at their
fair value, details of which are disclosed in note 14. The fair
value of the investment properties was determined by
reference to valuations conducted on these properties by an
independent qualified professional valuer using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable
changes to these assumptions may result in changes in the fair
value of the Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the changes in fair value reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the carrying
amount of these properties included in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The carrying amount of the
Group's investment properties at 31 December 2018 is
approximately HK$8,701,400,000 (2017: HK$8,392,900,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of properties held for sale

The Group’s properties held for sale in the PRC and Hong

Kong, details of which are set out in the consolidated

statement of financial position and note 16, are expected to

be recovered through future sales. In case the future selling
prices, less all related direct selling expenses, are less than
their current carrying value of these properties, the Group will
recognise losses. The future selling prices are estimated by
reference to the recent selling prices of similar properties in
the same project or relevant locations. The management also
estimated the future selling expenses by reference to the
actual selling expenses of the Group’s completed projects,
adjusted by certain current market data. The carrying amount

of properties held for sale of the Group at 31 December 2018

is approximately HK$860,707,000 (2017: HK$555,975,000).

Fair value of unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI/
available-for-sale investments

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI/
available-for-sale investments that are stated at fair value are
determined with reference to market values of underlying
assets, or arrived at using valuation techniques, including
market multiple approach and discounted cash flow
techniques, which included some assumptions that are not
supportable by observable market prices or rates, the inputs
may include prices information, volatility statistics, liquidity
statistics and other factors. In determining the fair value where
discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management’s best estimates,
earnings growth factor and the adjusted discount factor. The
carrying amount of the Group’s unlisted equity instruments at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments) at 31 December
2018 is approximately HK$306,289,000 (2017:
HK$342,230,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2018, a deferred tax asset in relation to

unused tax losses of approximately HK$226 million (2017:

HK$65 million) has been recognised in the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax

asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately

HK$472 million (2017: HK$437 million) due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the

deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the

period in which such a reversal takes place.

5. REVENUE

() DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS

An analysis of the Group's revenue and the reconciliation of

the revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts

disclosed in the segment information is as follows:

4. EXEHEREFTARER
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st FARERZ EERIE (8)

Frig#t
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Fi 18 &5 18 49 78 15 226,000,000t ( = &
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5. Wi
() BEFRZITESRBKANSHE
AEEBRANDMREZF SN E
B EERMIEESENEROT ¢

2018 2017
—B-)\f& “E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Property development IESE

- Sale of properties -WIEHE 1,195,398 1,686,008
- Interior decoration services -EREBRE 88,256 -
Property management MEER 20,896 19,742
Trading and manufacturing B REE 77,346 75,984
Hotel operation BELE 12,120 11,269
Revenue from contracts with customers HERSHMIE 1,394,016 1,793,003
Property investment (under HKAS 17) NERE (REHESTERIE7R) 355,739 365,611

Treasury investment (under HKFRS 9) BERE (REBBUEREERES)
- Interest income -FIEBA 58,072 45,801
- Dividend income -REWA 28,398 10,936
Total revenue il 1,836,225 2,215,351
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

() DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS

WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

5
(1

W2 (45)

HERZITSRMKASGE (&)

BE-Z-\F+ZA=T-HLEE

Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment  development management  investment manufacturing operation Total
MERE LE S5 MEER BHRE BEIZRNE s R wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BRI BETT BRI BETT BRI
Sale of properties YIS E - 1,195,398 - - - - 1,195,398
Interior decoration services ERNEERHE - 88,256 - - - = 88,256
Property management MEEE - - 34,143 - - - 34,143
Trading and manufacturing EHREE - - - - 77,346 - 77,346
Hotel operation SRR - - - - - 12,120 12,120
Eliminations on inter-segment ~ SEE A% 5 ¥4
transactions - - (13,247) - - - (13,247)
Revenue from contracts HEF SN E
with customers - 1,283,654 20,896 - 77,346 12,120 1,394,016
Property investment MERE (RIEFE
(under HKAS 17) SETERE175R) 359,986 - - - - - 359,986
Interest income FS WA (R
(under HKFRS 9) BRIKBRE
=B 957) - 13,676 - 44,396 - - 58,072
Dividend income RS A (R
(under HKFRS 9) BERIKBRE
HERIZE957) - - - 28,398 - - 28,398
Eliminations on intersegment S35 %185
transactions (4,247) - - - - - (4,247)
Segment revenue gkl 355,739 1,297,330 20,896 72,794 77,346 12,120 1,836,225
Property Property Trading and Hotel
development ~ management  manufacturing operation Total
MERER MEEE EoRE Hi g 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT EETT EETT BT
Geographical markets WEHS
Hong Kong B8 - 20,896 - - 20,896
PRC hE] 1,283,654 - 77,346 12,120 1,373,120
Total st 1,283,654 20,896 71,346 12,120 1,394,016
Timing of revenue TR 2R B ]
recognition
A pointin time H—EREE 1,195,398 - 77,346 - 1,272,744
Over time bEE 88,256 20,896 - 12,120 121,272
Total st 1,283,654 20,896 77,346 12,120 1,394,016




5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
() PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS
Property development
For contracts entered into with customers on sales of
properties, the relevant properties specified in the contracts
are based on customer’s specifications with no alternative use.
Taking into consideration of the relevant contract terms, the
legal environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group
concluded that the Group does not have an enforceable right
to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and collection of the

consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the
payment terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
advance payment result in contract liabilities being recognised

throughout the property construction period.

The Group provides interior decoration services to these
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
construction services based on the stage of completion of the

contract using input method.

The Group's interior decoration contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the construction
period. The Group requires customers to provide upfront
deposits, when the Group receives a deposit before
construction commences, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the specific contract exceeds the amount of the

deposit.
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

() PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Property development (continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same

contract, is recognised over the period in which the

construction services are performed representing the Group's

right to consideration for the services performed.

All the interior decoration services are for periods of one year
or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price

allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out
collections, which consist of payments in respect of the
operation of the properties which are payable by the tenants,
are recognised over time using output method when the
services and facilities are provided. The Group applied the
practical expedient in HKFRS by recognising revenue in the
amount to which the Group has right to invoice, since the
Group is entitled to bill a fixed amount in advance for each
month according to the terms of the relevant lease. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not

disclosed.

Trading and manufacturing

For sales of magnetic products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to customers, being when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location (delivery). Following the delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation
to the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon

delivery.

Hotel operation

Income from hotel operation represents the hotel room
revenue from customers which are recognised over time using
output method when the service and facilities are provided.
All the hotel operation service are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price

allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purposes of resources allocation or
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods and services delivered or provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments

under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Property investment — investment and letting of

properties

2. Property development — development and sale of

properties, including interior decoration services

3. Property management — provision of property

management services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in

securities and other financial instruments

5.  Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of

magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotels

6. EAEH

AATEAPITES  DEBLELEREA
RERIBEIAIZIEREMER 2D
BER DEREBESENFMERNEEN
REMERDMELE - TELEREKA
REEAREB 2/ EE  MES
ERBINEMEEDBESHEE -

\

REBUYBREENESREESFARE
BEexBREHDEMT

1. MERE —YXEREREE

2. MERBR —UEBRRREE 8F
EKIZRE

3. YEEE — RUHYESTERE

4, HHRE —BERHMESHMIEN
RXERERE

5. BSR%E —MERBERNEE

6. BEERKE —BEEERKEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 2=

B-N\ETZA=t-ALEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHBEH(E)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS SEWmRES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results LI T BIESHMREK I E 2 AEF K
by operating and reportable segments. REBDH ©

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Segment revenue
Comprising:
- revenue from customers
- inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties

Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

BE_F-/\&+°"A=+—HLEE
7R
B
-EF &
-KERRS (M)

2B

RENELNVEESDWEGS
RAFEE;FABREZERMEEAVEERZBER
TRITETAZAFEEZBER

HEME  BERKEER

Net exchange gains (losses) B 53 (8518)
Segment profit kb

Finance costs B RS RAR

Share of results of joint ventures it eEhxEE
Profit before tax BREE AR A

note:  Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices.

Wit : SEARZRRTHEWRR
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Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel Segment
investment  development management  investment manufacturing operation total  Eliminations  Consolidated
MEKRE  PEER 2 PEEE  MBERE EIRRE EELE  SBRER E2E 58

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT #E¥Trt #¥Tr  #¥Tr  #¥Trt  #%Tt  E%Tx

359,986 1,297,330 34,143 72,7194 77,346 12,120 1,853,719 (17,494) 1,836,225
355,739 1,297,330 20,896 72,7194 77,346 12,120
4,247 - 13,247 - - -

(129,305) (825,628) (20,016) (20,532) (71,320) (11,158)  (1,077,959) 17,494 (1,060,465)

436,055 = = = = = 436,055 = 436,055

- - - (1,867) - - (1,867) - (1,867)

= = = (6,679) = = (6,679) = (6,679)

- (2,075) - - - - (2,075) - (2,075)

61 (21,799) 219 3,703 = = (17,816) = (17,816)

666,797 447,828 14,346 47,419 6,026 962 1,183,378 - 1,183,378

(19,122)

61,752

1,226,008

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by operating and reportable segments.

6. SEEAH(R)
SEBEREE(F)

REE DT o

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Segment revenue
Comprising:
- revenue from customers

- inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties

Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments

Net exchange gains (losses)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of available-for-sale investments
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

B5Z_F—+t&+-B=+—HLEE
gk LE

g

-ERWE

-EBEAXRS (M)

2EMAX

RENEQNVEESDNE
RAFEEFABREZENEEATEEZB NS
TRTETAZAFEEZBER

B 5 F W (B518)

AHHERE ZREHRER

H o fe W R 2 R (B S 1R 52

Segment profit (loss)

2EEN (FR)

Finance costs
Share of results of joint ventures

b Jo RN
Frb e g hREE

Profit before tax

BRBLAT R R

UTARRIZBREZ I E2AEE WS
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Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel Segment
investment  development  management investment  manufacturing operation total  Eliminations  Consolidated
MERE  PEBR  YEEE  HBRE BZRRE  EELE 28A EIF )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BBt  BRETr BT B%Tx  BR%Tx  B%Tx  B¥Tx  BETx

369,829 1,694,507 31,971 48,238 75,984 11,269 2,231,798 (16,447) 2,215,351
365,611 1,694,507 19,742 48,238 75,984 11,269
4,218 - 12,229 - - -
(146,748) (1,254,803) (21,079) (14,102) (68,803) (10,615) (1,516,150) 16,447 (1,499,703)
292,070 - - - - - 292,070 - 292,070
- - - 4,490 - - 4,490 - 4,490
} . - (764) - - (764) - (764)
8,140 26,635 (297) 1,396 - m 35,873 - 35,873
- - - (39,860) - - (39,860) - (39,860)
- - - (2,541) (9,452) (905) (12,898) - (12,898)
523,29 466,339 10,595 (3,143) (2,271) (252) 994,559 - 994,559
(26,658)
1,645
969,546
note:  Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. iz SERRZERBTHEBKER

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the Ko ME 2 SBEREMFEIFTM2AE
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. EE:BEXMER - 2 8&EFN HiEER
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from  RE A E CEEERPBERA 2
each segment without allocation of share of results of joint BRTEDEMBE BN, EZ26B

ventures and finance costs. In addition, the Group’s 8- k4 BIBRESEEHEMEKR D 205
administrative costs are allocated to respective operating R FTH R 21T B AN © R 1B B E 7 .
segments on the basis of revenue earned by individual SEBRHRWZEIBEEKEEIE - E
operating segments. This is the measure reported to the ANEBCULSEAEZOFELLERE 3
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and A2 TAEERIBERIZSBE -

performance assessment. If o

BHE V&= |



N
=3
o

8102 L¥Od3Y TYNANNY | QILIAIT LNINLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHBEH(E)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DHEESENREBE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilites U TAREHRSEZAEBREERERE
by reportable segments: DT
Segment assets NEEE
2018 2017
—F-0\fF - S 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Property investment YMIERE 8,986,482 8,685,612
Property development MERR 3,742,597 4,211,020
Property management MEER 3,421 3,246
Treasury investment BIERE 1,323,787 1,319,535
Trading and manufacturing BoREE 92,620 93,570
Hotel operation BIESE 6,700 5,386
Total segment assets PEEEAS 14,155,607 14,318,369
Taxation recoverable AIREIBK 33,458 20,706
Interests in joint ventures SEPERER 292,987 192,210
Deferred tax assets ELEREBERE 31,469 3,850
Consolidated assets REEE 14,513,521 14,535,135
Segment liabilities TEAR
2018 2017
—F-0\% S 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Property investment MERE 178,587 182,362
Property development MERRE 643,819 898,224
Property management MEER 3,077 3,055
Treasury investment BHRE 8,623 1,722
Trading and manufacturing B5REE 12,179 15,082
Hotel operation B 1,217 708
Total segment liabilities PEEEAH 847,502 1,101,153
Taxation payable FEA IR 137,713 100,005
Borrowings RN 867,818 1,248,000
Deferred tax liabilities ELREEE 263,420 247,102
Consolidated liabilities SEEE 2,116,453 2,696,260

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and AERIERBERRIEBIEEIR -
allocating resources between segments, all assets are FBRAAWEIHRR - SELHENERERIE
allocated to operating segments other than taxation LEMEEEN  FIEEEHIBMEXEK
recoverable, interests in joint ventures and deferred tax assets. 238 MERENHR - ERRELRIE
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than Ef&5  FIEABEH I MEXKDE -

taxation payable, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HEEH(H)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hih o EEHE
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment ~ development ~ management investment manufacturing operation  Consolidated
HERE HERR HEER WERE  RARNE EEEE &4

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LAy AR BRI BRI BRTR BRTR LAy
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Amounts included in the measure of  BiEHESERER
segment results and segmentassets:  HEEEZE%

2018 “3-)\%
Additions to non-current assets (note)  SEREBEER (i) 12,803 40,152 - - 1,287 1,639 55,881
Depreciation fig 7,045 2,113 - - 2,859 75 12,752
Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ &iHENE HESERS

of properties held for sale - 74,703 - - - - 74,703
2017 3-tf
Additions to non-current assets (note) ~ FEREEELM (Ki3) 32476 203,029 - 134 4123 169 239,931
Depreciation il 7,047 926 - 643 2,357 39 11,012
Impairmentloss recognised inrespect &t EHE 2 HEFEED

of properties held for sale - 48359 - - - - 48,359
note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred tax assets. fisk: ERBDEETEFESLOEHER SRIARELHESEE o
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION =&

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other ARNEEEKVREBRFEEMMIE -
parts of the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing BEAEFEEKSEIREEZWNEE
operations from external customers is presented based onthe RIIREEEKFAEMREZIR -  BERK
location of the operations. Information about the Group’s &EBEFREBEEMNERBIREEFTEH
non-current assets is presented based on the geographical E2%R °

location of the assets.

Revenue Non-current assets
g EREBEE

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-)\f b S of 2 ZE-)\f —ZE—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BT BRI

Hong Kong s 274,321 269,341 7,228,702 6,769,547

PRC ] 1,561,904 1,946,010 2,841,699 2,956,163
1,836,225 2,215,351 10,070,401 9,725,710 2:;’
Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial ¥ REEEFTBESLELEREE 8/ 5
e
instruments and deferred tax assets. TEAREERIBEEE ° 2
>
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFREH @
There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31 HZZZE—N\E+A=+—HRKZZE ;
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 contributing over —t&+Z-A=+—HILFE » LHEFK |
10% of the total operating revenue of the Group. BEFZWRAGAEEALBERZEBRBE =
i
10% © »
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HilzmREE
2018 2017
—F-)\f “E+E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENFATEEZ NS 436,055 292,070
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of BRAFEETAERZZERMIA
financial assets at FVTPL AFEELE (F8) i (1,867) 4,490
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial TESRTIAZ AT EEZSESE
instruments (6,679) (764)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BERREER (2,075) -
Net exchange (losses) gains B 5% (5518) s (17,816) 35,873
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AHHERE ZRBERERER
available-for-sale investments = (39.860)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables  E AU 2 HE B ERER = (12,898)
407,618 278,911
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEBRE
2018 2017
—E-)\f ZE-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest on borrowings: ERAE
Bank loans BITER 31,345 44,466
Other borrowings HbfaK 3,301 1,225
34,646 45,691
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties under o UABENFITIRE LTS E AL L
development/properties under development for (ZB—LF 1 275%F 4.96%) FHERREH
sale at a capitalisation rate ranging from 3.77% WE/ GHERBRNERSZER LS
t04.75%(2017: 2.75% to 4.96%) per annum (15,524) (19,033)
19,122 26,658
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiIBEHxXWL
2018 2017
—B-)\fE —E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
The charge comprises: XA
Current tax: REEHA :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEREH 14,949 17,052
PRC Enterprise Income Tax hE R EREH 124,838 132,408
139,787 149,460
Dividend withholding tax R EFEIB 14,010 -
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEEE (BB FRRE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEAEH (150) (160)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HEI R EFEH 135 -
(15) (160)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") A £ i 26,593 36,799
Deferred taxation (note 27) EFERIE (HiEE27) (2,289) 9,631
178,086 195,730




9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. FBEHIZH(E)
REEHREBEGSEBEXRAMTERHRA
A2 E BRI -

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
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follows:

2018 2017

—F-0\% “E-tf

HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT BT

Profit before tax BRBL A A 1,226,008 969,546
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)  &#Z16.5% (ZF—+F : 165%) 5 EZ

BEFEH 202,291 159,975

Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures et EEECREYE (10,189) (271)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose TAIRER BB E 9,445 20,412

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEFHBAZRBEHE (89,602) (54,035)

Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE (15) (160)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBEB BB E 6,552 4,778

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not ERAERDAZHBHR BB E

recognised (179) (8,937)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating REMAZEREE ZHBARFERE2 2

in other jurisdictions 55,132 45154

PRC LAT B AR E R 26,593 36,799

Tax effect of PRC LAT RE LI ER 2 BT E (6,648) (9,200)

Dividend withholding tax R EFEMB 14,010 -

Others Hith (29,304) 1,215

Tax charge for the year REEFIEZH 178,086 195,730

notes: HizE -

(a) 0n 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) () RZB-NF=ZA=+-B BEUZEEBT[=Z-tF
Bill 2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law B () (B1R) RBIER] (REIER])  ZRHERS
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, ATEERGHBEMNE - ZERR=F-N\F=ZA=t/\H
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above BERALE YNABERRTE - BELEANEHHE
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits REREEERNECAEEABRZLRER Ml
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. “HEBTHFBRER6%EH c FAEEBREHBIE

HIZMEEME R ORI EBEER 10.5%HETH 2HE -
The directors of the Company considered the amount involved upon implementation of the two-tiered ARRESRR  BRERASHIEMIRNEERGSH
profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is BHREUBEEABE - BENSHEMEFE A ERBER
calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years. H16.5%5 & e
(b) Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and ~ (b) BREARANBELERBHE(LEMBHE ) REEFR

Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2017: 25%).

The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements set forth in the
relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development projects and the tax authorities might disagree
with the basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.

(0

GHABRAR TENBAARERNN(ZF-LF:
25%)

REGEBERRANEERE  AREERARTEL hEE
B o B REHERARNERRENERZEANATR
EME HREFUHTZRAREE L RERBRENHEE

ErvHERTIWEE S
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. REEiF
2018 2017
—E-0\f ZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: AEEGNEMBRTHISE :
Directors' emoluments (note 11) EEMS (1) 28,275 33,678
Other staff costs HthETHA 74,638 54,414
Staff retirement schemes contributions, net of HK$84,000 & TRKEF M + HIBRR UM B 84,000 7T
(2017: HK$467,000) forfeited contributions (ZZ—+5F . B¥467,0007T) 3,578 2,717
Total staff costs E TR AMEL 106,491 90,809
Auditor's remuneration A G 2,874 2,674
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment NE - BERRBITE 12,752 11,012
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings ~ ti#REFELRLY2HEE 7,505 6,610
Selling expenses (included in "administrative and HERX (BREITHREERX )
operating expenses") 17,418 51,441
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties held & H &M% 2 BEFERED
for sale (included in “direct costs") (BEETEERER]) 74,703 48,359
and after crediting: WEA
Gross rental income from investment properties RENFBHRSWA 355,739 365,611
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that B EREEHSBMAZRENEEEER
generated rental income during the year (31,549) (31,278)
324,190 334,333




m
z
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' 11. EE - TR RESNE -
EMOLUMENTS -
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2017: 14) BEFNHENSF N B(ZF—1tF 1 148) §
directors were as follows: EECHMeUT ;
Other emoluments §
Hittf& S
Performance
related
Salaries incentive  Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (notee) contributions emoluments
EX il
Hi i % HZEE RIAEH
g Hitnig# (Hizte) BE e el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BT BRI BB
2018 —F-)\%
Executive Directors (note a) HITES (Mata)
Liu Lit Chi BIE 300 8,674 430 513 9,917
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeE 200 5,505 288 342 6,335
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 200 4,175 280 324 4,979
Lee Wai Hung TRl 200 3,255 275 326 4,056
Non-executive Directors (note b)  3E#17E = (Fizth)
Liu Lit Chung Bz 200 988 - - 1,188
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FER 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BuEHITES (Mo
Directors (note c)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Authur B#R 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming, John 571 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo B 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEH 300 - - - 300
Total b 2,900 22,597 1,273 1,505 28,275

21
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

11.

EF THARREEMN: (&)

Other emoluments

Hiv#e
Performance
related
Salaries incentive  Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (notee) contributions  emoluments
e yiElealy
K "B RIKER
ik HEbER (FEEe) REIGEN #Ze
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  BETR  BMTR  AMTR  BETR
2017 —E—tf
Executive Directors (note a) HITEE (Haa)
Liu Lit Mo BAIE 250 6,227 132 175 6,784
Liu Lit Chi B2E 150 8,770 420 504 9,844
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEE 150 4,793 277 330 5,550
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, 150 3,940 267 291 4,648
Lee Wai Hung R 150 3,084 260 309 3,803
Non-executive Directors (note b)  F#HTEE (fitzth)
Liu Lit Chung Bz 150 1,099 - - 1,249
Andrew Liu B 150 - - - 150
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BRE 150 - - - 150
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FER 250 - - - 250
Independent Non-executive BAFHTEE (M)
Directors (note )
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 250 - - - 250
Tong Tsin Ka EER 250 - - - 250
Au Kam Yuen, Authur BEifR 250 - - - 250
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 250 - - - 250
Cheng Yuk Wo BHA 250 - - - 250
Total st 2,800 27,913 1,356 1,609 33,678
notes: Bzt -
(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the  (a) LT ES e REERA N ARAEEER 2 REFE o
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
(b) The non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company ~ (b) FHFBTEScHMEHEEARARATHBELAAES 2RE
or its subsidiaries. BE -
(0) The independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of (¢ LB TES S HEFARARDEEZREAEE o
the Company.
(d) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid ~ (d) R AEEHEREANESREERBTFAL (BEER)X

individuals (including directors) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the individual performance of
the directors and approved by the remuneration committee of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

HEAHE » ERNAREERMAREEE 2 ZEREBR
B-HE-Z-NE+-A=+-BR=-Z—-t£+=A
=t-ALRAFE  (RESHECMREIHERENE
o
HZ-Z-N\F+-A=+-AR=-Z-tE+t-A=+-A
tREAFEERAEB2RBRESNERNRRET  YHA
SEFMESEHA -



11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four directors (2017: five directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out as above. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018 of the
remaining one highest paid employee who is neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

1. B - THEBRRESNE (])

FRAEBEAReFEEERENAE
E(ZE2E—+tF  RRESE) HFEF
BEINMT BE=-_FT—-NE+=A
=t+-HBLEEENSBT - BEaFHES
(WHADQBESRITHAR) HFHIMF
BT :

2018
—E-)\#
HK$'000
BETT

TEMEARR
ERFARNRE
REN AR

Salaries and other benefits
Performance related bonuses
Retirement scheme contributions

1,614
136
155

1,905

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FAEARAEBNESHFMNE T AHY
T EHMAEUATHER :

2018
—E-)\%
No. of employee
BTAH
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T 2 B ¥ HKS2,000,000 7T 1
12. DIVIDENDS 12. I8
2018 2017
—E-)\f& —E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FREIDKZRE :
Interim dividend paid for 2018 — HK$0.22 per share “Z-N\FERFHREERER02 T
(2017: interim dividend paid for 2017 - HK$0.18 (ZB2—tF  ZZ-tFERTHRE
per share) FRBE0187T) 83,288 68,145
Final dividend paid for 2017 - HK$0.42 per share “E-tFERRAREERER 2T
(2017: final dividend paid for 2016 - HK$0.30 (ZB—1F  ZE-RFERAHRE
per share) FRA030T) 159,005 113,575
242,293 181,720

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of
HK$0.48 (2017: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 of HK$0.42) per share, in total amount of
approximately HK$181,720,000 (2017: HK$159,005,000) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EREBREHERE BE_Z—N\F
+TZA=+—BLEFEZRHERESR
BE4ST(ZE—tF  HE-ZFT—+
F+-_A=+—HLEFEZRHERES
iR & ®0.425T) » H A B % 181,720,000
JT(ZZ—tF : #E¥%¥159,005,0007T) °
KHEESEZ TANRNERRRAS
RE LESRRIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

13.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year

attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$1,014,267,000 (2017: HK$744,888,000) and on
378,583,440 (2017: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there

were no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

13. BIREXET
AATABRREGBRERER T KIEAR
FEARTARREMZENN B
1,014,267,000t( =& — £ F: B ¥
744,888,0007T) R A FECRITEBR
378,583,440% (=& — 4 : 378,583,440
BR)ETE ©
BE-—Z-/\f+-A=t-AR-%
—tF+ A=+t -HLEFERTEML
ABESER EEESSRERNTE
23] -

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. HEYE
HK$'000
BRI
FAIR VALUE ALERE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+t&-HA—-H 7,881,519
Currency realignment B =A% 190,524
Additions by 28,787
Gain on changes in fair value ATFEEZB NG 292,070
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZB=1—H 8,392,900
Currency realignment B RAR (134,697)
Additions b2y 7,142
Gain on changes in fair value AT EEZE NG 436,055
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\FE+=ZB=1+-H 8,701,400
notes: Bzt -
(a) All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the  (a) AEERSERNREURDES 2 IBNERE R A TE

(b)

fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the Group's policy to engage an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuations. The management works closely with the valuer to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

On 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, independent valuations were undertaken by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Ltd. ("Vigers"), an independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group which has appropriate professional qualifications and recent experience in the valuations of similar
properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison method by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations and conditions or, where appropriate, by
capitalising the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties by reference to the rentals achieved in
the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the similar properties in
the locality and adjusted based on the valuer's knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these investment properties are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

ERAGFE - YD BERIBRRRENE -
(b) ATEEFENGEESR

HARENENATPEER  ARENRENERBIAER
EXHEMETHE EEERMGAEARIAE BUBEH
HERGMEERRE AR -

RZB-NF+=A=t-BR=Z-t&+=A=1+-A"
BUERHEENEETEBEARAR ([REHDET -
BRI BEALE Y EBECBYAEREEMLER  HER
B S BN EETHERARENS X SR RITHLR

HENERLBEISZARLERRENEUNENTSE
RHESETHEEMENAEARBIBUNENERER
UERCMFFETREENNHSRE(RERE)GE - ©
HET  DEAETEEENNTEREN2ETERENE
BNABENRIERUNENE BB RERTERE - B
RNEAELEDESZHEMRZEENEUNEBEME
= BEREMEDFARAEENEEBNEERR
BRERA

ERESTNELFEER  NXNSERSERERERARE

THRIMAHRENENATEENAECHER (EHER
ERANEERORBAZE)  UAREAFEESETN
GARBUUBHGENEE  BAVEEHEIREATE
ERERNHR (F-EE=RF) -



14.

(b)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

Investment properties held by
the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position
FEBBENREWETIR
FEMBRAR

Fair value
hierarchy

ATRERE

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

fEERTREEEH

14. HEYME(H)
Fisk - (&)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EXATAERRNG L EY

)

(b) APEEFENGEBE (

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TAEAG LS

AT REEMRR

Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,115,950,000

(2017: HK$1,056,120,000)

EERNRENRBREE
78%1,115,950,000 7T
(22—t 1 j8%1,056,120000 7T)

E=45

Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$4,767,600,000

(2017: HK$4,408,200,000)

EEBNRENELRERE
B 4,767,600,000 7T
(ZZ—t & : 5%4,408,200,000 )

E=&5

Direct comparison method
The key input is

(1) Unitsale rate

BEREEE

TREHR
(1) EfuHEEK

Income capitalisation method

The key inputs are

(1) Reversion yield

(2)  Monthly market rent

KEEAR

(1) BHRODHE

2 SADEHEE

Unit sale rate, taking into account the time,
location, and individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable and the
property, ranging from HK$130 to HK$22,500
(2017: HK$110 to HK$21,300) per square feet on
gross floor area basis for properties and ranging
from HK$800,000 to HK$1,450,000 (2017:
HK$740,000 to HK$1,300,000) per unit for car
park spaces.

ZERGA  BRHBRNERNERS 2B
HERRZ  NFEARERFE  EHEEERTE
AREDRETHREBE 130 TEBE 2,507
(ZZ—t&F : BEN0TEBE 2,300 7) (R4
BEERE) - FEGED AIRE 800,000 TE
B 1,450,000 (=B —tF : BYET74000TE
81,300,000 7T) ©

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential, nature of
the property and prevailing market condition,
ranging from 3.3% to 4.8% (2017: 3.3% to 4.8%).

Monthly market rents, taking into account of time,
location and individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable and the
property, ranging from HK$42 to HK$180

(2017: HK$40 to HK$220) per square feet per
month on lettable area basis.

ZRIBSEEMAES L - MEMERRKT
R BATREEERINE 48 (ZF—LF !
33%Z4.8%) °

ZERERA AR HRNERNERS 2B
BRRE  NFaRFE  SATEESTAR
AEEEETSTAREBER 2 TEER 180T
(ZE—t& : BROTEB0T)

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would resultin an increase in
the fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the same
percentage increase, and vice versa.

FANENHEER—BER &
SRENFNATEESEREE
HEDLIEM - R2TFA

Aslightincrease in the reversion
yield used would resultin a
significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

Aslight increase in the monthly
market rent used would resultin a
significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FrRMAHRNEREEFEN L
# ESRENFNATERENE
BEATHR  R2HR e

AN AmEESEREME
#oBSRENENATEEE
BERLH  RZHAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14.
notes: (continued) FiieE - (
(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued) o)

Investment properties held by

REME(])

)

ATEEFENGEERR (B)

the Group in the consolidated Fairvalue Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEHANREWETIR TUBHGHAEE
GREBRIR ATEERE AERDRIEEY BEATAEAGHNER HONTEENRG
Investment properties in the PRCwith  Level 3 Direct comparison method
an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$237,389,000 The key input is
(2017: HK$263,189,000)
(1) Unitsale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the time, An increase in the unit sale rate
location, and individual factors, such as frontage  used would resultin an increase in
and size, between the comparable and the the fair value measurement of the

property, ranging from RMB4,650 to RMB24,000  investment properties by the same
(2017: RMBA4,950 to RMB24,000) per square percentage increase, and vice versa.
meter on gross floor area basis for properties.

ERENRENFRRAE F=R5 BB
7 237,389,000 T
(22— 1 B%263189,000 ) FREHR
(1) Efu#EEE ZEARH ARURNFEANEAG2HN FANEUHEER—BLH &
ERER  OMERERFE  BUHEERE <SREVENATEETEREEK
ABEHRAARK SO TEARE 200 WEALEM  RZFHA -
(ZB—tF AR¥4950TZ ARM240007T)
(BRRREEERT) o
Investment properties in the PRCwith  Level 3 Income capitalisation method
an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,580,461,000 The key inputs are
(2017: HK$2,665,391,000)
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of the Aslightincrease in the reversion
capitalisation of rental income potential, nature of ~ yield used would resultina
the property and prevailing market condition, significant decrease in the fair value

ranging from 6.0% to 6.5% (2017: 6.5% to 7.0%). measurement of the investment

properties, and vice versa.

(2)  Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into account of time, - Aslightincrease in the monthly
location and individual factors such as frontage ~ market rent used would resultin a
and size, between the comparable and the significant increase in the fair value
property, ranging from RMB95 to RMB1,217 measurement of the investment

(2017: RMB95 to RMB913) per square meter per  properties, and vice versa.
month on lettable area basis.

EHREINREELRREE F=H7 WEER(
B #2,580,461,000 T
(ZZ—+5 : B#2,665391,0007T) TERHA
(1) AHAENERE ERABSBERAERL  WEREREKT FANEBANEREEEEM L
R BT RBRER 6% S 65%(ZB—+F BLRENENATEENE
65%ZET7.0%) © BEATH R2F% -
() BAMEHEE ERIRE BRUBRNERNERG 2B FANSATSHASEREML

EREE  nFEkFR  BAMGHETAR # SSRENENATEEHE
AHARETEPHRBAARE S TZARE  BEALA RzFRe
1277 (=2 —tF  ARBSTEARKIS

) °

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were measured
using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment properties, the Group used market observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuations of the Group's investment properties. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group works closely with the valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

“E-\F+ZA=t-AKR-Z—tFE+-A=t-HFE
RENENATEENFAERAUEASENEAGAZE
BERT > HAERATFEEERE=HF -

EEFARERENENATEER  AEEETEERNR
HTEEEATS LTRUBE - ZF-ARBAZHALRT
B ARESZRBYAEREXMENEARERENEE
HiEE AR REHR  FEEREEMENSE  IBIR
BEEE-RRRE=HFATEEFENSBHRERDREA
B AREEBHARZRAEED S ENTRREDSH
BAREE SEAHBRAE-RA BEE-RABAZY
BRARE ARBERAEEE=RABAZENEER
e EEEATEEREAZEN  RBNEEGRALTE
EEH -

FRARBBAREHE=LH -



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES 15. Y% - BRERRE BRPHE
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

2
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?E_
8
&
U

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold motor vehicles
land and Plantand and computer
buildings machinery equipment Total
HE L wi - KE -
REF REREE EHFREMR “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BET T
COST BA
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+t&-HF—-H 105,137 35,321 101,781 242,239
Currency realignment EREE - 2,191 1,819 4,010
Additions by | = 4123 5613 9,736
At 31 December 2017 R-EBE—+t&+-F=1+—H 105,137 41,635 109,213 255,985
Currency realignment ExRER - (1,727) (1,289) (3,016)
Additions by | 1,177 1,287 8,359 10,823
Disposals HE - - (2,237) (2,237)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZB=1-H 106,314 41,195 114,046 261,555
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION MEREH
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—t&—-F—H 12,723 18,960 84,728 116,411
Currency realignment ERHE - 1,195 1,563 2,758
Charge for the year KEEXH 2,377 2,357 6,278 11,012
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF+-A=1+—H 15,100 22,512 92,569 130,181
Currency realignment ExRER - (948) (4,347) (5,295)
Charge for the year AEETH 2,436 2,859 7,457 12,752
Eliminated on disposals FAH E RS 8 = = (162) (162)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\E+=ZA=1—H 17,536 24,423 95,517 137,476
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H 88,778 16,772 18,529 124,079
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tH+-A=1—H 90,037 19,123 16,644 125,804
notes: izt :

(a) The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following ~ (a) L%  BERRBEENRESEENUTHERTE
rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 2% to 3% HETHRET BRE RN ERT2%E%
Plantand machinery 10% BER#EE 10%
Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and B £EB - =H
computer equipment 10-20% RERRE 10-20%
(b) As at 31 December 2018, properties under development amounting to approximately HK$1,244,922,000 (b) R=%- )\_ﬂ:' t=R= '|'\_ R &Ew 'T’? * ﬁ &8
(2017: HK$1,207,006,000) represent the cost in relation to the redevelopment of a property located in 124;4922:(‘]0075(\:'2_{& ; 73%1:2\0100@0@7‘5) {t%@:
Hong Kong into a hotel. During the year ended 31 December 2018, additions of properties under IEELE{‘??%E’J%%E%&%EEZ?@EE’J&ZN E{\_g—)\iﬁj—_ 27
development amounting to approximately HK$37,916,000 (2017: HK$201,408,000). BET-RLLFER  RRAMFZINAER 379160007 (= "
T+ F : jE#201408,0007) ° =
S
"
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&
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of properties

under development for sale of approximately HK$659,998,000

was expected to be realised after twelve months from the end

of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying values of properties
held for sale of approximately HK$848,993,000 (2017:
HK$544,261,000) and HK$11,714,000 (2017: HK$11,714,000)
are located in the PRC and Hong Kong, respectively.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense
during the year amounted to approximately HK$678,575,000
(2017: HK$1,149,352,000).

16. FHEERTYE FSHEME

A—E—+FE+=-HA=+—H  FHE
BERAPYEREMEN BB 659,998,000
THEPAEREHARA T @R BER -

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H FHE
Y ZEEBREE X B 8% 848,993,000 T (=
T —+F: BH544,261,000T) RO A
BEE11,714000 T (= — £ F: BE
11,714,000 7T) B BV AR B R & ©
FR CEABBIZFHENERSE
# 5B % 678,575,000t (=T — £ F :
7B #51,149,352,0007T) ©

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. EELEES
2018 2017
F-0\% —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT
Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RENGELEZHA-FLEH = -
Deemed contribution to joint ventures (note c) BEAHSECENER (o) 229,596 190,565

Share of post-acquisition results and other PR R ER A2 mkE

comprehensive income, net of dividends received MR WER & 63,391 1,645
292,987 192,210

Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

THAAREBR=_Z—-N\FE+=A
=t—-BAKk=F—tHF+=A=+-—H
BETESELE

Place of
incorporation/ Class of Proportion of Proportion of
Name of company Notes ~ operations shares held ownership interest voting power held Principal activities
RELEEH Mt EEMEISL & Ei ARG ER BRI RERTEZILE  XHHE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—F-\f —Z-tF ZFT-/\F —B-tF
Vialue Investing Group (@)  HongKonglJapan ~ Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50% Property investment
Company Limited E%/AK LBk IEL
("Value Investing")
EEREEEERAA
Clear Miles Hong Kong (b)  Hong Kong/Australia Ordinary 50% 50% - Property investment
Limited ("Clear Miles") B /B LER NERE




17.

Notes:

(a)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

In November 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value Partners Group
Limited ("Value Partners") to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Value Investing which in turn
through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the trust beneficial interests in the properties located
in Japan, held under operating leases to earn rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed to sell and the Group agreed
to purchase 1 share in the issued share capital of Value Investing, representing 50% of the entire issued
share capital of Value Investing at the consideration of HK$1. Upon completion, the Group has provided
an interest-free shareholder's loan in the amount of JPY2,749,848,740 (approximately HK$191 million)
to Value Investing to repay the corresponding amount of shareholder's loan owing by Value Investing to
Value Partners, the effect of which is to ensure that the shareholders’ loans of the Group and Value
Partners will be pro rata to their shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing and the financial results and
financial positions of Value Investing is incorporated in the Group's consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting.

In September 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value Partners to
acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Clear Miles which in turn through a wholly-owned subsidiary
holds 100% of the beneficial interests in the properties located in Australia, held under operating leases
to earn rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed to sell and the Group agreed
to purchase 1 share in the issued share capital of Clear Miles, representing 50% of the entire issued share
capital of Clear Miles at the consideration of HK$1. Upon completion, the Group has provided an interest-
free shareholder's loan in the amount of AUD3,600,000 (approximately HK$21 million) to Clear Miles,
the effect of which is to ensure that the shareholders' loans of the Group and Value Partners will be pro
rata to their shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Clear Miles and the financial results and financial
positions of Clear Miles is incorporated in the Group's consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting.

Deemed contribution to joint ventures represents loans advanced to joint ventures which are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loans
are in substance formed part of investment in joint ventures.

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing,

which is prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards, is set out below:

BEREHERD(R)

REZB-—tE+-f AREEZEEEARAA(EE))
HYBEEHZ BABERESERARARNNERTR
A UBBHZENELT BENGESZNAFNE R
BEERNURRAS -

BEZBERZ ZERASEVRZRBE-—THRELE
REERD  HEREBEREEEERAAZIERTRAMN
50%c RETHKE  AEEREEREEEERATRMT
2,749,848,740 F Bl (4958% 191,000,000 T) N R ERREZ » B
FEEEEREEBARARNLENEZENRRERNHES
% HEAARRAEEREEMENRREIBREREN
BRIZLAIFE

REERE  AEEHBEREEEERARRRAREHN
Bh - MEEREEEERLANHFHRENRBMET - H5
BEE ARRENGSMBHRERS

RZE-NFNR AEEEBETLEERZ B A Cear
Miles 50% 9B BTIRA » WEBH2EHBEAT  HH10%E
=WEMTE  RESERHURBAL o

BEZBERZ ITERASEYRERBE -—THRELE
REERH » HER Clear Miles 22D BTRAM50% c RH T
B % & % B [ Clear Miles 32 £ 7 3,600,000 7 ( 4 7 ¥
21,0000007T) WEERRER  EERARRAREREEM
EHRREFERIEESNIFRIZLAITE -

RETERE REEE Cear Miles B AR EH RN T
Clear Miles #9 81 % S & MBI B AR - 1§ B AT AR KB
FREBRRS o

—HEER  EAEEEENNEXFRELEREANE
EEENEE AAAESRAZENEEARELEREN

-85 -

THREEREEBEARQARBEEHE
MBHRELEAREH 2GS BER

2018 2017

—E-)\% —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Current assets RBEE 462 426
Non-current assets FREEE 565,045 394,027
Current liabilities REEE 427,433 381,003
Cash and cash equivalents RERRELEEER 147 426
Current financial liabilities nEgBEEE 427,433 381,003
2018 2017

—E-)\f —E-tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Profit for the year REERF 124,636 13,450
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEHMEAZH (12) -
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZHBEEE 124,624 13,450

2
P4
>
P4
o
>
Lo
o
m
o
o
2
—'
?E_
8
&
U




N
N
o

8102 L¥Od3Y TYNANNY | QILIAIT LNINLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=Z—N\F+-A=+—-HLFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial
information of Value Investing to the carrying amount of the
interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

17. SELXER (F)
HALEERESERRQ A 2Bl

EUBRERNBHERS WK KRF®E

RZaEhbFEER

2018 2017

F-0\% ZE-tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Net assets EEFE 138,074 13,450
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest AEEMEEEREEEERARZ

in Value Investing kRS2 H 5 50% 50%

69,037 6,725

Deemed investments BERA/RERA 208,816 190,565

Pre-acquisition profits BRGNS BRAKE (5,080) (5,080)

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Value Investing AEBREEREEEERA 2 BREEDE 272,773 192,210

The summarised financial information below represents the
information of the Group's joint ventures that is not

individually material:

LU # 3 2 B 35 & #HEZIK’EIE"@EHF

BRZEEREERRE
2018 2017
ZF-0\F —2—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT

The Group's share of loss and total comprehensive

FEEFKEMEBRRZAXLAR

expense for the year (566) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests AEERZAECE R REERSE
in these joint ventures 20,214 -




J
Z
2
18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 18. BH®TE 2
Financial Equity B
assets  instruments 3
at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total 3
BNTEERA @
EATEEHNN Htt2EkEz &
BEZEHMEE BHIE O
notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt BT T BT T BT T
2018 —E-N\F
Listed equity securities LHRAES (a) 14,814 227,198 242,012
Unlisted equity securities EFHRAES (b) - 306,289 306,289
Structured products AEEMTA (c) 7,749 - 7,749
Perpetual capital securities BRAEARTS (d) - 51,120 51,120
22,563 584,607 607,170
Analysed as: 2EE
Listed in Hong Kong REBLD 14,814 278,318 293,132
Unlisted ¥LEm 7,749 306,289 314,038
22,563 584,607 607,170
Analysed for reporting purpose as: WEREZRDEAR
Non-current assets FRBEE 584,607
Current assets REEE 22,563
607,170
Financial assets at FVTPL
BOTEEFAEEzEREE
Available-
Held for  Designated at for-sale
notes trading fairvalue investments Total
BEEAY
BisE BIEEERE BEME  UTHHERE ok
2017 —E—iF
Listed equity securities EmRAES (a) 16,693 - 288,380 305,073
Unlisted equity securities FEMRAES (b) - - 342,230 342,230
Structured products HERMTE (c) - 7,737 - 7,737
Perpetual capital securities BRAERES (d) - - 52,239 52,239
16,693 7,737 682,849 707,279
Analysed as: DEE
Listed in Hong Kong REBLD 16,693 - 340,619 357,312
Unlisted ¥Em - 7,737 342,230 349,967
16,693 7,737 682,849 707279
Analysed for reporting purpose as: SMER&EZ AL EA : -
Non-current assets B 690,486 =
Current assets REERE 16,793 "
at
707,279 ?;

& =

B E LV -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 18. BHIRE (&)

notes: Bt

(a) As at 31 December 2018, listed equity securities classified as financial instruments at FVTOCI (2017: () RZB-NE+ZB=+-8 XEEMEEUREHRND
available-for-sale investments) held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$227,198,000 (2017: TEEHE  PEARATFEEMAHAZEARS2ERZTE
HK$288,380,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. (ZZ2-—+tF THEERE)NLETRAZSHRES

227,198,000t (= —+ % : B# 288,380,000 7T) °

(b) As at 31 December 2018, unlisted equity securities classified as financial instruments at FVTOCI (2017: (b) RZB-NF+ZA=+—-0 AEEMEEUREHRND
available-for-sale investments) held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$306,289,000 (2017: FEEHE  PEARAFEEMAHMAZARE 2 EZTE
HK$342,230,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. (Z2—t5 TREERE)NFLTRAZZNAES

306,289,000 (= —+ 5 : B# 342,230,000 7T) °

(c) As at 31 December 2018, structured deposits of approximately HK$7,749,000 (2017: HK$7,737,000)  (¢) RIE-NF+ZA=1+—-0 FEEBRENERUERAE
held by the Group have maturity date in 2019 and cany interest rates linked to London Interbank Offered #7,749,000 T (=B — 5 : B%7737,000) - HERBFR
Rate ("LIBOR"). Such structured deposits are classified as financial assets at FVTPL (2017: designated as RARTEEFEZARNE  AER-B-hEHH - 2%
financial assets at FVTPL). GRUEERARATEAS A\ BEZEREE (22—t F:

EERAFEEFABEZEREE)

(d) As at 31 December 2018, the Group held a perpetual capital securities amounting to approximately — (d) RZE-NE+ZA=1+-B AEEFRBEUREHRHD
HK$51,120,000 (2017: HK$52,239,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Such TEEFE  PBEAEERHERETFNABES51,120,0007T
investments are issued in September 2014 with a fixed distribution rate of 6.5% per annum payable (ZB—1&F: B%52239000T) c ZHFN-ZT-MEAA
semi-annually for the first five years and reset to the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury plus the initial margin BT RERETATFS BRESEERE R - HE
every five years thereafter. HEBREUZEEABEEREMANBREREE

19. INVENTORIES 19. &

2018 2017
ZE-)\&£ —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRBTRT

The Group's inventories comprise: AEEEERE:

Raw materials [EATE 3,487 1,414
Work in progress FEm 5,449 6,747
Finished goods Em 16,017 15,129
Other inventories HiFE 4,947 3,659

29,900 26,949

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the
year amounted to approximately HK$58,205,000 (2017:

RAFEEBRATIHZEEREANAEB
258,205,000t ( =& — £t F: B ¥

HK$55,631,000). 55,631,000 7T) °©
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ES R HMEUARRR
2018 2017
—E-)\f “E—tE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables & 5 EWER 23,535 24,990
Deposits paid EffREE 10,015 27,751
Loan receivables FEWiER 5,228 14,110
Prepayments and other receivables TR R AR AR 49,889 53,197
88,667 120,048
Analysed as PEA:
Current TE 88,667 115,285
Non-current FnE - 4,763
88,667 120,048




20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 20. B RHMBWERR ()

notes: F&E -

(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and (a) ENIAHEF  AEEIEEERF 2 EEEERRER
defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed periodically. Majority of the FREELR -ZEFNEELRETHES - KHHEZEK
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no default payment history. BRI BRI - BRI o
Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the terms of the BREBECNENEBHENECNE - BESABENEH
sale and purchase agreements. Monthly rent in respect of leased properties are payable monthly in HEYESERAL EMESEFARTYN-0E LS
advance by the tenants. Other trade customers settle their accounts with an average credit period of 30 to HER - RRREHRR  KBEZRBFAESEYURR A ABE
90 days. The aged analysis of trade receivables of approximately HK$23,535,000 (2017: HK$24,990,000) 23,535,0007T (=B — L& : B424990,0007) ZEREAMAT :
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017

ZF-0\F —E-tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BB

Within 30 days AR 7,307 9,089
Between 31 days to 90 days 31E90H 12,660 13,859
Over 90 days HiR90A 3,568 2,042
23,535 24,990

(b) As at 31 December 2018, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,279,000  (b) RZZ-N\E+ZA=+-RB  FAREERKER 2 RHA
(2017: HK$2,023,000) were past due and aged over 90 days at the end of reporting period but the Group BEHNBEM2279,000 (Z2—+5F : B#2,023,0007) » £
has not provided for impairment loss for these balances as management considers that the fundamental RRBEHRCAHRBIA  AEEIERASEHR 2R
credit quality of these customers has not deteriorated. The Group does not hold any collateral over these EERFREE FERAEERRAREEFZERFHESR
balances. WARB - AEELBRZS RS HETERY -

(0) All of the Group's trade receivables are denominated in the functional currency of the individual entities  (¢) AEBREE S ERUEFURERAEREE < WaEERTIE -
within the Group.

(d)  Asat31December 2017, the Group performed the impairment assessment of trade and other receivables ~ (d) RIZ-tE+ZA=+-B  ARERBES REMGRKER
based on the recoverability of these balances. Impairment loss is made when there is objective evidence MEAENKE R h MG EER  RENEERER  BERE
that the recoverability of the amount becomes doubtful, based on historical settlement experience, o BEBERHUA 2FETME  EEREARZEURR
subsequent settlements, business relationship and credit assessment of counterparties. WK Ese h B 75 BIELRERSS
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 BEBE-Z-\E+ZA=+-HLFEEFREMRKE
are set out in note 358. SREVRERAE - FEBEMHIE 358

21. CONTRACT COSTS 21. BHINE

2018
—E-)\%
HK$'000
BETT
Costs to fulfil contracts ETERMEA
Interior decoration contracts (note) EREBEN (BE) 20,305

note:

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2018 relate to the costs incurred that will be used in
satisfying the performance obligation of interior decoration contracts entered with the customers. Contract
costs are recognised as part of direct costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which revenue from the related interior decoration contracts is recognised.

Bt

REB-NF+ZA=t+-REAHANRLTEANETE
BETINEREBSANBHERNELNRATH - &8
BAREEABEES N RERADHRNGARERBRARE
BRAN—ED o
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22. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from

0.01% to 0.35% (2017: 0.01% to 0.25%) per annum. The fixed

deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.50% to

4.20% (2017: 0.25% to 4.20%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, restricted bank deposits of
HK$91,306,000 (2017: HK$196,088,000) in relation to the pre-
sale proceeds from the Group's property development in PRC
were included in bank balances and cash. In accordance with
relevant government requirements of property development
in PRC, the deposits can only be used for payments for
construction costs of the relevant properties when approval

from related government authority is obtained.

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$33,723,000 (2017: HK$297,455,000)
represented deposits pledged to banks to secure short-term

borrowings.

The Group's bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency

of the relevant group entity are set out below:

22. EA=ZERAEBEHMZEHRT
RBTERRER

WITEARMBEUTSREAENRE
NFEF001%E035%(=ZF—+F:
0.01% £ 0.25%) ° EHF KM B E E F
B N FEF050%F4.20%(=ZF—+
F:0.25%E4.20%) °

R-ZE-NE+ZA=+—H8 8£17%F
HRBELBEEBHI,306007T(=F
—+F : B % 196,088,000 7T ) #Y 3Z PR &l
RITER ZEREAREERTEZY
XRR2EEVERSRIEER - RIE
FREBRHEAEYERRNER &7
MARAAUEESBRNERZERBIFEX
HEREMIE SR o

R=Z-N\F+=-A=+—8  2#&A
RITIERQBHE 33,723,000t (ZF—+t
F : j8%5297,455,0007T) AEAR T IKH
FRITUIRIREHRER ©

AEBUGFABEEEERN ISR
ENRTERRERRTER  RIIW
T

Denominated Denominated

in RMB in US$

MARKFIE YESRIED

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

As at 31 December 2018 N=B-—NE+=A=+—H 273,224 219,757
As at 31 December 2017 R—E—tHF+=-A=+—H 390,134 174,068

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that
the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is

provided.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances for the

year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 35B.

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—-HLEFE -
REBHRITHEBRETRENE L5
Mg HHRTHEOBREN
L RS B IRERE

B8z N\E+=-A=+—HL
FENBITEKOBETG  FBER
Fff5E 35B o



23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESREMEMRR
2018 2017
—F-0\fF ZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT
Trade payables B ZENERR 7,985 8,828
Construction costs and retention payables EAEERARBERES 129,195 445,909

Deposits received and receipt in advance in respect REMH 2 EWRE RFAWHESE

of rental of investment properties 81,743 41,278
Receipt in advance on properties sold SHEYETARR = 475,327
Other payables HA IR 25,876 30,424
244,799 1,001,766

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

the invoice date.

BZRMARMAIRE BT R
T o

2018 2017

—3-)\% —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Within 30 days 0HA 7,985 8,828

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BEEMzFHIFEEHNR30H - AEH
EHEBRERERERR  UBRARME
BARFNEEHAM

24. BHER

31.12.2018 1.1.2018*
—F-\§ “E-N\E

+=B=+-H —B—A*
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BizE BT BRI
Construction contracts BEAN (a) 205,932 -
Sales of properties MEHE (b) 333,196 475,327
539,128 475,327

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments upon the application of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

* ARPRR-E-NF-A-REABEBHHREENE
FEHNABKNEHE -

2
P4
>
P4
o
>
Lo
o
m
o
o
2
—'
?E_
8
&
U

levaa*TuBe S

& =

B E LV -



N
N
o

8102 L¥Od3Y TYNANNY | QILIAIT LNINLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

24.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward

contract liabilities.

24. SHERE(E)
TRERAEERINKEZTESZLHE
EESHNEERH -

Construction Sales of
contracts properties
BESH MEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract REQEREEERRERHETHRE
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year - 475,327
notes: Bt
(a) Construction contracts (a) BEAN
When the Group receives a deposit before the construction activity commences, this will give rise to EASEERTEDHARAUIAS  SRSRERVERE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds EEANEAE BEEABSARRNKEBBCHNASSE
the amount of the deposit received.
(b) Sales of properties (b) MEHEE
The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement. AEERBEEGENRAUDEFNRE - REEFANE
The deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised until the customer obtains control of the BRER  EERFRBE T TNEMNEHIE -
completed property.
(] Contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period are expected to be recognised as revenue in ~ (¢) BEREHANGHEBRENBET —FRIAWE o
subsequent year.
4 =
25. BORROWINGS 25. fE%
2018 2017
—F-0\E 25
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M=t EETT BT
Secured bank borrowings BHEMRTER 789,453 1,201,027
Unsecured bank borrowings EFRRITHER 30,000 -
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEFEER R R A (a) 48,365 46,973
867,818 1,248,000
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: RRZEMBMT
Carrying amount repayable: AERIREE
Within one year —FR (b) 819,453 336,682
More than one year but not exceeding two years ~ —F&{EFBBME - 864,345
819,453 1,201,027
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders A EERRRRE 48,365 46,973
867,818 1,248,000
Amounts due within one year R—EREHBIFR
- Bank borrowings -RITER 819,453 336,682
- Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders - Bt JEEIR R RFVE 48,365 46,973
867,818 383,655
Amounts due after one year R—EREHARFH
- Bank borrowings -RITER - 864,345
867,818 1,248,000




il
P4
2
25. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 25. B (&) >
notes: izt : -
)
(a) These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of approximately HK$35,968,000  (a) PERRAREARBRERERNEE3598,000T(=F 5
(2017: HK$35,247,000) bears variable interest at an effective interest rate of 2.63% (2017: 2.03%) per — & BH3547,000T) 2RESFRIBAEGE  BR g
annum, while the remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. FIEBGE263%(ZB—LF 1 203%)  HEABRE - =
S
(b) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. (b) BERRERGZAARTEN BB - ;
(0) The Group's borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the  (¢) AEENEREEEERER N EMERTIE 2 ERN £
relevant group entities are set out below: T by
Denominated
in HK$
IEH5IE
HK$'000
BT
Asat 31 December 2018 R=B-N\F+=p=+-H =
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tE+=-A=+-H 93,777
(d) As at 31 December 2018, HK$ denominated bank loans of approximately HK$620,589,000 (2017:  (d) RIZE-NFE+ZA=+—-0 UBBHEZRTEREY
HK$731,766,000) and Renminbi ("RMB") denominated bank loans of approximately HK$198,864,000 620,589,000 7T (ZZ —t & : B# 731,766,000 7T) RAA RS
(2017: HK$229,997,000) are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank B2ZRTERBEE988400T(=F -t F: BE
Offered Rate ("HIBOR") plus a margin of 1.44% to 2.10% per annum and 100% of the People's Bank of 229997,0007) DRI RUBBRTEEFSHE S M1M%E
China ("PBOC") prescribed interest rate per annum, respectively. The effective interest rates ranged from 2100 R ERHHFEET - RA100% 2 FEARRTRER
3.77% t0 4.96% (2017: 2.75% to 4.96%) per annum. As at 31 December 2017, the remaining bank loans ENFEMER - EERAENFEEITTRE496H(=F—£F
carried fixed interest rate at 4.96% per annum. Details of assets pledged are set out in note 30. 215%Z496%) c R=Z—tFE+-A=1+—-R0  HBHRTE
HZBEEREAL.96%  BEMEEFERNHE30 0
26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. R TETH
Assets Liabilities
BE B
2018 2017 2018 2017
—F-0\E “E-tF —F-)\E “E2—tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT BRI
Derivatives not under hedge FEHET 2 fTETIR
accounting:
Cross currency swap contract EBFERXEREN - - 6,645 111
Currency forward contracts ERNERH - 26 825 679
- 26 7,470 790
Analysed for reporting purpose as: ~ AREMAES
Current nE - 26 218 -
Non-current FRE S - 7,252 790
- 26 7,470 790
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

CROSS CURRENCY SWAP CONTRACT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into a cross currency swap contract to manage its exposure to
currency exchange fluctuation on its operations in Japan with
principal amount of JPY305,000,000 at fixed currency
exchange rate of Japanese Yen (“JPY”) to HK$ at 0.07 and
due in 2021. Under this swap, the Group would receive
interest monthly at a floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44% per
annum based on the principal amount of approximately
HK$21,320,000 and pay interest monthly at fixed rate at 1.19%
per annum based on the principal amount of JPY305,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into a cross currency swap contract to manage its exposure to
currency exchange fluctuation on its operations in Japan with
principal amount of JPY2,749,848,740 at fixed currency
exchange rate of JPY to HK$ at 0.07 and due in 2020. Under
this swap, the Group would receive interest monthly at a
floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44% per annum based on the
principal amount of approximately HK$192,539,000 and pay
interest monthly at fixed rate at 1.19% per annum based on
the principal amount of JPY2,749,848,740.

CURRENCY FORWARD CONTRACTS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into several currency forward contracts to manage its exposure

to currency exchange fluctuation on its operations in Japan.

26. ERIGTET R ()

XREENEZHPEYD
BE-Z-N\F+=-A=+—HBLEFE
HE AEECHEBERXXELF RS
B REBHT BAREKNINE X8
[Ekx - ©£%84 305,000,000 HE @ KB
TEEERE0.07 » WHA2021 FE3H -
REBEEEREH  AEBEKZA W
RIEARE K81 21,320,000 T LA E B R
TREREM1.44% FRRAENFE
kB F X {SREZ £ 305,000,000 HE L
EERZE1.19% FHEFENFE o
BE-_Z—tF+-“A=+—HLEFE
B AEBECHEBITETRIXEER
RIBHEH  REBHEAAREBLHI
fE X1 E b & %6 £52,749,848,740 H
B SBRBIEETEZXA007 &K
2020 F FER - RBEREBMEN &K
BZABBRRBRELRE QB
192,539,000 7t LA & # 1R 17 B £ 37 2 i
1.44% FRRFAENFE  REFXZMR
1B A £ 2,749,848,740 A B LA B E A =&
1.19% FRRFAEHFIE o

EHIEEL
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HLEE
HE AEEFTLHEERHIESHR
EEHET B AEBHINE HRER -

Buy Sell Maturity Contract rate
B = g BHFIE
HK$33,869,000 JPY481,097,000 March 2018 to March 2020 0.0704 HK$
B #:33,869,0007T H 7t481,097,000 “E-N\FZAZFT-FTF=H  0.07048%

Details of the fair value measurements of cross currency swap

contract and currency forward contracts are set out in note
35C.

HRAEXREBNREHENRER
SESHN 2D FEETETEHNMEE
35C e



Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

27. BEBIE
REVNGFEVMBMRERME  BETEL
REEEREBECKSE - UTHARUEK
IR E W2 IEER B LR D AT

2018 2017

—F-0\§ “Z—t&

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 31,469 3,850
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE (263,420) (247,102)
(231,951) (243,252)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

UTAREERAFERNEFECHE

recognised by the Group and movements thereon duringthe PR FEEEHRIBEEREEURESE
current and prior years. & o
Difference  Revaluation
of accounting  of investment Dividend
and tax properties  withholding
depreciation in the PRC tax Tax losses Total
EHEHERE EREPEZ
ZER RE&EME REFENH BilEkSE 4@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF-HF—H 31,769 202,728 - (13,394) 221,103
Charge to profit or loss REERERHNER 2,127 4,864 - 2,640 9,631
Currency realignment E=E - 12,518 - - 12,518
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—tF
+ZA=+-H 33,896 220,110 - (10,754) 243,252
Charge (credit) to profitor loss ~ WIEZERFIR (FTA) 1,348 6,732 16,124 (26,493) (2,289)
Currency realignment fE R - (9,012) - - (9,012)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
+=A=1+—-H 35,244 217,830 16,124 (37,247) 231,951
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$698 million (2017: HK$502 million)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$226
million (2017: HK$65 million) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax loss
of approximately HK$472 million (2017: HK$437 million) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018 are tax losses
of approximately HK$33 million (2017: HK$37 million) that will
expire within 5 years from the year of originating. Other tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$5,340,000 (2017:
HK$284,318,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of these temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

27. BEEBIE ()

REFSHR AEEHEHBE
698,000,000t( = T — £t F: B &
502,000,000 7t ) 2 7 B A Bt 18 5 18 7T A
EIR S KRR EFle B R N B K
226,000,000t( =T — £t F: B &
65,000,000 7T) EARIELEHIBEE ©
ARELTBARFERRER  HpNB
#472,000,000t (=T —tF: B
437,000,000 7T) 2 HIEBELRER B
ELEMEEE - R=-ZF—-—NF+=A
=Et+t—H X AERBEBEPEEESE
FERAFAINBNHEEBBEBENBE
33,000,000t( = & — £ F: B ¥
37,000,0007tT)  HAt B IEE BT EER
HHEEZT—FE o

REBEREEEMEGHE B=SZENEFE
— B — B FEMB QT HEUS R m
ERZBREEHMNBILNHR AREAEER
REAEFREERERE KRB MER
FREZEUETERN T RERER » &
HARAGREVBEBRRBPEMRBLRR
MiaA 2 EhZEEB%5,340,000T (=
T —+F : j8%284,318,000 ) fEHIE
FEFRIE A o

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. k&
Number of
shares HK$'000
BRiEE BET T
Issued and fully paid: BRTRARRA :
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+tF-B-H ) ZZ—t&+H
31 December 2018 =+-BR=ZE-NF+=A=1—-H
Ordinary shares of no par EEEZEBR 378,583,440 381,535




29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme")
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April
2002, for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and expired on 24 April
2012. Under the 2002 Scheme, the Company could grant
options to eligible employees, including executive directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company at HK$10 per option. Additionally, the Company
could, from time to time, grant share options to outside
eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time. The number of shares in respect of which options could
be granted to any individual was not permitted to exceed 1%

of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price was to be determined by the directors of
the Company, and would not be less than the higher of the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant,
the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing

price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by
the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9
May 2012 (the “2012 Scheme"”). The terms of the 2012
Scheme and the 2002 Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012

Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme

since its adoption.

29. R EAHEST &
ARNBRBER=-ZEZE-_FNWNA= +£H
BRAZREMAR G EPETE(=

:E%%D’Iﬁﬁmm%ﬂﬁ%%
ERGERES  HFtEER=2-—Z

FOA-THAER RE-ZFTZ-F
& AR TEEERES (BEAD
AREMBLARZHTES) KHHE -
USHEEBE10TRBARARRG
o ARB AR EMER AESS
HEOEASERIRAE=ZFRHRHD
HAtE -
EREBALARRELAAET  RIF
CEZCFHETREHBRZROAR
TEBHARTAMEMRFEE RITREO
Z10% » T B E B A + R HHIE 2
BROBEASEHAQTAREMEREE
BITIRADZ1% °

B9 B T A 11 B BB B 4 P AT
BRETE . TEERSANEEER -
W RAE AR A TP AL ) B S 2 R
REEEHANAEERS A 2RE T
CNGT =P e P
B o

=BT 5 B bR 4 I b 3
HEE e —EE-EHBR-E-——F

WAZ+MWmHER -

BRER-ZE—-FREANBEBE-EZE
RER —EHFROGPEFE(T==
—ZEFEDEARQATMERREM - =
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30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities

made available to the Group.

30. EEWRE

RBEHMR THEESERTRT
DEAEERERT—RIRTEE -

2018 2017
—F-0\E “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRBTRT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRET 60,185 61,679
Investment properties REN* 4,880,461 4,636,391
Bank deposits RITER 33,723 297,455
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EF&KiIE
2018 2017
—F-0\E “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEBTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided EENERNREMBHRR BB 2EARHR
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment/properties -M% BERRE BETNE RENE
under development/investment properties 28,006 38,953
— Others -Hity 19,609 22,870
32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. FEHORIE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE KEMEBREBA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEHR  AEEFTAHELERD

commitments for future minimum lease payments under these

MAER T I FREP A 2 KRR KK

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: HEZHAT -
2018 2017
—F-0\E 25
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within one year —FR 7,561 8,626
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE-ZLER (BEEEME) 21,907 24,342
Over five years hE# 212 5,559
29,680 38,527

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for
certain of the Group's offices, hotel premises and staff
quarters. Leases are negotiated for a range of one to sixteen

years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease period.

KEHWREEAEEETEFZE B
EMERETEE Z2EBNESE - HEA
HRE-—ZE+AFFE BRAHANME

TEEBRENRRE -



32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
THE GROUP AS LESSOR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments:

32. EEHLIRIE(F)
EEEBHBAA

RB|EBR  AEEEREBAASEU
TAREZERS T HERFTY -

2018 2017

—F-0\fE S 3

HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT BB

Within one year —FR 256,797 318,082
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE-ZLER (BEEEME) 264,725 300,574
Over five years LFE#% 28,440 16,011
549,962 634,667

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$355,739,000 (2017: HK$365,611,000). All
of the properties held have committed tenants for the next

one to eight years.

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates
a defined contribution schemes registered under the MPF

Scheme.

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective
schemes and are charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees contribute
5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme while the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group's subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these retirement

benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

FRNYER S WA A E¥ 355,739,000
TT(ZZE—+F : B¥365611,0007T) °
FFEM¥EEFEERE—ZN\EN
iERSIE

33. BKEFGTE
AEEABBZEERREEET —EAR
EWNETE > WERESFHEI T M -

AEBRBERESEZHBRAURE
BERM MR BEFSEERE -
BESHHEEHZTANESEAE
B BAKEcEESRERE - RIEW
BestE ETEREABEASHEKS%
REEETER  MAKETRIEHER
BT ABH5% EEEEeT IR

Lo AREBRPEKL ZHEREZ
ETEERBEREERKBRNE 2K
B -ZEWBRAREAZEMEETED
Ee e RARBAIET SRR BN HE
BREA AEEHZIRABENTEZ
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 25, net of bank
deposits and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of

new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

34. EXEIREE
TEBHEERETER  UBRKREAE
EETSERTHERSESERER
g RNFNEEEHERAZBEFF
T ARRERRAER AEEZE
R EEFWEBI -

REBZzEXERHGEER(BEME2S
iR B HIRERETEARRE) R
ReSEBAERARAARRELER (B
FBEBITRARE IR RE) AKX

ARRAEZEHRAELERE - FHR
N2—#Mo EBEEBEARARMEL
EEzHBERR REES2ER
EEKEBXNRE - BITHBRUARHE
THERIBOREBEESESAFHH
BEERGEHE -

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. &t TH
35A.CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3B5A. &R THSE
2018 2017
ZE-)\& ZE-tE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets SREE
FVTPL BAVEEFAER

Held for trading HEEERZ 14,814 16,693

Designated at fair value RERAHEEDR = 7,131

Others Hith 7,749 -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI RATEES AR ERG 2 EETE 584,607 -
Derivative financial instruments SRTETE - 26
Financial assets at amortised cost DR AN RN SRERE 2,564,805 -
Loans and receivables EXRERER (BERERBREEEER)

(including cash and cash equivalents) - 2,634,504
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE = 682,849
Financial liabilities SEERE
Amortised cost B A 1,030,874 1,733,161
Derivative financial instruments ERITETR 7,470 790




35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include investments in

securities, trade and other receivables, fixed bank deposits

with more than three months to maturity when raised, bank

balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank and other

borrowings, and derivative financial instruments.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk and impairment
assessment. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate

fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the end
of the reporting period that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currency of the relevant entities are

35. @R TH (&)
35B.MiIEAMEEEHERBR

AEENTEERTIABREESRE

%%&Eﬂﬂ@ﬂ&ﬂﬁ*” ‘ 7(52 =EREE
HeEBMRITHER  RITERAERE
f@’i%&ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂfw fﬁﬁﬁﬁfm{ﬁm
RERMITETA -

ZETRIAEZHFBRIEBMERRK
B-HZEIRIANBEzAREED
SER(E¥ER - FXARRERKR
B‘%) N ulbi)jﬁéﬂﬁﬁ N FEH@&HEE
fh o BEMMREZERR 2 BXES
nT - - EEEHZERRETEERE
72 URREARSERERSENRE
B o

T 15 JE &

() BE¥EE
REEERENRZ B UIMNEET
UESZERFHTE -

R|ERR - AEBEUEBELR DS ‘é
WLINIECEREEREREE
FBEBRRERAHKREENT :

as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE &fa
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-)\£ “ET—tF ZE-)\f “E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BETT BETT BT
Group %E
HK$ against RMB B AR 298 709 - 93,777
United States dollars ETHABE
("US$") against HK$ 315,526 303,884 - -
RMB against HK$ R R 273,224 390,134 - -
Intra-group balances KEATERER
HK$ against RMB BT ARE 105,809 110,910 1,200,880 1,329,145

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the

need arises.

ANEE B A I M E HHPEUR o AT
EEESEEMENNERRE  TEE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1%
(2017: 1%) increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and 10%
(2017: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. The
respective percentages are the sensitivity rates used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and also intra-group balances
denominated in foreign currencies and adjusts their translation
at the year end for the respective percentages change in the

exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit or equity where HK$ weaken 1% (2017: 1%) against US$
and HK$ weaken 10% (2017: 10%) against RMB. For a 1%
(2017: 1%) strengthening of the HK$ against US$ and HK$
strengthening 10% (2017: 10%) against RMB, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit or equity, and the

balances below would be negative.

35. @R TH (&)
3B BEIGEERHERBEK(E)

% E B (48)
() B )7 iz (48)
BRED W

TRABLEEH B L EZTEEZLH
RTHEI%(ZF—tF :1%) LR BE
AARBEZREARTERI1I0%(=ZZ—+t
F 0% WHBE  SEBSLEHRE
REPEEEEE A SE R AR
EhE ARTEEBYHERETA/AED
BENEERNEB ML BEESTE
FUMNETHENKREHE R ER KU
MOIENEB AR ERES  WHESE
ZEENEDLENBEFERAE -

TRAEHRRIABELEAIRE 1% (=
Z—tF 1% REAREREI10% (=
Z—tF10%) FEFRESIEM - &
BELETHEIR(ZE—LF 1%)
REAREBABION(ZZ—tF:
10%) B > HaF S ERESBREEER
FAMEE  MTHIESHES28% -

2018 2017
-0\ —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Profit or loss Rz

HK$ against RMB BT AR 91,414 109,494
US$ against HK$ EVAh 1,900 1,518
RMB against HK$ ARHE T B 22,814 32,576

Other comprehensive income Hip2ElE
US$ against HK$ ETABE 880 1,221

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the

year.

REEEENER  BRESHTHESR
MY SME R R I R B RN - BIAF KA
32 A9 B I AN F R (R A S O LS ©



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows

of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Group currently does not have an

interest rate hedging policy. However, the management

monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate structured deposits, bank balances and
borrowings (see notes 18, 22 and 25 for details of these
financial instruments). The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly attributable to fluctuation of HIBOR, LIBOR and
prevailing interest rates offered by the PBOC. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rates of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed

in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

35. @R TH (&)
3B BEIGERBBHERBEK(E)

T 15 JE bk (48)

(i) FUIF 7] B
REREFEARAEMTIAZARRR
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AEE B AR REPBUR - A
EEESERMINANERERE T8k
EEERZEEHTEENZRARRE

TEEREZIEABMER  RITEX
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative
and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis points) fluctuation is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

35. @R TH (&)
3B BEIGEERHERBEK(E)

i 5 Lk (4
(i)  FUEERE
BREDMN

TXNBRESMIORERAEERTE
RETETIAGEREAREAZHREZR
BEE -  FEISNMBEBRIARSHAREK
FENEmIATEEFANKREH - A
HEFTEEBASERMNEERER L
SOMFEMNEH(ZF—LF :50%
F) RREEBHAERESIEARENE
B & BV ET A o

2018 2017
—F-0\% “E—tF
Change in basis points Change in basis points
HE2g HE2E
+50 -50 +50 -50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BRBTT
Profit or loss (net of tax) BANEER (BRHE) 6,732 (6,732) 4,899 (4,899)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year

end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

BRPBFARRD -

REEEENER  BRESHTHESR
A RERIE N ERRYE  BRFLE
YRR I A BREF R RO LR o



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTPL and

FVTOCI (2017: held-for-trading investments and available-for-

sale investments). For equity securities measured at FVTPL

(2017: held-for-trading) quoted in the Stock Exchange, the

management manages this exposure by maintaining a

portfolio of investments with different risks. In addition, the

Group also invested in certain unquoted equity securities for

long term strategic purposes which had been designated as

FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments measured at fair

value). The management will closely monitor the price

movement of the securities and regularly review the

performance and asset allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based

on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments had
been 10% (2017: 10%) higher/lower:

e the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would increase by approximately
HK$1,237,000 (2017: HK$1,394,000) or decrease by
approximately HK$1,237,000 (2017: HK$25,474,000),
respectively, as a result of the changes in fair value of
listed equity securities classified as financial assets at
FVTPL (2017: investments held for trading and available-

for-sale investments which have been impaired); and

e the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would
increase by approximately HK$22,720,000 (2017:
HK$28,838,000) or decrease by approximately
HK$22,720,000 (2017: HK$nil), respectively, as a result of
changes in fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI

(2017: available-for-sale investments).

35. @R TH (&)
3B BEIGERBBHERBEK(E)

i% Bk (48)

(iii) 1BI&EEE
AEBEBHUAFLEEFABRRR
AFEEFAEMEZAKRSEFE(ZZ
—tF BEEEAZRRERTHEE
RE) 2 LMRABSF ZRERERER
B2 o MR RZIBMERUAFEETTA
BRITE(ZE—tF HEESE)WR
AEHFMS  BEEEBBEBERFAEETRE
ENREASREBLL AR o o
AEETRENRETREAEBKEMNNE
EHRAES  HETARAFEES
AHEEKRE(ZF—tF : UATE
BEfE2AHHERE) - EEBERKEY
ERZERSF2EREEH  UEHEH
EREGZREREEDE -

HREDM

TXHHREDMIIRBERS BHPEE
MR ERREE -

ESEBLFTRATIENERSE TE
10% (ZZF—+tF :10%) ' 8 :

e AEBEBE-Z-—NF+=A
=t+-—BLEEFENBEERNSEM
#1,237,000 T (ZF— L F : B
1,394,0007T ) = & 2 B ¥ Y
1,237,000t (= FE—tF: B
25,474,000t) REARDEAUA
FTEEFAERRNEMEEN LT
BAFESR(ZE—+LF . HEFEEH
BRENATHEEREZRHE) 22
FEESE ; &

e AEBMNREMEREZEMOE
#22,720,000 T (=& —tF: &
#28,838,000 7T ) =X A 2 ) & M
22,720,000t (=& —t & : &) >
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors

and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance its operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The

management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately HK$1,647
million (2017: HK$1,495 million). Details of the amounts
utilised at the end of the reporting period are set out in note
25.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
below have been drawn up based on the contractual
maturities of the undiscounted financial liabilities including
interest that will accrue, with reference to their respective
contractual interest rate, and for those variable-rate
instruments, by using the appropriate prevailing market rates

at the end of the reporting period as stated in their contracts.

35. @R TH (&)
3B BEIGEERHERBEK(E)

nRBE S E R

EEERDESRRE  AEEEER
REEEER/RHINBERATSE
HEKF  BHEBEERHESITR

RESREFINTE SHEEBEER
TERZERMRRE R ERETERZE ©

rEBRBRITEREARBESZE
ERFE -R=F—-NF+=A=+—H"
AEEETUEBAMmERERZBITER
A48 11,647,000,000 T (=ZF—+
F : 7B #1,495,000,0007T ) ° A IR & HA
BEEBCBASEFBRNMETE2S

AEENFITLESHEBERYBERS
WRFHMAFINRT R TRERE
AMBRETHEERERBANENSHNE
HEMmEET  MESHNIBNERF=
EEBNETA  D2RAREHPKRE
R M IS ERME o



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. 2RI TR (SE)
35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3SB.EMBEIMGEEEHERBEK (E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Liquidity risk (continued) nEE L ER(E)
Within More than Total
Weighted 1yearor 1yearbut undiscounted
average repayable less than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 3 years liabilities amounts
FEZ K —F#E REETH
IR 397 % —ENEE EREE EREEER REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT
At 31 December 2018 RZB-\E
T=HA=1=H
Non-derivative financial FrTELHERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMERE - 163,056 - 163,056 163,056
Bank borrowings (note) AT (FaE) 3.99 840,136 - 840,136 819,453
Amounts due to non-controlling FE{}FEIZIRIRE
shareholders
— Interest bearing -3 R 2.63 35,968 - 35,968 35,968
— Non-interest bearing -%8 - 12,397 - 12,397 12,397
Total ok 1,051,557 - 1,051,557 1,030,874
At 31 December 2017 R=F—t&F
+-A=+—-H
Non-derivative financial FirELMER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRE - 485,161 - 485,161 485,161
Bank borrowings (note) RATE (M) 3.78 342,739 902,127 1,244,866 1,201,027
Amounts due to non-controlling FE{S FEIRARARER
shareholders
— Interest bearing -FTR 2.03 35,247 - 35,247 35,247
— Non-interest bearing -GRE - 11,726 - 11,726 11,726
Total B 874,873 902,127 1,777,000 1,733,161

note:  The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities fiEE . LHEAGTELRARIEIAZEE  BREIBARZE
are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates RN RSN L E R AR A E R E LT
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
35B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated

with its financial assets.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade
balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 29% (2017: 30%)
and 79% (2017: 74%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the trading and manufacturing

business segment.

Other receivables

The management of the Group regularly review and assess
the credit quality of the counterparties. The Group uses
12-month ECL to assess the loss allowance of other
receivables since these receivables are neither past due nor
with fixed repayment terms, and there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is not significant.

35. @R TH (&)
3B BEIGEERHERBEK(E)

EERERREEF A
R=ZZF-NF+=A=+—H &x&KE
BAEFHrAEETHEEAMERAEES
SHRBAMEEZEREERR It
THERGEMEARRKATIERED #ER
TREECREBEMELE - AKEUE
BFEEAEFRRIHEMEEARER
URBHSmEEEBENEERR -

B BRI

RELERNEERR  FEEEEE
EEKEGEEEEFERERGEER
oo REREAHZFA  AEBEER
REMEEF D R4 - UHEBEREFH
FEEENEERFFERE -EF W
REEN ¥ 0 M F M — IR - AITHAM
EERFrRARENEEBBEHENRE
T i ZEERERE BB R
HEAEIRRREEMEESRENE
TREFMGE(ZZE-—LF  EEBERE
X)) WESEREBIRBERBRERE
TR - Bt AR T ESRBEEE
MEEREERE RiERE -

rEBEPEERR  KIHAREES
RHYEEBHI R BUREAEBZRAE
FREAREFNEZEWRMREIES 5
FB29% (ZF—+tF :30%) R79% (==
—tF 1 74%)

H b fEW AR 5L
AEBEEEEHRARFEHFIHN
FEEE BHRZERUIRA B ER D
TEBEEERGNR  BEERRBE AR
fER I EANRIL I ANEEEH 1218
ATEHIEEEE UL E B R
BERBE Bt ARFIESRBERE
BEHNEERMRIEREX -



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the

counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high credit

ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which

are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the

Group does not have any other significant concentration of

credit risk.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

35. &R TH(4E)

BSB.MABEMERBERBE ()

15 & b % (E AT s (4R)

RITHIER

HREFHHEEREETREBER
BEEFRNRT B HE RITE

BHNEERRAR -

BREERBRETFREASEENRNE
TRITHRBEEI  AEE A EEF
FMEMEREERMR

AEENABEERRFREEAT 2

k= -

Other financial

Internal credit rating  Description Trade receivables assets/other items
AR RG] Hhiid B 5B HthEREE HHEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
past-due amounts not credit-impaired
EER HFHTNENRRE - BYEEMAHFHE 2HRAEERE- 1MEARHEERSE
YEEERE
Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
not credit-impaired
EngE ERARERNANELEE 2HRAEERE- 12MEREREEFE
YEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
recognition through information developed internally or external not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
resources
223 FEERBEBANRINDERE YN E RN RRDEAREN 2HRAEERE- 2HRAEERE-
YEEERE YEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B8 BrEEAREERENTE 2HRHAESRE- 2HRAEERE-
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
s BREBARRBRMBRENEE  BAKELEERKENTE SERME SRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. @M T R (&)

35B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  35B. MM EMEEBEERBIH (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EER R EFE (&)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRFHIJIAEFSHEETDLENEER

Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: [ » ZBZ AR EEEE S ¢

External
2018 Notes  credit rating Internal rating  12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
—F-)\f i MEME TR PR AR 2@ AN HEHEEER BEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Financial assets at amortised cost
BEBSERATENEMEE
Trade receivables 20 N/A (note 2) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 4,926
B SRR TEA (Fff=E2) 2HEHEEEE
(BiEsEm)
N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 18,609 23,535
AEH KRk FHREBEESE
Other receivables 20 N/A (note 1) 12-month ECL 62,813 62,813
HitrEWEER TER (Ffi=E1) EREREEEE
Bank balances 22 Aalto Aa3 N/A 12-month ECL 119,169
RITEE ha1ZAa3 TEA 1MERBEEERE
A1to A3 N/A 12-month ECL 1,053,494
MZEA3 TiER 12MERBHEEEE
Baa to Baa3 N/A 12-month ECL 1,270,396 2,443,059
Baa1ZBaa3 TEA EREREESE
Pledged bank deposits 22 Baa2 N/A 12-month ECL 33,723 33,723

BRRITEH Baa? TER 1EARBEESR




35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

35. @R TH (&)
3B EIGEEBERBEK (&)

15 & U b &% i (B =T s (4B)

notes: FsE
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information to assess 1. FANCERREENS  A5EEARHERTEEERR
whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. REBARBIE-BEAELHA -
Not past due/No fixed
repayment terms
E@H/EEERRIEH
HK$'000
BET T
Other receivables Hit LR 62813
2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in accordance with HKFRS 9 to 2. HREZRUERRT S REBBUBREENEIR  £5KE

measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on those balances by using a provision
matrix, grouped by internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).
Debtors with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of HK$18,609,000 as at 31
December 2018 was assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

ERELA AT RE2HRREEBENERERE - REARE
BEGAEERENERAN  ARERARBERET AR
BEEFRD ENZSEHNRAEEER -

EAAEENEERREE2 -5 AEBRHEFEAA
BEETR - TRELFBEEZRREREEREBNEN &
SESRURRNREZHBNCEFB(LREERNE)R
M_Z-NE+-A=+-BNBEEBELTE - R=F
—NE+-A=t+-PEBEAKREELGRAKAELEY
18,609,000 THY B A BE BT o

BIREE

Trade receivables

5 W AR
HK$'000
BT T

Internal credit rating A= BT
Low risk KR 3,086
Doubtful 75 1840
4,926

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about specific debtors
is updated.

HEERDEREBARBRDFHNAEBRMENENR
st WEBFREBERARZ N TRENAELEERE
B HENHEEREEHEN  URREBEEEHANER
BRBUEH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=AM AR M RE

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
35C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are

35. &R TH(4E)
B5C.2RITAEAFEENE

AEERBIEREERSRMEBUZTR
EHRNAFEEFE TREHREE
EREEZATVEEESANER (AR

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

The following table gives information about how the fair

N
B
o
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values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, 5 @ EMEEF EREANBAEEH) -
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
2018
ZE-)\&
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1A R E=HA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFANERZERMEE
Listed equity securities ERARES 14,814 - - 14,814
Structured products GRMETA = 7,749 = 7,749
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEESF AR G2EREZ
EiRTH
Listed equity securities LIRAES 227,198 - - 227,198
Unlisted equity securities FEMRAES - - 306,289 306,289
Perpetual capital securities ERIEAES - 51,120 - 51,120
Total ek 242,012 58,869 306,289 607,170
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRATEETANERZEMER
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 7,470 - 7,470
2017
“E—E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—RB EZHA E=HA FE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEEANERZEMEE
Listed equity securities LIhRAES 16,693 - - 16,693
Structured products HEEMTA - 7,737 - 7,737
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMTIE - 26 - 26
Available-for-sale financial assets HELMEE
Listed equity securities LHRAES 288,380 - - 288,380
Unlisted equity securities I EmRAES - - 342,230 342,230
Perceptual capital securities BIREIE AR S - 52,239 - 52,239
Total fanE 305,073 60,002 342,230 707,305
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRATEETANERZERER
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMTE - 790 - 790

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the

year.

REFMER -

FREF—  FRBE=ZHRAzEHE



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with

reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock

exchanges.

The fair values of perpetual capital securities are determined
based on indicative prices provided by the dealers and
brokers. In addition, the Group makes comparison of the
indicative prices with the prices obtained from pricing services
providers to substantiate the indicative prices of these
securities. The key inputs used in the valuation models are the
interest rate data, which are observable at the end of the
reporting period. The objective of valuation models is to arrive
at a fair value estimation that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date, which would have been

determined by market participants acting at arm'’s length.

The fair values of structured products are calculated using
discounted cash flows analysis derived from quoted interest

rates, which are observable at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined
with reference to market values of underlying assets, which
mainly comprise investment properties located in Hong Kong
held by the investees and take into account the discount for
lack of marketability. The valuation of the properties was
principally arrived at using the comparison method, in which
property is valued on the assumption that the property can be
sold with the benefit of vacant possession. Comparison based
on prices realised on actual sales of comparable properties is

made for similar properties in the similar location.

The fair values of cross currency swap contract and currency
forward contracts are measured by the present value of future
cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and foreign
exchange rates between JPY and HK$, which is observable at

the end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.

35. @R TH (&)
B5C.ERITAAFEENE(SH)

EHRARBZLSEEREXZ T
SN ARTEEANEEE A FEE -

BEATHHERENKAERESH
AFEERBEHEBHRELCAMMERN
BERMEERERE - It AEEEETR
MEREREERBEERF LESH
BRMULE  MS KA EREHFNE
AEEREMIRE - HEEANER
MAZEBANRYE  ZHBEEREH
REFALLBAGH -HEEANEER
ERANMEMTAERE HHEH S
SRENNTFEBAEGERNAFEE
S
EERBRATEEFABRZENEREE
MEBMEERNATEE  BRAKRE
BERIMITE  HREMNRDIBREBER
CLGERES

BEFLTRABFNLOFEERZE
MHBEENTSER  TEBEMRE
RAFANEBREVENTSEE
REZRBHERZTSMEMELITN - Y%
HEETREALEEL  BRZIVERS
HEBFMFELHNYEMLE  LEERR
BEE T Y R AR LY B
EEBRNEREEERME -

RXEBEHEIRERIESHND
FEE X RRERENRMATLZEE
EERGENE AWt ARTETT REEH
ARBEERRTEN  HBEERTIAR
BREPREEEEW -

ARA2EEZRRAEBRN G W BR
RALUBERSARNEMEREER
TRBEZRAMEEAEAFEEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BHZ=F—N\E+=B=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

35. @R TH (&)
BSC.ERMTAAFEENE(SH)

EMEEFE=RHN A FEFEHAL

Equity
instruments
at FVTOCI/
available-for-sale
investments
BATEERA
HineEREZ
ExIR/
ARHERE
HK$'000
BT T

Balance at 1 January 2017 R=ZB-t&5-A—-R#&H 334,646
Total net gains recognised in other comprehensive income REMEEKERTRER 2 F RS 6,692

Purchases BE

892

Balance at 31 December 2017 RIE—tF+=A=1—RE% 342,230
Total net gains recognised in other comprehensive income REf2EREATED 2 F RS 2,889

Purchases BE
Disposals HE

3,461
(42,291)

Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-A=+-—RH#&H 306,289

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
approximately HK$2,889,000 (2017: HK$6,692,000) related to
equity instruments at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale

investments) held at the end of the reporting period.

A small percentage, 2.1% (2017: 2.4%), of total assets of the
Group, is based on estimates and recorded as financial assets
with Level 3 fair value measurements. Whilst such valuations
are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that changing one or
more of the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions would not have a big impact on the Group's

financial positions.

Hih2E =R BEL B 2,889,000 7T
MU m(=F — £ F: B %6,692,000
) BRBREHBEERAFENRAF
BEFAHMCZAKRSE2ERTA(Z2
—tF JHEERE) B -

LMAEBEREEMNRNES - 21% (=2
—tF 1 24%)  IRBEAEEE =R
REMER AR b EH AT RERE
EHR BEE-—EARZEABRREEES
BRAENREBRRE  BETEYR
EENMBERRENERTE -



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

35C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified professional valuers or other service
providers to perform the valuations. The management works
closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The respective
management team reports the findings to the Board of
Directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various financial assets and
liabilities is disclosed above.

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

35. &R TH(4E)
3B5C.ERMTAAEFEENE(H)

P TEEFENFEHEBRE
EEEEMSRY  UWEETEENQFE
EFfENGERMME AR -

AEEMGGFEEIEENLFEERRK
AARzTEBERE - B —A5E@
SHTTR AEEREABLSER
EXREEMNEMREHEEETHE -
EEERMGEMZEIGHE BUEEW
EERMMEARR - HEEEEEE
HOARANESEREEENRED
AFEERBNAEERLERRE -

AREEEREENEBN A FEEN
RERMTNBAZBNESR EKE -

36.MEFHEAMBRAMS

TRALTAEERETHELENERE
g BREASNIRESE - HETE
BEENEERBLERTRE  FARRK
MRETRE BRI BALTEBNGS
RERERNBETHRSRE -

Dividend Interest

Borrowings payable payable Total

&k ERfRE ERFIE Fak ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\¥—-F—H 1,248,000 - 12,134 1,260,134
Financing cash flows MERER (361,496) (242,908) (46,259) (650,663)
Finance costs BB - - 34,646 34,646
Dividends recognised as distribution EEREDIRZRE - 242,908 - 242,908
Currency realignment R (18,686) - (25) (18,711)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZHA=t+—-H 867,818 - 496 868,314
At 1 January 2017 WZE—+5-F—-H 1,183,629 - - 1,183,629
Financing cash flows BMEBER 31,156 (181,720) (33,615) (184,179)
Finance costs RN - - 45,691 45,691
Dividends recognised as distribution ERARDKZIRE - 181,720 - 181,720
Currency realignment ERFE 33,215 - 58 33,273
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tE+-A=1+—8H 1,248,000 - 12,134 1,260,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=AM AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

37. AATMBRARREHEE

2018 2017
—E-)\f “E—tE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties REMF 2,300,000 1,971,000
Property, plantand equipment WE  BERRE 556,597 566,168
Investments in subsidiaries WBARZERE 470,272 417,588
Investments in securities BERE 90,487 132,184
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWHT B A RIBR R 4,642,712 4,678,734
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 31,469 3,850
8,091,537 7,769,524
Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale FHEME 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 RHMEKERR 7,065 4,035
Investments in securities EHRE 22,563 16,793
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA - 26
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BAZERZRIH 2 EBRTEH
maturity when raised 8,190 83,566
Bank balances and cash BOERRES 707,189 527,600
747,815 634,828
Current liabilities REaR
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEIRR 48,861 7,787
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA 218 -
Borrowings — due within one year EH - R—EREIH 620,589 47,400
669,668 55,187
Net current assets REEETFE 78,147 579,641
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 8,169,684 8,349,165
Non-current liabilities E1 )= 1
Rental deposits from tenants mEF KRz EERE = 39,650
Borrowings — due after one year A - R—FEEIH = 590,589
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 7,252 790
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries WBLRZRERR 156,184 145,715
163,436 776,744
8,006,248 7,572,421
Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital R 381,535 381,535
Reserves (note) e (M) 7,624,713 7,190,886
8,006,248 7,572,421

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI

BBBREN-F-NF=ZRLBEEE
EEHEREERT YATHALK

REE

MR. CHENG YUK WO
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EESE EpgRFOE A
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EREEEFE

TE - BEBRSERITHABR
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. AATMBRARRGHE (F) .
>
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) -
note:  The movements in reserves are presented below: Wizt EE22BHNT §
—'
Property Investment @
revaluation revaluation Accumulated g
reserve reserve profits Total E
VEERGEE  IREEGEE RiEiF st i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 R-Z-t&-HF-H 448 1,226 5,219,409 5,221,083
Profit for the year REEEF - - 2,148,869 2,148,869
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments AHEERE AT ERRE - 2,654 - 2,654
Total comprehensive income for the year rEE2ERGAE - 2,654 2,148,869 2,151,523
Dividends recognised as distribution EERBIRZIRE - - (181,720) (181,720)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-A=+—-H 448 3,880 7,186,558 7,190,886
Adjustments Eiikd - (19,550) 19,550 =
At1 January 2018 (restated) R=2-N\E-A-R (83 448 (15,670) 7,206,108 7,190,886
Profit for the year REEEA - - 671,351 671,351
Fair value gains on investments in BAPEESTALMZANGE ST L
equity instruments at FVTOCI AFEEWE - 4,769 - 4,769
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EWRAH - 4,769 671,351 676,120
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to REERAFERT AEt2EAREZ
accumulated profits upon disposal of BRI AEHZRETEN S BIRE
equity instruments at FVTOCI BfhkE = (20,667) 20,667 =
Dividends recognised as distribution EERHIRZIRE - - (242,293) (242,293)
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-\E+-A=+—-A 448 (31,568) 7,655,833 7,624,713
38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 38.fllt N T EEIE
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) BEBEANTRS
2018 2017
—F-0\E “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRTT
Expenses paid and payable to directors of EXARENTAABHENBAR
the Company or its affiliates ESNER
Rental expenses btk 900 4,092
Architecture and other consultancy service fee BEMEMEARBE - 924

The Group had no other material significant transactions with ~ZREEWEEEAREHA T L EARS ©

related parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

during the year were as follows:

38. AT HEBESIH(E)
(B) EEXEEFAEMNE

FR - FAEETEEBASHMMOT

2018 2017

—F-\§ “Z—t&

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BET T

Short-term benefits ySEGEER 44,514 46,990
Post-employment benefits EERINER 3,001 2,832
47,515 49,822

The emoluments of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to

the performance of individuals and market trends.

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

EENTERTHRAEBZHMIOIBEHME
EEREAXRRRTSBZEE -

39. XEMBAT
R=ZZB-N\E+ZA=+—HBHR=Z%
—tF+ZA=+—HB KRAZEE
MEBARERMT

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B ERTER AMAHFEETRAEE/
WA= & MiE Rt/ B/ ARER AMERZ L TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
2018 2017 2018 2017
—F-\F —E-tF ZF-/\F “E-+F
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Property investment
&g 7#100,0007C NERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - - Investment holding
EEERAF D 787%9,5007T RERR
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
EREEERAA BE 78 2,000,0007 N=ERE
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Money lending
AIRHHERAT Bk 7#1,000,0007 BYES
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 100 - - Provision of nominees
fI¥ (RE) RO BB Labe services
RARE AR
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
RELERRAT Bk #2007 NERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
3 B#2007T NERE



39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39. TEMEBAS (&)
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Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B AV ERTE] AMABEEETRAEE/
WEAREH MizE ARz e BE/ERER AMERZ L TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E# %
2018 2017 2018 2017
-\ ZE-t§F ZF-)\f ZZ-tF
% % % %
Golden Harbour International Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - - 100 100 Property investment
BRERERAT Bk BEIT NERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 100 - - Property investment
SIREBRAA BE BEIT NERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Property investment
ERREBRAT Bk B2 NERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
EERRERLA BE BT REER
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
EEBRAF Bk BH1007T RERZR
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
BREERERAR BE 71007 REZR
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
ERBRAR Bk BT RERZR
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
SEERAR BE B#2007T NERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited &k 710,000,007 RALZR
BRREXRRLF
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited B 71#72,000,0007C N=RE
BREXERBRAR
Liu Chong Hing Property Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 = - Property management
Management and Agency Limited B8 71,000,0007 NxER 253
BRIENEEERAE w
BRAR -
24
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Property investment :
BB BT NERE 2
One-Eight-One Hospitality Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Hotel operation and =
Management Limited i BT management .
BEEERER !
kil
Queen Profit International Investment Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 8375 - - Investment holding "
Limited &k 61,5407 REZR #

HAERRERRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

39. TEMEBAT(E)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B AvE ERTE] AMABEEETRAEE/
WEAREH MizE ARzt i BA/ERER AMERZ L TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# %
2018 2017 2018 2017
-\ ZE-t5 ZF-)\f “ZT-tF
% % % %
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100 Property management
Company Limited BB 7#10,0007T NXER
EENEEERERAH
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Property investment
ERERERAT &k BT NERE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60 Investment holding
ZEREARLT B8 81007 RERR
Strong Zone International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
SHERERAT &k BEIT REZR
Supreme Stone Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
HERERRAT B8 BEIT RERR
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
&k B#2007T REZR
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
ERERAF B8 BEIT RERR
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
RRREBRAT Bk BEIT REZR
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
HAREBRAT B8 B2 RERR
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited BB 72,000,000 NERE
HRECARAT
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property (i) PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90 Property development
Development Company Limited HE #5#£500,000,0007T NEBR
BLEEEREERR
BRAR
Guangzhou Chong Hing Property (iii)  PRC RMB170,000,000 - - 60 60  Property development
Development Company Limited HE AEK#170,000,0007 ES
ENAIEEHERRERAR
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i) PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Consultangy Limited HhEl 758,500,0007T NERE

BN ERELESA
BRAF



39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

39. TEMEBAT (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B AV ERTE] AMABEEETRAEE/
WEAREH MizE ARz e BE/ERER AMERZ L TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E# %
2018 2017 2018 2017
2\ ZEBtF IR\ ZB—iF
% % % %
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i) PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100  Property management
Management Company Limited HE #%1,000,0007 NxER
BNTERNXERERAR
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i) PRC RMBA65,370,000 - - 51.54 5154 Manufacturing of
Company Limited HE AR#65,370,0007C magnetic materials
BHLSNHMEHBERAR SUERIEATH
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i) PRC US$34,600,000 - - 100 100~ Property investment
Property Development HE 34,600,000% 7 NERE
Company Limited
LEERBAIRRE L ERS
BRAT
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ USS1 100 100 - - Investment holding
SR EERA T Hong Kong 1%£5 REER
AEELRE/
BE
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong 100%7 RERR
ABRELES/
BB
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ U5$1,000 100 100 - - Shareinvestment
Hong Kong 1,000%7C k&
ABELZEE/
BB

2
P4
>
P4
o
>
Lo
o
m
o
o
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?E_
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U

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in EBEH A K HAEFXERSEEE KX
FECAEEMBAREBEEHIINL

R -EBRR mRHUHEAGKHEBLAE

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or

assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of %} . BIZ@BATE 255
excessive length. W

A
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the L4 If B 2 7] & 7£ AN F BT (E B »
end of the year. Bk o %

& =
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=Z—N\F+=A=+—HLLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal

activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

39. XEMBAT (48)
RAREHR > AQAF B HMEARE
EMEfTBEANKHEAT - ZZEHE
RARARBHREREBEE - LWEKHB
NRNEEERRYPIIMT

Number of subsidiaries
WEBAREE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2018 2017
TERH FEEEME “F-0\f “E—tF
Hotel operation and management PRC 1 1
BERERER I E]
Investment holding Hong Kong 17 15
REZR B
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
NERE )
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 20 18
TEXK &8
notes: FisE
(i) The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC. (i) ZEDRARRPERL 2 EBE L%

(ii) The company is sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(iif) The company is sino-foreign co-operative joint venture established in the PRC.

(iv) At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests.

(ii)
(i)
(iv)

.
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Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

23/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7777

Fax: (852) 2983 7725

E-mail: Info@Ichi.com.hk

Website: www.lchi.com.hk

Stock Code: 00194

EBEHEP =TI
RIEBTHRO=T=4
E5F : (852) 2983 7777
{8E : (852) 2983 7725
EH : Info@Ichi.com.hk
#3k : www.Ichi.com.hk
R - 00194
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